
 

 

 
 

  

   
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

STUDY SESSION 5:30 p.m. 
 

Please turn off cell phones and pagers, as a courtesy to those in attendance.   Thank you. 
 

 

1.   Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under "Public 
Comment.”  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to 
five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the speaker's 
microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation 
 

2. Discussion – Review 2013-2014 Operations & Maintenance Budget  
 

3. Closed Session Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is to be considered during Closed Session, you are invited to 
do so at this time. In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are 
limited to five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the 
speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 

4. Adjourn to City Council Closed Session 
♦ Conference with Legal Counsel, Potential Litigation, Significant Exposure to Litigation  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
            Cases:  One 

♦ Conference with Labor Negotiator, Government Code Section 54957.6 
Agency Negotiator:  Acting City Manager Laws 
Employee Organization:  Unrepresented 

 

5. Adjourn to Regular Meeting 
 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL – 7:30 p.m. 
 

Please turn off cell phones and pagers, as a courtesy to those in attendance.   Thank you. 
 

1.   Call to Order:       A. Pledge of Allegiance          B.  Invocation 
 

2.   Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is not on the agenda, you may do so under “Public 
Comment.”  In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are limited to 
five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the speaker’s 
microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 
 

LEMOORE 
CALIFORNIA 

LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

429 “C” STREET 
May 21, 2013 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Items for Council Consideration and Action 
 

3. Consent Calendar 
 

All items listed under Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one 
motion.  For discussion of any Consent Item, it will be made a part of the Regular Agenda at the 
request of any member of the City Council or any person in the audience.  

 

A. Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – May 7, 2013 
B. Approval – Warrant Register 12-13 – May 17, 2013 
C. Approval – Authorization to Bid – 2013 Slurry Seal Project 
D. Approval – Bid Award –2013 Miscellaneous Streets Resurfacing Project & Reclamite 

Project  
E. Approval – Engineers Report – Landscape and Lighting Maintenance District No.1 for 

Zones 1-13 – Resolution 2013-11 – Intention to Levy and collect Assessments 
F. Approval – Engineers Report – Public Facilities Maintenance District (PFMD) No. 1 for 

Zones 1-5 – Resolution 2013-12 - Intention to Levy and Collect Assessments 
G. Approval – Engineers Report – Public Facilities Maintenance District (PFMD) No. 1 for 

Zone 6 – Resolution 2013-13 – Intention to Annex Territories and Levy and Collect 
Assessments  

H. Approval – Opposition of AB667 (Hernandez) Land Use: Development Project Review: 
Superstores 

 

4.   Report and Recommendation – Montrio Capital Partners – Application – Impact Fee Reduction –  
      Resolution 2013-14 – Considering Reduction, Adjustment or Waiver of Impact Fees 
 

5.   Report and Recommendation – Authorization to Purchase CNG Refuse Truck(s)                          
 

6.   Report and Recommendation – Prohibiting Blowing, Raking or Sweeping Yard Debris onto Public     
      Rights of Way 
 

7.   Report and Recommendation – League of California Cities – Council Appointments – Designation   
      of Voting Delegates and Alternates 
 

8.   Approval – Warrant Register – Successor Agency Pursuant to Enforceable Obligation Payment   
      Schedule 
 

9.   Department/City Manager Reports 
 

10. Council Reports and Requests for Information 
 

11. Closed Session Public Comment 
 

If you wish to comment on an item which is to be considered during Closed Session, you are invited to 
do so at this time. In order to allow time for all public comments, each individual’s comments are 
limited to five minutes.  When addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the 
speaker's microphone, state your name and address, and then proceed with your presentation. 

 

12.  Adjourn to City Council Closed Session 
♦ Conference with Legal Counsel, Potential Litigation, Significant Exposure to Litigation  

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
            Cases:  One 

♦ Conference with Labor Negotiator, Government Code Section 54957.6 
Agency Negotiator:  Acting City Manager Laws 

                  Employee Organization:  Unrepresented 
 

13.  Adjournment 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 

TENTATIVE FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 
June 4th  
SS – Report – Lemoore Golf Course – 2013/2014 Budget  
Approval – Tract 791 – Wathen Castanos – Notice of Completion 
Approval – Tract 872 – Wathen Castanos – Subdivision Agreement – Final Map – Phases 2 & 3 
Approval – Bid Award – Safe Routes to School 
Report and Recommendation – Appointment – Planning Commissioner 
 
Notice of ADA Compliance:  If you or anyone in your party needs reasonable accommodation to 
attend, or participate in, any City Council Meeting, please make arrangements by contacting the 
Human Resources Office at City Hall 24 hours prior to the meeting.  They can be reached by calling 
924-6700, or by mail at 119 Fox Street, Lemoore, California 93245. 
 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this 
agenda will be made available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s Counter at City Hall located at 
119 Fox Street, Lemoore, CA during normal business hours.  In addition, most documents will be 
posted on the City’s website at www.lemoore.com. 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING 
 

  I, Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore, do hereby declare that the foregoing agenda for 
the Lemoore City Council regular meeting of Tuesday, May 21, 2013 was posted on the outside 
bulletin board located at City Hall, 119 Fox Street in accordance with applicable legal requirements.  
Dated this 17th day of May 2013. 

             
      Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk  



























































































































































 1

        Item 3A 
 

             
 

Minutes of the Study Session of the  
LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 

May 7, 2013 
 
 

MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
 At 5:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
 
ATTENDANCE: 

Mayor Siegel; Mayor Pro Tem Wynne; Council Members Gordon, Neal; Acting 
City Manager/Police Chief Laws; City Attorney Avedisian; Public Works        
Director Wlaschin; Parks and Recreation Director Simonson; Finance Director 
Silva; Project Manager Holwell; Administrative Analyst Prichard; City Clerk 
Baley 
 

ARRIVED LATE:    Council Member Rodarmel arrived at 5:34 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT:  

Alejandro Clark of KCDC Kings Community Development Corporation intro-
duced the firm as a non-profit organization that assists with housing and    
community development areas dealing with the State of California HUD and 
CDBG grant programs.   
  
Carol Dias requested that in addition to APN numbers, property addresses 
also be added to future agendas.  Mayor Siegel asked that staff comply. 

 
DISCUSSION: 

Analyst Prichard briefed Council on the City’s history and philosophy of     
Master User Fees and Development Impact Fees and requested that Council 
offer staff guidance on the continuation of both.  
 
Paul Quiring of Montrio Capital Partners requested that the City compare the 
Eastside and Westside fee structures and offer impact fee relief from a      
portion of the fees currently required for CUP 2012-01. 
 
Mayor Siegel instructed staff to add CUP 2012-01 to the next agenda as an      
action item. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2

Tim Palmquest, representing 90 acres north and west of West Hills College, 
also showed concern for the Eastside and Westside fee structures.  He asked 
that Council direct staff to review the Westside Impact Fees with respect to 
the less aggressive growth pattern that the City is experiencing and          
recommended that the City consider scaling back the infrastructure          
requirements in that area. 
 
Council requested that staff return with fee comparisons in August; after 
2013/2014 budget has been adopted. 

 
CLOSED SESSION PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 There was no comment. 
 
ADJOURN TO LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL CLOSED SESSION: 

At 6:33 p.m., the Council adjourned to closed session regarding labor           
negotiations.   
 

ADJOURNMENT:  At 7:06 p.m., Council adjourned to the Regular Meeting. 
 
 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the  
LEMOORE CITY COUNCIL 

May 7, 2013 
 
MEETING CALLED TO ORDER: 
 At 7:30 p.m. the meeting was called to order. 
ATTENDANCE: 

Mayor Siegel; Mayor Pro Tem Wynne; Council Members Gordon, Neal,       
Rodarmel; Acting City Manager/Police Chief Laws; City Attorney Avedisian; 
Public Works Director Wlaschin; Parks and Recreation Director Simonson;   
Finance Director Silva; Project Manager Holwell; Administrative Analyst 
Apone; Administrative Analyst Prichard; City Clerk Baley 
 

ANNOUNCEMENT:   
It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member 
Wynne to add Item 5G – Street Closure to the Consent Calendar. 
 
Ayes:  Rodarmel, Wynne, Gordon, Neal, Siegel 

  
PRESENTATION: 

Christine King of Excellence Medical Group, Inc. raised money selling t-shirts 
and presented the Senior Center with a check for $1,500.00.  Richard Rea   
accepted the donation on the behalf of the Lemoore Senior Center. 
 

PROCLAMATION: 
Mayor Siegel proclaimed May 19th through May 25th as National Public Works 
Week.  
 
Public Works Director Wlaschin thanked employees for their hard work and 
dedication. 

 



 3

PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 Commissioner David Brown resigned from the Lemoore Planning Commission. 
 

Christine Dickman expressed concern for the cost saving measures recom-
mended on the agenda and asked that Council hear the voice of the public 
prior to making staff cutbacks.  
 
Elizabeth Smith expressed thanks to the Public Works Department and added 
that the Week of May 5th through 11th is National Nurses Week. 
 
Syd Smyth expressed his opinion for the quality of workmanship of a City      
Manager Recruitment flyer that was provided to his wife. 
 
Scott Goodrich expressed concern for the recent actions of the City Council.  
He disagreed with the Council’s decision to ask for the resignation of the City       
Manager at an expense of $180,000.00 as well as the proposed cost saving 
cutbacks. 

 
Brad Johns offered information concerning available grants that may offer a 
solution to the City’s water issues. 
 
Diane Brown expressed concern for the recent actions of the City Council 
leading to the City Manager’s abrupt resignation and the financial ramifications 
that it caused.  She disagreed with the recent decisions made by the Mayor. 
 
Council Member Gordon defended his decision regarding the resignation of 
the City Manager. 
 
Dave Costa showed disappointment in the forced resignation of the City Man-
ager.   
 
Stretch Derouin declared that the City Manager had an open door policy and 
showed disappointment in the manner in which the City Council asked that he 
resign.  He expressed concern that the public was not informed prior to the 
forced resignation. 
 
Scott Goodrich asked that the severance pay package included in the previous 
City Manager contract be omitted from the next contract. 
 
Al Cotner voiced disappointment in the manner in which the City Manager was 
asked to resign. 
 
Mayor Siegel defended the method in which the release of the City Manager 
was carried out.  
 
Dan Le Roy expressed his concern for the forced resignation of the City   
Manager and requested a copy of the City Manager’s contract. 

 
 
 
 



 4

CONSENT CALENDAR: 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Wynne, and carried that the Council approve the following Consent Calendar. 
 
A. Approval – Minutes – Regular Meeting – April 16, 2013 
B. Approval – Warrant Register 12-13 – May 2, 2013 
C. Approval – Authorization to Bid – Safe Routes to School Project 
D. Approval – Audited Financial Statements and Additional Information for the 

Lemoore Golf Course and a Single Audit Report 
E. Approval – Resolution No. 2013-08 – Adoption of the National Incident 

Management System (NIMS)  
F. Approval – Amendment to Strategic Investment Policy – Change in the City 

Treasurer – Resolution 2013-09 Accepting City Investment Policy 
G. Approval – Street Closure – May 17, 2013 – Downtown Street Party  
 
Ayes:  Gordon, Wynne, Neal, Rodarmel, Siegel 
 

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – REVIEW OF 2013-2014 PROPOSED DEPARTMENT 
BUDGETS BY REVIEW COMMITTEE AND APPROVAL OF THE RECOMMENDED COST    
SAVING MEASURES: 

Mayor Siegel introduced the Budget Committee Members and presented the 
department budgets proposed by the Budget Review Committee and          
recommended cost saving measures. 
 
Council Member Neal requested a copy of the proposed budget. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT – COST SAVING MEASURES: 
 Syd Smyth expressed opposition. 
 
 Edward Neal excused himself for a moment and returned shortly thereafter. 
 
 Christine Dickman voiced her concern for the recommendations. 
 
 Susan Stone asked for information concerning General Fund Reserves. 
 

Brenda Randall expressed opposition and requested that Council review the 
recommendation further before taking action. 

 
John Ince expressed opposition and requested that Council review the         
recommendation further before taking action. 

 
Dave Costa expressed opposition and requested that Council review the      
recommendation further before taking action. 
 
Carrie Risk expressed opposition. 
 
Angie Le Roy expressed opposition. 
 
Connie Wlaschin questioned the financial decisions recently made by Council 
and expressed opposition for the proposed cost saving measures. 
 



 5

Gloria Hobbs expressed opposition for the sudden elimination of the Planning 
Department and staff. 
 
Vernon Sandall expressed opposition for the elimination of the Planning      
Department. 
 
Diane Brown expressed opposition and concern for the manner in which      
decisions are being made. 
 
Dave Brown expressed concern for the recent decisions of the Council.  He 
stated that City Council may have violated the Brown Act. 
 
Nancy Corona Blum expressed opposition for the sudden elimination of the 
Code Enforcement Officer position and briefed Council on alternative cost   
saving measures.  She requested that Council reconsider the elimination of 
both departments. 
 
Roman Benitez voiced concern and asked that Council show restraint. 
 

RECESS: 
 Mayor Siegel called a recess at 10:17 p.m. 
 
RECONVENE TO REGULAR MEETING: 
 At 10:32 p.m. the meeting reconvened. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT – COST SAVING MEASURES – CONTINUED: 
 Myeisha Wormley provided information concerning the Boys and Girls Club. 
 

Holly Smyth provided a PowerPoint presentation in opposition of the           
recommended cost saving measures. 
 
Don Warkentin requested that Council allow the new City Manager to review 
all City Departments and bring forth a recommendation prior to making a deci-
sion. 
 
Mayor Siegel closed Public Comment at 11:03 p.m.  
 

ANNOUNCEMENT: 
Chief Laws announced that he was contacted by Leticia Johnson from the 
Community Development Block Grant Program notifying him that the Planning 
Technical Assistance Grant application submitted on April 11, 2013 had been 
denied because the City failed to approve the Single Audit Report by April 12, 
2013.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 6

REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – REVIEW OF 2013-2014 PROPOSED DEPARTMENT 
BUDGETS BY REVIEW COMMITTEE AND APPROVAL OF THE RECOMMENDED COST    
SAVING MEASURES CONTINUED: 

Council Member Gordon and Council Member Rodarmel commented on the 
cost saving measures being recommended. 
 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Wynne, and carried that the Council to approve the immediate elimination of 
the Planning Department including all staff, and that the Acting City Manager      
immediately begin implementing the staffing transfers necessary.  
 
Ayes:  Gordon, Wynne, Siegel  Noes:  Neal, Rodarmel 
 
It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 
Wynne, and carried that the Council to approve the immediate elimination the      
position of the Code Enforcement Officer, and that Acting City Manager        
immediately begin implementing the staffing transfers necessary. 
 
Ayes:  Gordon, Wynne, Siegel  Noes:  Neal, Rodarmel 
 

PUBLIC HEARING – CONTINUATION – CHEVRON ENERGY SOLUTIONS SOLAR PROJECT – 
ENERGY SERVICE CONTRACT – FACILITY FINANCING CONTRACT – INCURRANCE OF 
DEBT:  

Mayor Pro Tem announced that she would have to abstain because she owns 
property within 500 feet of the project and excused herself from the room. 
 
Analyst Apone presented the Council with the Energy Services proposal and        
funding information.  She briefed the public concerning savings the project 
would bring to the City over a 30 year period and presented Council Members 
with a recommendation. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT – ENERGY SERVICE CONTRACT – FACILITY FINANCING CONTRACT – 
CONTINUED: 
 Mayor Siegel announced the continuation of Public Comment on both items. 

 
Holly Smyth expressed concern about the West Side panels that are proposed 
to run in a north/south direction.   
 
Al Cotner asked that solar panel glaring be discussed prior to approving the 
project. 
 
Ashu Jain of Chevron Energy Solutions addressed the concerns presented by 
the public. 
 
Mayor Siegel closed Public Comment on both items. 

 
 
 
 
 



 7

It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member     
Rodarmel, and carried that the Council approve Resolution #2013-10          
approving the Energy Services Contract with Chevron and authorizing the 
Mayor and/or Acting City Manager to execute the contract. 

 
 Ayes:  Gordon, Rodarmel, Neal, Wynne, Siegel  
 

It was moved by Council Member Gordon, seconded by Council Member    
Rodarmel, and carried that the Council to approve Resolution #2013-11       
approving the contracts for the Loan Agreement with Pinnacle Public Finance 
and authorizing the Mayor and/or Acting City Manager to execute the         
contracts. 
 
Ayes:  Gordon, Rodarmel, Neal, Wynne, Siegel 

 
REPORT AND RECOMMENDATION – CEDAR LANE EXTENSION: 

David Jacobs of Quad Knopf informed Council that there was a document    
recorded in 1968 stipulating the proposed Cedar Lane alignment Option 1 as 
the preferred alignment.  He said that a physical survey has not been        
completed so the actual property lines are not known at this time.  The      
alignments presented to Council thus far are preliminary.  Actual Impacts to 
the properties are not known at this time.  Mr. Jacobs discussed how the       
extension of Cedar Lane would affect Lemoore Avenue and provided detailed   
information for proposed alignment options 1, 2 and 3 individually.   

 
PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Timothy Webster SR. expressed concern for the mature cypress trees along 
his back fence and asked if a sewer system and sidewalks are proposed. 
 
David Jacobs explained that a field survey is needed to address the questions 
concerning the impact to properties. 
 
Michael Montalbano opposed all three options due to the intersection between 
Larish Street and Highway 198. 
 
Connie Wlaschin questioned why the City is proposing to open Cedar Lane to      
Lemoore Avenue. 
 
Timothy Webster stated the City should consider other options for example, 
Larish Street. 
 
Jim Grantham asked if relocation and rental income compensation will be   
provided to property owners. 
 
James Jones informed the Council that he owns three of the eleven properties 
that will be affected.  He had spent a considerable amount of money to         
improve those properties and was concerned about the loss that he would    
incur.   
 
 



 8

Karen Schwarzenbach stated that she had been told two or three weeks ago 
that the project had been tabled due to lack of funding.  She attends the 
church owned by James Jones and asked the Council to consider the money 
that he had already spent on the property.  
 
David Jacobs recommended that Council direct the City Engineer to conduct a 
traffic study to address the issues that may arise in the area over the next 20 
years. 
 
During Public Comment, Council directed David Jacobs to move forward with 
the traffic study. 
 
Mayor Siegel, with the support of the Council, tabled the item and asked the 
public to submit their concerns by contacting Council Members prior to the   
traffic study. 
 
The Public was informed that the City Engineer would present a report during 
the Study Session in late June or July and that the property owners affected 
would be given notice of the date when it becomes known. 

 
APPROVAL – WARRANT REGISTER – SUCCESSOR AGENCY PURSUANT TO          
ENFORCEABLE OBLIGATION PAYMENT SCHEDULE: 

It was moved by Council Member Rodarmel, seconded by Council Member 
Gordon, and carried that the Council approve the Warrant Register. 
 
Ayes:  Rodarmel, Gordon, Neal, Wynne, Siegel 
 

DEPARTMENT/CITY MANAGER REPORTS: 
 There were no reports. 

 
COUNCIL REPORTS AND REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION: 
 There were no reports or requests for information. 
  
ADJOURNMENT: 
 At 12:39 a.m. the meeting adjourned. 
 

 
Approved the 21ST day of May, 2013. 
 
Full digital audio recording is available. 
 
 
 

              
        William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 

       
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
 

































































































“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

             City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 
 

Maintenance &   
Fleet Division 

 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6739 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

To: Lemoore City Council     Item 3C  

From: Joe Simonson, Director Parks and Recreation  

Date: May 15, 2013  

Subject: Authorization to Bid – 2013 Slurry Seal Project  

 
 
Discussion: 
 

The proposal documents for the 2013 Slurry Seal project have been completed.  Additional project 
areas have been added and will be bid as an alternative bid.  The alternative bid will address the 
entrance/throat of some cul-de-sacs. 
 
Staff and City Engineer request authorization to advertise for bids and propose the following: 
 

• The bid opening date is slated for June 11, 2013 at 2:00 pm 
• The slurry seal project area is labeled in purple on the attached map A and a proposed 

alternative project area is labeled in blue on map B. 
• Consideration for awarding bid is scheduled for June 18, 2013 City Council Meeting. 
• The project work is slated to begin approximately July 1st and end mid-August 2013. 

  
 
 Budget Impact: 
 

The 2013 Slurry Seal project is expected to expend $568,320 from 033 Gas Tax Fund.  
 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That the City Council, by motion, authorize staff to go out to bid for the Slurry Seal Project. 
 
 









“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

              City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

 

Maintenance &   
Fleet Division 

 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6739 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

To: Lemoore City Council     Item # 3D  

From: Joe Simonson, Director Parks and Recreation  

Date: May 16, 2013  

Subject: Bid Award – 2013 Miscellaneous Street Resurfacing 
Project & Reclamite Streets Project 

 

 
Discussion: 
 

Staff opened bids with Quad Knopf for the City of Lemoore 2013 Resurfacing & Reclamite Projects 
on Tuesday, May 14, 2013.   
 
From the bids received for the Resurfacing/Overlay Project, Cen Cal Paving was low bidder in the 
amount of $863,363.14.  We recommend City Council award Cen Cal Paving the bid. 
 
There were two bids for the Reclamite Project. Staff is recommending Cen Cal Paving again as they 
were the low bidder in the amount of $124,000.00.  
 
 
Budget Impact: 
 

The 2013 preliminary Street Maintenance Program Projects Overlay/Resurfacing portion estimated 
$1,310,800 from the 027 TE/STP RT PA Exchange Fund for construction cost. 
 
The preliminary cost for the Reclamite project was estimated at $185,000 from the 034 Gas Tax 
Fund. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That the City Council, by motion, award the bid to Cen Cal Paving, Inc. for the 2013 
Resurfacing/Overlay Project in the amount of $863,363.14; authorize City Manager to sign the 
agreement and contracts and by motion, award the Reclamite Project to Cen Cal Paving in the 
amount of $104,000 with authorization for the City Manager to sign the agreement and contracts. 



“In God We Trust” 

 Mayor 
William Siegel  

                

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Clerk 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

         ITEM # 3E  
           
           
To: Lemoore City Council 

From: Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 

Date: May 16, 2013 

Subject:           Resolution 2013-11 – Intention to Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments within 
Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1, (LLMD) Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 
8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13 of the City of Lemoore 

 
Discussion:             
The resolution before the Council begins the Proposition 218 process of levying and collecting for the 
remaining LLMD Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A and 13.  The City Engineer has 
prepared and filed with the City Clerk a report entitled “Engineer’s Report and Assessment of the City 
of Lemoore Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1, Zones 1-13” dated May 2013.  The 
report contains a description of the existing improvements, the boundaries of said Zones of the LLMD, 
the amount of the assessments, and other information required by law.   
 
The assessments, for fiscal year 2013-2014, differ from Zone to Zone due to varying amounts of 
landscape to be maintained and differing ratios between the amount of landscaping, lighting and other 
facilities and the number of housing units responsible for the maintenance.  Listed below are the 
current assessments for fiscal year 2012-2013 and the proposed 2013-2014 assessments.  Per 
Resolution 2007-37 passed on September 18, 2007, Zone 4 was dissolved and assessments will no 
longer be collected.  
         2012-13 2013-14 

Zone 1  Westfield Park     $135.00 $135.00  
 Zone 2  Cambridge Park 3 Phase 2    
   Windsor Count 5 Phase 2   $135.00 $135.00 
 Zone 3  Silva Estates 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, and 9 $  55.42   $55.42 
 Zone 5  Wildflower Meadows    $  62.32   $62.32 
 Zone 6  Capistrano     $  15.78   $15.78 
 Zone 7  Silverado Estates    $  78.22   $78.22 
 Zone 8  Country Club Villas Phase 1   $139.94 $139.94 
 Zone 8A Country Club Villas Phase 2   $139.94 $139.94 
 Zone 9  Manzanita at Lemoore 
   La Dante Rose Subdivision   $  46.62   $46.62 

Zone 10 Avalon      $125.76 $125.76 
 Zone 11 Self Help     $  53.32   $53.32 
 Zone 12 Summerwind and College Park 
   Phase 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6   $145.00 $145.00 
 Zone 12A College Park Phase 7    $145.00 $145.00 
 Zone 13 Covington Place    $150.00 $150.00 
 
No substantial changes are being made in the existing improvements for the maintenance of which 
the assessments are being proposed, and no new improvements are proposed for these Zones.   
 



“In God We Trust” 

A public hearing will be set for Tuesday, July 16, 2013 for any interested parties to present testimony.  
 
Budget Impact: 
The cost of publishing the resolution, estimated at $800.00. 
 
Recommendation: 
Council, by motion, approve Resolution 2013-11 – Intention to Levy and Collect the Annual 
Assessments for Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance District No. 1, (LLMD) Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 
8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A, and 13 of the City of Lemoore. 
 
 
 
 
 



Engineer’s Report and Assessment 
For Zones 1 - 13 

 

 
 
 

LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING 
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 

 

 
 
 
 

City of Lemoore 
 

Kings County, California 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Quad Knopf, Inc. 
P.O. Box 3699 
Visalia, California 93278 
 

May 2013 Submitted to: 
 
City Council 
City of Lemoore 
Park and Recreation Department 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, California 93245 

 



 

© Copyright by Quad Knopf, Inc. 
 Unauthorized use prohibited. 
L090138 

 
 

ENGINEER’S REPORT AND ASSESSMENT 
 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, 

ZONES 1 – 13 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

Mayor – William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem – Lois Wynne 

 
 

Council Members 
 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 
 

THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

Quad Knopf, Inc. 
P.O. Box 3699 

Visalia, CA  93278 
Tel. No:  (559) 733-0440 
Fax No:  (559) 627-2336 

harryt@quadknopf.com 
 
 
 

May 2013 
 
 

mailto:harryt@quadknopf.com






 i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

Engineer's Report 
 Certificates of Filing  ..............................................................................................................1 

 Introduction .............................................................................................................................2 

 Engineer of Work Statement  ..................................................................................................4 

 

Exhibit A 
 Description of Improvements .................................................................................................5 

 

Exhibit B 
 Engineer's Estimate  ..............................................................................................................11 

 

Exhibit C 
 Method of Assessment ..........................................................................................................16 

 

Exhibit D 
 Assessment Roll ....................................................................................................................22 

 

Exhibit E 
 Assessment District and Zone Location; Assessment Diagram  ..........................................83 

 

 

 



ENGINEER'S REPORT 





 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 2 

INTRODUCTION 
 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore adopted its General Plan with various elements to provide guidelines 

for orderly development within the community.  The City Council further adopted ordinances and regulations 

governing the development of land providing for the installation and construction of certain lighting, 

landscaping and appurtenant facilities to enhance the quality of life and to benefit the value of property. 

 

The requirement for the installation of lighting, landscaping and appurtenant facilities is a condition of 

development provided for in the City's Subdivision Ordinance and is a requirement of issuance of a permit for 

construction of commercial, residential, and planned unit development.  Lighting, landscaping and appurtenant 

facilities generally include street lights, trees, shrubs, plants, turf, irrigation systems and necessary 

appurtenances including monumentations, fencing located in public rights-of-ways, medians, parkways, and/or 

easements adjacent to public rights-of-ways, in and along major thoroughfares, primary and secondary arterials 

as defined in the General Plan's Circulation Element. 

 

The installation of street lights, landscaping and appurtenant facilities is the responsibility of the property 

owner/applicant, triggered by the approval of a development application.  When on any given street of the 

approved system, a majority of the required landscaping has been provided, and it has been determined that 

landscaping in front of, or adjacent to certain already developed properties is required to bridge missing gaps, 

and/or where the future development or redevelopment of existing property is not likely to occur in a 

foreseeable future, the City Council may deem it appropriate to retrofit or fill such gaps. 

 

After installation, it is City policy that servicing, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the 

lighting, landscaping and appurtenant facilities in turn become the financial responsibility of the properties that 

specially benefit from the facilities. 

 

The City's lighting, landscape, local street paving and parks maintenance and replacement program is 

administered according to the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (Streets and Highways Code Part 2, 

Division 15) (the "Act"), including if applicable provisions of Proposition 218 (Article XIIID of the California 

Constitution), the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act (Government Code Section 53750 through 

53754). 

 

The City cannot feasibly fund by any other method the maintenance and required periodic replacement of such 

facilities which must be installed with new development.  Therefore, the City has determined that such 

maintenance, operation, repair and replacement should be funded through levy and collection of the 

assessments on the various lots and parcels in the benefit Zones in this District.  The property owners in each 

Zone of said District enjoy a particular, distinct special benefit from these facilities and the assessments levied 

under this District thereby fund such benefit. 

 

Payment of the assessments will be made in the same manner and at the same time in as the ad valorem 

property tax for each lot and parcel. 

 

The annual assessment proceedings will be conducted under the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, 

Sections 22500 through 22679, Part 2, Division 15, of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of 

California. 

 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore will set times and places for the public hearing in the Resolution of 

Intention. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 3 

There are no changes in or additions to the improvements to be maintained.  Notice of the public meeting and 

public hearing will be given by one publication of the Resolution of Intention at least 10 days before the 

hearing, as authorized by the Act. 

 

After reviewing testimony, as well as the current and projected year's costs for the servicing, maintenance, 

repair and replacement of the facilities in Zones 1 through 13 of the District as herein described, the City 

Council will set the assessment for fiscal year 2013-2014, which runs between July 1 and June 30. 

 

This report contains the necessary data required to conduct the proceedings and is submitted to the Clerk of the 

City for filing. 





EXHIBIT A 
 

Description of Improvements 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 5 

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE 

LANDSCAPE and LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1 – 13 
 

(Pursuant to the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972) 

 

 

Locations of Landscaping, Lighting and Appurtenant Improvements 

 

The location of lighting, landscaping and appurtenant improvements are depicted on the Assessment Diagram 

as shown in Exhibit "E" herein, which diagram includes the following subdivisions, lots and/or parcels: 

 

Zone 1 

 

Boundaries of Zone 1 include the following properties: 

 

Parcel 18 as recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 38, Kings County Records 

(Alderwood Apartments). 

 

Parcels 1 through 7 and 10 through 16 as recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 38, 

Kings County Records (Lemoore Plaza Shopping Center). 

 

Tract No. 616, Windsor Court Unit No. 1, recorded in Volume 14 of Licenses Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 68, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 640, Windsor Court Unit No. 2, recorded in Volume 15 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 33, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 630, Cambridge Park, recorded in Volume 15 of Licenses Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 32, Kings 

County Records. 

 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM Lot 54 of said Cambridge Park.   

 

ALSO EXCEPTING THEREFROM all of Tract No. 630, Cambridge Park Unit No. 2, recorded in 

Volume 15 of the Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 62, Kings County Records, lying within the 

boundaries of said Cambridge Park. 

 

Tract No. 630, Cambridge Park Unit No. 2, recorded in Volume 15 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 

62, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 685, Windsor Court Unit No. 3, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 10, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 686, Windsor Court Unit No. 4, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 13, 

Kings County Records. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 6 

Tract No. 691, Cambridge Park Unit No. 3, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 

27, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 707, Windsor Court Unit No. 5, Phase 1, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at 

Page 66, Kings County Records. 

 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM all of Tract No. 707, Windsor Court Unit No. 5, Phase 2, recorded in 

Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 32, Kings County Records, lying within the 

boundaries of said Windsor Court Unit No. 5, Phase 1. 

 

Zone 2 

 

Boundaries of Zone 2 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 707, Windsor Court Unit No. 5, Phase 2, recorded in Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at 

Page 19, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 692, Cambridge Park Unit No. 3, Phase 2, recorded in Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, 

at Page 47, Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 3 

 

Boundaries of Zone 3 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 639, Silva Estates Unit No. 1, recorded in Volume 15 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 28, 

Kings County Records. 

 

EXCEPTING THEREFROM all of Tract No. 639, Silva Estates Unit 2, recorded in Volume 15 of 

Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 34, Kings County Records, lying within the boundaries of said Silva 

Estates Unit No. 1. 

 

Tract No. 639, Silva Estates Unit No. 2, recorded in Volume 15 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 34, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 666, Silva Estates Unit No. 3, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 28, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 731, Silva Estates Unit No. 5, recorded in Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 60, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 714, Silva Estates Unit No. 4, recorded in Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 75, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 748, Silva Estates, Unit No. 6, recorded in Volume 19 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 6, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 773, Unit No. 7, recorded in Volume 19 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 63, Kings County 

Records. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 7 

Tract No. 781, Silva Estates, Unit No. 8, recorded in Volume 23 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 52, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 793, Silva Estates, Unit No. 9, recorded in Volume 23 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 53, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 5 

 

Boundaries of Zone 5 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 668, Wildflower Meadows, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 35, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 6 

 

Boundaries of Zone 6 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 700, Capistrano, Phase 1, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 38, Kings 

County Records. 

 

Tract No. 700, Capistrano, Phase 2, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 67, Kings 

County Records. 

 

Tract No. 700, Capistrano, Phases 3 and 4, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 

95, Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 7 

 

Boundaries of Zone 7 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 687, Silverado Estates, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 87, Kings 

County Records. 

 

Zone 8 

 

Boundaries of Zone 8 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 704, Country Club Villas, Phase 1, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 

56, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 758, Phase 1, recorded in Volume 20 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 10, Kings County 

Records. 

 

Tract No. 758, Phase 2, recorded in Volume 20 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at page 52, Kings County 

Records. 

 

Tract No.783 Country Club Villas 2 – Phase 1, recorded in Volume 20 of Licensed Surveyor’s Plats, at 

page 61, Kings County Records. 

 

 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 8 

Zone 8A 

 

Boundaries of Zone 8A include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 783, Country Club Villas 2, Phase 2, recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at 

Page 75, Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 9 

 

Boundaries of Zone 9 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 369, Manzanita at Lemoore, Phase 1A, recorded in Volume 16 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at 

Page 99, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 369, Manzanita at Lemoore, Unit No. 2, recorded in Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at 

Page 67, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 369, Manzanita at Lemoore, Unit No. 3, recorded in Volume 18 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at 

Page 18, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 763, La Dante Rose Subdivision, recorded in Volume 18 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats,  

at Page 75, Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 10 

 

Boundaries of Zone 10 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 717, Avalon, Phase 1, recorded in Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 2, Kings 

County Records. 

 

Tract No. 717, Avalon, Phase 2A, recorded in Volume 18 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 11 and 

Page 55, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 717, Avalon, Phase 2B, recorded in Volume 18 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats at Page 11 and Page 

55, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 717, Avalon Phase 3, recorded in Volume 19 of Licensed Surveyor’s Plats at Page 42, Kings 

County Records. 

 

Zone 11 

 

Boundaries of Zone 11 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 656, Self Help, recorded in Volume 15 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 95, Kings 

County Records. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 9 

Zone 12 

 

Boundaries of Zone 12 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 751, Summerwind Subdivision, Unit 1, recorded in Volume 18 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at 

Page 6, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 739, College Park, Phase I, recorded in Volume 18 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 76, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 739, College Park, Phase 2, recorded in Volume 19 of Licensed Surveyor’s Plat, at Page 36, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 782, College Park, Phase 3, recorded in Volume 19 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 65, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 789, Unit 4, College Park, Phase 4, recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 

73, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 789, Unit 5, College Park, Phase 5, recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Pages 

74 and 75, Kings County Records. 

 

Tract No. 789, Unit 6, College Park, Phase 6, recorded in Volume 20 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at page 

43, Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 12A 

 

Boundaries of Zone 12A include the following properties: 

 

County Tract No. 789, Unit 7, College Park, Phase 7 recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, 

at Page 75, Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 13 

 

Boundaries of Zone 13 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 733, Covington Place, recorded in Volume 17 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 85, Kings  

County Records. 

 

Plans and Specifications 

 

The plans and specifications for the landscaping, lighting and appurtenant improvements to be maintained by 

the Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore are incorporated herein by reference.  Said plans are a 

part of the improvement plans which are required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of approval of each 

development.  Such detailed plans have been prepared by the various project developers and are on file with 

the City of Lemoore, and are incorporated herein by reference.  Where landscaping plans are not available, the 

areas to be landscaped and the associated maintenance costs have been estimated. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 10 

Description of Work  

 

The work includes maintaining and servicing landscaping, street lights and appurtenant improvements 

described as follows: 

 

Plants, shrubbery, trees, turf, irrigation systems, entry monuments, hardscapes, walls, fencing,  street lights and 

appurtenant improvements in public rights-of-way and easements within the proposed boundary of Zones 1 

through 13 of said Assessment District.  The location of such improvements, as previously described, are 

within the boundaries of the District, and within or appurtenant to the boundaries of the assessed Zones in 

accord with this Report, as shown on the Assessment Diagram, Exhibit "E" herein. 

 

Maintenance means the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and usual maintenance, operation 

and servicing of the lighting, landscaping and appurtenant improvements.  Maintenance for landscaping means, 

but is not limited to, the repair, removal or replacement of landscaping and walls providing for the life, growth, 

health and beauty of landscaping, including cultivation, irrigation, trimming, spraying, fertilizing and treating 

for disease or injury and the removal of trimmings, rubbish, debris and other solid waste.  Maintenance for 

street lights means, but is not limited to the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and usual 

maintenance and repair of street lights including poles, lenses and bulb replacement.  Operating and servicing 

for landscaping improvements means but is not limited to the furnishing of water and electricity for irrigation 

of the landscaping and the maintenance of any of the appurtenant facilities.  For lighting facilities, operating 

means but is not limited to furnishing the utility power necessary for energizing of electroliers. 

 

For purposes of apportioning the assessments, the Assessment District is divided into benefit Zones.  The areas 

included in Zones 1 through 13 of the District which are the subject of this Engineer's Report, are depicted on 

the diagrams prepared for each Zone and apportioned separately as described in Exhibit “C”, Method of 

Assessment, herein. 



EXHIBIT B 
 

Engineer's Estimate 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 11 

EXHIBIT B 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE 
 

Actual costs of maintenance and required periodic replacement of improvements have been determined by the 

Engineer of Work in consultation with the city staff. Such costs are reflected to the extent currently feasible in 

the proposed unchanged assessments for Zones 1 through 13.  It should be noted that, based on these unit cost 

assessments and the improvements to be maintained, serviced and operated in these Zones, the actual costs 

during the past fiscal year and projected for this fiscal year are greater than the proposed unchanged 

assessments.  The excess costs will have to be funded from sources, if any, available to the City other than the 

assessments. 

 

Table 1 details current unit costs for maintenance and replacement. Table 2 shows the total costs to be assessed 

to each Zone.  Table 3 estimates the incidental costs required to process the assessments for these Zones. 

 

TABLE 1 

UNIT COST ESTIMATES  

 
 

Item Unit O&M Replacement 

Street Lights  EA $51.88 $27.27 

Trees  EA $149.46 $6.54 

Turf Square Foot. $1.215 $.053 

Planter Square Foot. $1.215 $.065 

Dump Fee Square Foot. $.0231 0 

Block Wall Square Foot. 0 $.654 

Water/Electricity  Square Foot. $.273 $.065 

 

Note:  The above costs are based on an Employment Cost Index for total compensation for State and local 

government workers of 119.9 (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, December, 2012). 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 12 

TABLE 2 

ESTIMATED COSTS TO ASSESSMENT 

2013-2014  
 

Zone EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $78,535.82   

1 611.5 475 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 1,574.28   

   3. Noticing 475.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 475.00   

   Total Costs to Assessment  $81,060.10  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 1   $81,060.10  

        

        

                

Zone EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $11,713.79   

2 90 90 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 256.21   

   3. Noticing 90.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 90.00   

   Total Costs to Assessment  $12,150.00  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 2   $12,150.00  

        

        

                

Zone EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs (Est.) $14,990.22   

3 292 292 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 828.42   

   3. Noticing 72.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 292.00   

   Total Costs to Assessment  $16,182.64  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 3   $16,182.64  

        

        

               

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $1,695.72   

5   29   29 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 82.56   

   3. Noticing 0.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 29.00   

   Total Costs to Assessment  $1,807.28  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 5   $1,807.28  

        

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 13 

             

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $1,503.58   

6 126 126 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 358.70   

   3. Noticing 0.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 126.00   

   Total Costs to Assessment  $1,988.28  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 6   $1,988.28  

        

       

 

 

             

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $3,941.78   

7   53   53 2. Incidental Costs( See Table 3) 150.88   

   3. Noticing 0.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 53.00   

   Total Costs to Assessment  $4,145.66  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 7   $4,145.66  

        

        

             

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $20,822.26   

8 153 153 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 435.56   

   3. Noticing and Ballots 0.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 153.00   

   Total Costs to Assessment  $21,410.82  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 8   $21,410.82  

        

        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $6,038.56   

8A 45 45 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 213.74   

   3. Noticing 0.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 45.00   

   Total Costs to Assessment  $6,297.30  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 8A   $6,297.30  

        

        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $5,731.61   

9 134 134 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 381.47   

   3. Noticing  0.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 134.00   

   Total Costs to Assessment  $6,247.08  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 9   $6,247.08  



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 14 

        

        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $18,408.89   

10  151 151 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 429.87   

   3. Noticing 0.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 151.00   

   Total Costs to Assessment  $18,989.76  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 10   $18,989.76  

        

        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $1,781.04   

11 36 36 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 102.48   

   3. Noticing 0.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 36.00   

   Total Costs to Assessment  $1,919.52  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 11   $1,919.52  
        

        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $64,387.02   

12 457 457 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 1,300.98   

   3. Noticing 120.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 457.00   

   Total Costs to Assessment  $66,265.00  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 12   $66,265.00  
        

        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $13,573.76   

12A 96 96 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 250.24   

   3. Noticing 0.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 96.00   

   Total Costs to Assessment  $13,920.00  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 12A   $13,920.00  
        

        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $4,823.06   

13 33 33 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 93.94   

   3. Noticing 0.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 33.00   

   Total Costs to Assessment  $4,950.00  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 13   $4,950.00  
        

TOTAL EDU Lots      

  2,306.5 2,165      



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 15 

TABLE 3 

ESTIMATED INCIDENTAL COSTS TO ASSESSMENT 

APRIL 2013 THROUGH MARCH 2014 

 
 Estimated Cost 

Engineering Fees, Legal Fees, and 

City Administrative Costs 

$5,500.00 

 



EXHIBIT C 
 

Method of Assessment 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 16 

EXHIBIT C 

METHOD OF ASSESSMENT 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
LANDSCAPE and LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1 – 13 

 

 

General Discussion 

 

The improvements described in Exhibit “A” are provided for the particular, distinct, special benefit directly 

received by each lot or parcel in Zones 1 through 13 of the Assessment District, above the benefit received by 

the public generally.  Each lot or parcel has been determined to directly and specially benefit proportionally by 

Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU).  

 

City noticing and County administrative expenses will be apportioned equally to each assessment. 

 

The annual maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs of the improvements benefiting the 

Zones of the District described in Exhibit A of this Report, are estimated in Exhibit “B.” 

 

The City is unable to provide funds for such maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the 

described improvements.  The facilities and improvements and their maintenance, operation, repair and 

periodic replacement provide equally for each lot and parcel in Zones 1 through 13 essential safety, lighting, 

security and aesthetically-pleasing public right-of-way landscaping not available to the general community.  

The value, appearance, safety and use of each lot and parcel in Zones 1 through 13 are significantly and 

directly enhanced by regular maintenance and periodic replacement of these improvements.  These are special 

benefits distinct and particular to the lots and parcels in Zones 1 through 13 and not realized by the general 

community.  Therefore, annual maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the described 

improvements, and the funding thereof, provide direct special benefits to the lots and parcels in Zones 1 

through 13, over and above general benefits conferred on real property in the District or to the public at large. 

 

Moreover, the Engineer has determined that each individual lot and parcel or equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) 

is benefited equally in each Zone by such annual maintenance and periodic replacement.  Each lot and parcel 

contains, or will contain in accord with the City's development approvals, a single dwelling unit or equivalent 

dwelling units.  Each lot and parcel or equivalent dwelling unit, therefore derives the same proportionate 

special benefit from the assessed improvements and their regular maintenance and periodic replacement. 

 

Accordingly, the individual annual assessment for fiscal year 2013-14 for each lot and parcel in Zones 1 

through 13 is determined by dividing the total estimated costs of annual maintenance and replacement and 

related notice and processing fees (for fiscal year 2013-14, set forth in Exhibit “B”) by the total number of lots 

and parcels or equivalent dwelling units in these Zones in the District. 

 

The proposed assessment for fiscal year 2013-14 on each lot and parcel in these Zones of the District is set 

forth in Exhibit “D” of this Report.  The proposed assessments are not increased above the annual assessments 

on these lots and parcels for fiscal year 2012-2013 or any previous fiscal year. 

 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 17 

Benefits in Each Zone 

 

The following are summaries of the special benefits in each Zone for which assessments are levied.  Inasmuch 

as no revision in assessments is proposed, the assessment for the preceding year is utilized. Analysis of these 

Zones’ assessments reveals that in every case the actual costs of maintenance were higher than the assessment.  

 

Zone 1 Westfield Park Development and Shopping Center 

 

Within Zone 1, there are 475 parcels and lots.  460 of them are single family residential, 10 acres is 

commercial and one parcel is multiple-family residential.  A listing of these parcels is as follows: 

 

Property Name Parcels Zone 

Tract 616, Windsor Court, Unit 1 95 Single Family 

Tract 640, Windsor Court, Unit 2 111 Single Family 

Tract 685, Windsor Court, Unit 3 47 Single Family 

Tract 686, Windsor Court, Unit 4 25 Single Family 

Tract 707, Windsor Court, Unit 5, Phase 1 82 Single Family 

Tract 630, Cambridge Park, Units 1 & 2 53 Single Family 

Tract 691, Cambridge Park, Unit 3 47 Single Family 

Assessor’s Parcel Map Vol. 21 Pg. 38 14 Commercial 

Assessor’s Parcel Map Vol. 21 Pg. 38, 80 Units 1 Multi Family 

 

Summarized below is a description of special benefits for which assessments are levied in Zone 1. 

 

 The landscaped areas along Hanford-Armona Road, Fox Drive and Lemoore Avenue fronting the 

commercial parcels were required as a condition of site plan review for those parcels and are considered to 

benefit only those commercial areas.  The Engineer of Work has determined that these improvements and 

their maintenance provide a particular and distinct special benefit to the property owners within these 

boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels within these boundaries or the public at 

large. The costs for maintenance of that portion of the landscaping were assessed entirely to the 

commercial parcels on the basis of EDU's.  The City’s expense for this work is minimal, as most of the 

work is privately contracted by the shopping center owners, and the work has so far been done in a manner 

satisfactory to the City.  Should that situation change, the City will assume the work, and assessments will 

be increased accordingly. 

 

 The commercial properties pay for maintenance of their frontage along Hanford-Armona Road, Fox Drive 

and Lemoore Avenue.  The Zone’s expense for this work is currently minimal, as most of the work is 

privately contracted by the shopping center owners, and the work has so far been done in a manner 

satisfactory to the City. 

 

 Maintenance of the remainder of Fox Drive, Lemoore Avenue (south of the commercial development), 

Cinnamon Drive, the entries into the Westfield development, (Brentwood Drive, Coventry Drive and Eton 

Drive), Hanford-Armona Road west of Fox Drive, and Fallenleaf Drive is assessed to the residential 

property owners within the Westfield Park development.  The Engineer of Work has determined that these 

improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and distinct special benefit to the property 

owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels within these 

boundaries or to the public at large. 

 

 No portion of the cost of maintenance of Westfield Park is included in the levies.  The entire cost of 

developing and maintaining the park is being borne by the City of Lemoore. 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 18 

 

For multiple residential properties, one equivalent dwelling unit will be assigned to each multiple family 

dwelling unit. 

 

For commercial or individual properties, equivalent dwelling units are calculated by multiplying the gross 

acreage x 3-1/2. 

 

Zone 2  

 

There are 52 lots in Tract 707 and 38 lots in Tract 691.  The property owners are assessed for maintenance as 

described within Zone 1, along with their portion of the costs of maintenance of Liberty Drive, Cinnamon 

Drive and Hanford-Armona Road.  Maintenance of the improvements described for Zone 1, as well as 

maintenance of the improvements in Liberty Drive, Cinnamon Drive and Hanford-Armona Road, provides a 

particular and special benefit to the lots and parcels in Zone 2, over and above general benefits to the lots and 

parcels within the boundaries or to the public at large. 

 

Zone 3 Silva Estates 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the south right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Silverado Drive and within the west right-of-way and landscape easement of 19
th
 Avenue were included as a 

condition of approval of plans for Silva Estates Tracts 639, 666, 714, 731, 781 and 793.  The Engineer of 

Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and special benefit to 

the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels within 

these boundaries or to the public at large. Therefore, all property owners within these boundaries are assessed 

their proportionate share of the maintenance costs. 

 

There are 95 lots within Tract 639, 22 lots within Tract 666, 21 lots within Tract 731, 26 lots within Tract 714, 

and 16 lots within Silva Estates, Phase 6, 39 lots within Silva Estates, Phase 7, 20 lots within Silva Estates, 

Phase 8, and 52 lots within Silva Estates, Phase 9, all single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance 

of the above improvements have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 5 Wildflower Meadows 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the south right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Cinnamon Drive were included as a condition of approval of plans for Wildflower Meadows, Tract 668.  

The Engineer of Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and 

special benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and 

parcels within these boundaries or to the public at large.  Therefore, all property owners within these 

boundaries are assessed a proportionate share of the maintenance costs.  However, Lot 16 is not being assessed 

due to the fact that it fronts G Street on the south and backs up to the lots within the subdivision.  This lot 

receives no benefits from the landscaping on Cinnamon Drive. 

 

There are 29 assessed lots within Tract 668, all single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance of the 

above improvements have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 6 Capistrano 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the south right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Bush Street were included as a condition of approval of plans for Capistrano, Tract 700.   The Engineer of 

Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and distinct special 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 19 

benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels 

within these boundaries or the public at large. Therefore, all property owners within these boundaries will be 

assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance costs. 

 

There are 126 lots with Tract 700, all single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance of the above 

improvements have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 7 Silverado Estates 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the north right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Silverado Drive and within the west right-of-way and landscape easement of 19
th
 Avenue were included as a 

condition of approval of plans for Silverado Estates, Tract 687.  The Engineer of the Work has determined that 

these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and distinct special benefit to the property 

owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels within these boundaries 

or the public at large.  Therefore, all property owners within these boundaries will be assessed a proportionate 

share of the maintenance costs. 

 

There are 53 lots within Tract 687, all single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance of the above 

improvements have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 8 Country Club Villas 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the north right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Golf Links Drive, the median island in Golf Links Drive, and the entrance features on 18
th
 Avenue and Iona 

Avenue were included as a condition of approval of plans for Country Club Villas, Tract 704.  The Engineer of 

Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and distinct special 

benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels 

within these boundaries or to the public at large. Therefore, all property owners within these boundaries are 

assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance cost.  

 

There are 50 lots within Tract 704, 66 lots within Tract 758, Phase 1 and 2, and 37 lots within Tracts 783, 

Villas, Phase 1, all single-family residential. Assessments for maintenance of the above improvements have 

been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot.  

 

Zone 8A  Country Club Villas II 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the north right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Golf Links Drive, the median island in Golf Links Drive, and the entrance features on 18
th
 Avenue and Iona 

Avenue were included as a condition of approval of plans for Country Club Villas, Tract 783. The Engineer of 

the Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and distinct 

special benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and 

parcels within these boundaries or the public at large. Therefore, all property owners within these boundaries 

will be assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance cost. 

 

There are 45 lots within Tract 783, Phase 2, all single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance of the 

above improvements have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 20 

Zone 9 Manzanita at Lemoore (a.k.a. La Dante Rose) 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the north right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Hanford-Armona Road were included as a condition of approval of plans for Manzanita at Lemoore, Tract 

369.  The Engineer of Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a 

particular and distinct special benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general 

benefits to the lots and parcels within these boundaries or to the public at large.  Therefore, all property owners 

within these boundaries are assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance cost. 

 

There are 95 lots within Tract 369, Phases 1, 2 and 3 and 39 lots within Tract No. 763,  all single-family 

residential.  Assessments for maintenance of the above improvements have been spread based upon one unit of 

assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 10 Avalon 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the south right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Cinnamon Drive and the maintenance of the ponding basin were included as a condition of approval of 

plans for Avalon, Tract 717. The Engineer of Work has determined that these improvements and their 

maintenance provide a particular and distinct special benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, 

over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels within these boundaries or to the public at large.   

Therefore, all property owners within these boundaries are assessed a proportionate share of the maintenance 

cost. 

 

There are 151 lots within Tract 717, all single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance of the above 

improvements have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 11 Self Help 

 

Construction and long-term maintenance of landscaping within the west right-of-way and landscape easement 

of Vine Street were included as a condition of approval of plans for Self Help, Tract 656.  The Engineer of 

Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and distinct special 

benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and parcels 

within these boundaries or the public at large.  Therefore, all property owners within these boundaries will be 

assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance cost. 

 

There are 36 lots within Tract 656, all single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance of the above 

improvements have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 

 

Zone 12  Summerwind and College Park 

 

Construction and long term maintenance and landscaping within the south right-of-way and landscape 

easement of Cinnamon Drive and the west right-of-way of 19
th
 Avenue was a condition of approval for the 

subdivision.  The Engineer of Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a 

particular and distinct special benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general 

benefits to the lots and parcels within these boundaries or to the public at large.  Therefore, all property owners 

within the boundaries are assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance cost. 

 

There are 64 lots within Tract 751 and 163 lots within Tract 739, Phases 1, 2 and 3 and 230 lots within Tract 

789, Phases 4, 5 and 6.  All are single-family residential.  Assessments for maintenance have been spread 

based upon one unit of assessment per each residential lot. 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13 21 

 

Zone 12A  College Park 

 

Construction and long term maintenance and landscaping within the south right-of-way and landscape 

easement of Cinnamon Drive and the west right-of-way of 19
th
 Avenue was a condition of approval for the 

subdivision.  The Engineer of the Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide 

a particular and distinct special benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general 

benefits to the lots and parcels within these boundaries or the public at large.  Therefore, all property owners 

within the boundaries will be assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance cost. 

 

There are 61 lots within Tract 789, Phase 7 and 35 lots within Tract 751, Phase 1.  All are single-family 

residential.  Assessments for maintenance have been spread based upon one unit of assessment per each 

residential lot. 

 

Zone 13  Covington Place 

 

Construction and long term maintenance and landscaping within the landscape easement adjacent to the north 

right of way of Hanford-Armona Road and within the landscape easement adjacent to the west right of way of 

Liberty Drive were included as a condition of approval for plans for Covington Place, Tract 733. The Engineer 

of Work has determined that these improvements and their maintenance provide a particular and distinct 

special benefit to the property owners within these boundaries, over and above general benefits to the lots and 

parcels within these boundaries or to the public at large.  Therefore, all property owners within these 

boundaries are assessed their proportionate share of the maintenance cost. 

 

Individual Assessments 

 

Individual assessments within each Zone are the sum of the assessments for Landscape Maintenance Costs and 

Engineering, Legal, Admistrative and County Processing Fees for that Zone, apportioned to each lot or parcel.  

Total assessments have been rounded to allow even splits to individual parcels. 

 

Hearing Date 

 

A hearing will be held at the regularly scheduled City Council meeting on July 16, 2013.  Any individuals will 

be allowed to give testimony.  At this meeting, after closing the hearing and considering all written and oral 

testimony, the Council will take action with respect to confirming the assessments as proposed or as they may 

be amended by the Council.  The County will be notified of the final assessment amounts. 



EXHIBIT D 
 

Assessment Roll 



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 1 021-510-002-000 $135.00

01 2 021-600-009-000 135.00

01 3 021-360-001-000 135.00

01 4 021-360-002-000 135.00

01 5 021-360-003-000 135.00

01 6 021-360-004-000 $135.00

01 7 021-360-005-000 135.00

01 8 021-360-006-000 135.00

01 9 021-360-007-000 135.00

01 10 021-360-008-000 135.00

01 11 021-360-052-000 $135.00

01 12 021-360-053-000 135.00

01 13 021-360-054-000 135.00

01 14 021-360-055-000 135.00

01 15 021-360-056-000 135.00

01 16 021-360-057-000 $135.00

01 17 021-360-058-000 135.00

01 18 021-360-059-000 135.00

01 19 021-360-060-000 135.00

01 20 021-360-061-000 135.00

01 21 021-360-062-000 $135.00

01 22 021-360-063-000 135.00

01 23 021-360-064-000 135.00

01 24 021-360-065-000 135.00

01 25 021-360-066-000 135.00

01 26 021-360-067-000 $135.00

01 27 021-360-068-000 135.00

01 28 021-370-001-000 135.00

01 29 021-370-002-000 135.00

01 30 021-370-003-000 135.00

01 31 021-370-004-000 $135.00

01 32 021-370-005-000 135.00

01 33 021-370-006-000 135.00

01 34 021-370-007-000 135.00

01 35 021-370-008-000 135.00

01 36 021-370-009-000 $135.00

01 37 021-370-010-000 135.00

01 38 021-370-011-000 135.00

01 39 021-370-012-000 135.00

01 40 021-370-013-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

22



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 41 021-370-014-000 $135.00

01 42 021-370-015-000 135.00

01 43 021-370-016-000 135.00

01 44 021-370-017-000 135.00

01 45 021-370-018-000 135.00

01 46 021-370-019-000 $135.00

01 47 021-370-020-000 135.00

01 48 021-370-021-000 135.00

01 49 021-370-022-000 135.00

01 50 021-370-023-000 135.00

01 51 021-370-024-000 $135.00

01 52 021-370-025-000 135.00

01 53 021-370-026-000 135.00

01 54 021-370-027-000 135.00

01 55 021-370-028-000 135.00

01 56 021-370-029-000 $135.00

01 57 021-370-030-000 135.00

01 58 021-370-031-000 135.00

01 59 021-370-032-000 135.00

01 60 021-370-033-000 135.00

01 61 021-370-034-000 $135.00

01 62 021-370-035-000 135.00

01 63 021-370-036-000 135.00

01 64 021-370-037-000 135.00

01 65 021-370-038-000 135.00

01 66 021-370-039-000 $135.00

01 67 021-370-040-000 135.00

01 68 021-370-041-000 135.00

01 69 021-370-042-000 135.00

01 70 021-370-043-000 135.00

01 71 021-370-044-000 $135.00

01 72 021-370-045-000 135.00

01 73 021-370-046-000 135.00

01 74 021-370-048-000 135.00

01 75 021-370-049-000 135.00

01 76 021-370-050-000 $135.00

01 77 021-370-051-000 135.00

01 78 021-370-052-000 135.00

01 79 021-370-053-000 135.00

01 80 021-370-054-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

23



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 81 021-370-055-000 $135.00

01 82 021-370-056-000 135.00

01 83 021-370-057-000 135.00

01 84 021-370-058-000 135.00

01 85 021-370-059-000 135.00

01 86 021-370-060-000 $135.00

01 87 021-370-061-000 135.00

01 88 021-370-062-000 135.00

01 89 021-370-063-000 135.00

01 90 021-370-064-000 135.00

01 91 021-370-065-000 $135.00

01 92 021-370-066-000 135.00

01 93 021-370-067-000 135.00

01 94 021-370-068-000 135.00

01 95 021-370-069-000 135.00

01 96 021-370-070-000 $135.00

01 97 021-370-071-000 135.00

01 98 021-370-072-000 135.00

01 99 021-370-073-000 135.00

01 100 021-370-074-000 135.00

01 101 021-370-075-000 $135.00

01 102 021-370-076-000 135.00

01 103 021-370-077-000 135.00

01 104 021-370-078-000 135.00

01 105 021-370-079-000 135.00

01 106 021-370-080-000 $135.00

01 107 021-370-081-000 135.00

01 108 021-370-082-000 135.00

01 109 021-370-083-000 135.00

01 110 021-370-084-000 135.00

01 111 021-370-086-000 $135.00

01 112 021-370-087-000 135.00

01 113 021-370-088-000 135.00

01 114 021-370-089-000 135.00

01 115 021-370-090-000 135.00

01 116 021-370-091-000 $135.00

01 117 021-370-092-000 135.00

01 118 021-370-093-000 135.00

01 119 021-370-094-000 135.00

01 120 021-370-095-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

24



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 121 021-370-096-000 $135.00

01 122 021-370-097-000 135.00

01 123 021-370-098-000 135.00

01 124 021-370-099-000 135.00

01 125 021-370-100-000 135.00

01 126 021-370-101-000 $135.00

01 127 021-370-102-000 135.00

01 128 021-370-103-000 135.00

01 129 021-380-001-000 274.05

01 130 021-380-002-000 3,595.73

01 131 021-380-003-000 $326.03

01 132 021-380-004-000 359.10

01 133 021-380-005-000 1,809.68

01 134 021-380-006-000 141.75

01 135 021-380-007-000 198.45

01 136 021-380-010-000 $203.18

01 137 021-380-011-000 141.75

01 138 021-380-012-000 56.70

01 139 021-380-013-000 141.75

01 140 021-380-014-000 363.83

01 141 021-380-015-000 $302.40

01 142 021-380-016-000 245.70

01 143 021-380-018-000 10,800.00

01 144 021-470-001-000 135.00

01 145 021-470-002-000 135.00

01 146 021-470-003-000 $135.00

01 147 021-470-004-000 135.00

01 148 021-470-005-000 135.00

01 149 021-470-006-000 135.00

01 150 021-470-007-000 135.00

01 151 021-470-008-000 $135.00

01 152 021-470-009-000 135.00

01 153 021-470-010-000 135.00

01 154 021-470-011-000 135.00

01 155 021-470-012-000 135.00

01 156 021-470-013-000 $135.00

01 157 021-470-014-000 135.00

01 158 021-470-015-000 135.00

01 159 021-470-016-000 135.00

01 160 021-470-017-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

25



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 161 021-470-018-000 $135.00

01 162 021-470-019-000 135.00

01 163 021-470-020-000 135.00

01 164 021-470-021-000 135.00

01 165 021-470-022-000 135.00

01 166 021-470-023-000 $135.00

01 167 021-470-024-000 135.00

01 168 021-470-025-000 135.00

01 169 021-470-026-000 135.00

01 170 021-470-027-000 135.00

01 171 021-470-028-000 $135.00

01 172 021-470-029-000 135.00

01 173 021-470-030-000 135.00

01 174 021-470-031-000 135.00

01 175 021-470-032-000 135.00

01 176 021-470-033-000 $135.00

01 177 021-470-034-000 135.00

01 178 021-470-035-000 135.00

01 179 021-470-036-000 135.00

01 180 021-470-037-000 135.00

01 181 021-470-038-000 $135.00

01 182 021-470-039-000 135.00

01 183 021-470-040-000 135.00

01 184 021-470-041-000 135.00

01 185 021-470-042-000 135.00

01 186 021-470-043-000 $135.00

01 187 021-470-044-000 135.00

01 188 021-470-045-000 135.00

01 189 021-480-001-000 135.00

01 190 021-480-002-000 135.00

01 191 021-480-003-000 $135.00

01 192 021-480-004-000 135.00

01 193 021-480-005-000 135.00

01 194 021-480-006-000 135.00

01 195 021-480-007-000 135.00

01 196 021-480-008-000 $135.00

01 197 021-480-009-000 135.00

01 198 021-480-010-000 135.00

01 199 021-480-011-000 135.00

01 200 021-480-012-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

26



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 201 021-480-013-000 $135.00

01 202 021-480-014-000 135.00

01 203 021-480-015-000 135.00

01 204 021-480-016-000 135.00

01 205 021-480-017-000 135.00

01 206 021-480-018-000 $135.00

01 207 021-480-019-000 135.00

01 208 021-480-020-000 135.00

01 209 021-480-021-000 135.00

01 210 021-480-022-000 135.00

01 211 021-480-023-000 $135.00

01 212 021-480-024-000 135.00

01 213 021-480-025-000 135.00

01 214 021-480-026-000 135.00

01 215 021-480-027-000 135.00

01 216 021-480-028-000 $135.00

01 217 021-480-029-000 135.00

01 218 021-480-030-000 135.00

01 219 021-480-031-000 135.00

01 220 021-480-032-000 135.00

01 221 021-480-033-000 $135.00

01 222 021-480-034-000 135.00

01 223 021-480-035-000 135.00

01 224 021-480-036-000 135.00

01 225 021-480-037-000 135.00

01 226 021-480-038-000 $135.00

01 227 021-480-039-000 135.00

01 228 021-480-040-000 135.00

01 229 021-480-041-000 135.00

01 230 021-480-042-000 135.00

01 231 021-490-001-000 $135.00

01 232 021-490-002-000 135.00

01 233 021-490-003-000 135.00

01 234 021-490-004-000 135.00

01 235 021-490-005-000 135.00

01 236 021-490-006-000 $135.00

01 237 021-490-007-000 135.00

01 238 021-490-008-000 135.00

01 239 021-490-009-000 135.00

01 240 021-490-010-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

27



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 241 021-490-011-000 $135.00

01 242 021-490-012-000 135.00

01 243 021-490-013-000 135.00

01 244 021-490-014-000 135.00

01 245 021-490-015-000 135.00

01 246 021-490-016-000 $135.00

01 247 021-490-017-000 135.00

01 248 021-490-018-000 135.00

01 249 021-490-019-000 135.00

01 250 021-490-020-000 135.00

01 251 021-490-021-000 $135.00

01 252 021-490-022-000 135.00

01 253 021-490-023-000 135.00

01 254 021-490-024-000 135.00

01 255 021-490-025-000 135.00

01 256 021-490-026-000 $135.00

01 257 021-490-027-000 135.00

01 258 021-490-028-000 135.00

01 259 021-490-029-000 135.00

01 260 021-490-030-000 135.00

01 261 021-490-031-000 $135.00

01 262 021-490-032-000 135.00

01 263 021-490-033-000 135.00

01 264 021-490-034-000 135.00

01 265 021-490-035-000 135.00

01 266 021-490-036-000 $135.00

01 267 021-490-037-000 135.00

01 268 021-490-038-000 135.00

01 269 021-490-039-000 135.00

01 270 021-490-040-000 135.00

01 271 021-490-041-000 $135.00

01 272 021-490-042-000 135.00

01 273 021-490-043-000 135.00

01 274 021-490-044-000 135.00

01 275 021-490-045-000 135.00

01 276 021-490-046-000 $135.00

01 277 021-490-047-000 135.00

01 278 021-490-048-000 135.00

01 279 021-490-049-000 135.00

01 280 021-490-050-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

28



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 281 021-490-051-000 $135.00

01 282 021-490-052-000 135.00

01 283 021-490-053-000 135.00

01 284 021-490-054-000 135.00

01 285 021-490-055-000 135.00

01 286 021-490-056-000 $135.00

01 287 021-490-057-000 135.00

01 288 021-490-058-000 135.00

01 289 021-490-059-000 135.00

01 290 021-490-060-000 135.00

01 291 021-490-061-000 $135.00

01 292 021-490-062-000 135.00

01 293 021-490-063-000 135.00

01 294 021-510-004-000 135.00

01 295 021-510-005-000 135.00

01 296 021-510-006-000 $135.00

01 297 021-510-008-000 135.00

01 298 021-510-009-000 135.00

01 299 021-510-010-000 135.00

01 300 021-510-011-000 135.00

01 301 021-510-012-000 $135.00

01 302 021-510-013-000 135.00

01 303 021-510-014-000 135.00

01 304 021-510-015-000 135.00

01 305 021-510-016-000 135.00

01 306 021-510-017-000 $135.00

01 307 021-510-018-000 135.00

01 308 021-510-019-000 135.00

01 309 021-510-020-000 135.00

01 310 021-510-022-000 135.00

01 311 021-510-023-000 $135.00

01 312 021-510-024-000 135.00

01 313 021-510-025-000 135.00

01 314 021-510-026-000 135.00

01 315 021-510-027-000 135.00

01 316 021-510-028-000 $135.00

01 317 021-510-029-000 135.00

01 318 021-510-030-000 135.00

01 319 021-510-031-000 135.00

01 320 021-510-033-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

29



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 321 021-510-034-000 $135.00

01 322 021-510-035-000 135.00

01 323 021-510-036-000 135.00

01 324 021-510-037-000 135.00

01 325 021-510-038-000 135.00

01 326 021-510-039-000 $135.00

01 327 021-510-040-000 135.00

01 328 021-510-041-000 135.00

01 329 021-510-043-000 135.00

01 330 021-510-044-000 135.00

01 331 021-510-045-000 $135.00

01 332 021-510-046-000 135.00

01 333 021-510-047-000 135.00

01 334 021-510-048-000 135.00

01 335 021-510-049-000 135.00

01 336 021-510-050-000 $135.00

01 337 021-510-051-000 135.00

01 338 021-510-052-000 135.00

01 339 021-510-053-000 135.00

01 340 021-530-001-000 135.00

01 341 021-530-002-000 $135.00

01 342 021-530-003-000 135.00

01 343 021-530-004-000 135.00

01 344 021-530-005-000 135.00

01 345 021-530-006-000 135.00

01 346 021-530-009-000 $135.00

01 347 021-530-010-000 135.00

01 348 021-530-011-000 135.00

01 349 021-530-012-000 135.00

01 350 021-530-013-000 135.00

01 351 021-530-015-000 $135.00

01 352 021-530-016-000 135.00

01 353 021-530-017-000 135.00

01 354 021-530-018-000 135.00

01 355 021-530-019-000 135.00

01 356 021-530-020-000 $135.00

01 357 021-530-021-000 135.00

01 358 021-530-022-000 135.00

01 359 021-530-023-000 135.00

01 360 021-530-024-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

30



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 361 021-530-025-000 $135.00

01 362 021-530-026-000 135.00

01 363 021-530-027-000 135.00

01 364 021-530-028-000 135.00

01 365 021-530-029-000 135.00

01 366 021-530-030-000 $135.00

01 367 021-530-031-000 135.00

01 368 021-530-032-000 135.00

01 369 021-530-033-000 135.00

01 370 021-530-034-000 135.00

01 371 021-530-035-000 $135.00

01 372 021-530-036-000 135.00

01 373 021-530-037-000 135.00

01 374 021-580-027-000 135.00

01 375 021-580-028-000 135.00

01 376 021-580-029-000 $135.00

01 377 021-580-030-000 135.00

01 378 021-580-031-000 135.00

01 379 021-580-064-000 135.00

01 380 021-580-033-000 135.00

01 381 021-580-034-000 $135.00

01 382 021-580-035-000 135.00

01 383 021-580-036-000 135.00

01 384 021-580-037-000 135.00

01 385 021-580-038-000 135.00

01 386 021-580-039-000 $135.00

01 387 021-580-040-000 135.00

01 388 021-580-041-000 135.00

01 389 021-580-042-000 135.00

01 390 021-580-043-000 135.00

01 391 021-580-044-000 $135.00

01 392 021-580-053-000 135.00

01 393 021-580-054-000 135.00

01 394 021-580-055-000 135.00

01 395 021-600-002-000 135.00

01 396 021-600-003-000 $135.00

01 397 021-600-004-000 135.00

01 398 021-600-005-000 135.00

01 399 021-600-006-000 135.00

01 400 021-600-007-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

31



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 401 021-600-008-000 $135.00

01 402 021-600-013-000 135.00

01 403 021-600-014-000 135.00

01 404 021-600-015-000 135.00

01 405 021-600-016-000 135.00

01 406 021-600-017-000 $135.00

01 407 021-600-018-000 135.00

01 408 021-600-019-000 135.00

01 409 021-600-020-000 135.00

01 410 021-600-023-000 135.00

01 411 021-600-024-000 $135.00

01 412 021-600-025-000 135.00

01 413 021-600-026-000 135.00

01 414 021-600-027-000 135.00

01 415 021-600-028-000 135.00

01 416 021-600-029-000 $135.00

01 417 021-600-030-000 135.00

01 418 021-600-031-000 135.00

01 419 021-600-032-000 135.00

01 420 021-600-033-000 135.00

01 421 021-600-034-000 $135.00

01 422 021-600-035-000 135.00

01 423 021-600-036-000 135.00

01 424 021-600-037-000 135.00

01 425 021-600-038-000 135.00

01 426 021-600-039-000 $135.00

01 427 021-600-040-000 135.00

01 428 021-600-041-000 135.00

01 429 021-600-042-000 135.00

01 430 021-600-043-000 135.00

01 431 021-600-045-000 $135.00

01 432 021-600-046-000 135.00

01 433 021-600-047-000 135.00

01 434 021-600-048-000 135.00

01 435 021-600-049-000 135.00

01 436 021-600-050-000 $135.00

01 437 021-600-051-000 135.00

01 438 021-600-052-000 135.00

01 439 021-600-053-000 135.00

01 440 021-600-054-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

32



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

01 441 021-600-055-000 $135.00

01 442 021-600-056-000 135.00

01 443 021-600-057-000 135.00

01 444 021-600-058-000 135.00

01 445 021-600-059-000 135.00

01 446 021-600-060-000 $135.00

01 447 021-600-061-000 135.00

01 448 021-600-064-000 135.00

01 449 021-600-065-000 135.00

01 450 021-600-066-000 135.00

01 451 021-600-067-000 $135.00

01 452 021-600-068-000 135.00

01 453 021-600-069-000 135.00

01 454 021-600-070-000 135.00

01 455 021-600-071-000 135.00

01 456 021-600-072-000 $135.00

01 457 021-600-073-000 135.00

01 458 021-600-074-000 135.00

01 459 021-600-075-000 135.00

01 460 021-600-076-000 135.00

01 461 021-600-077-000 $135.00

01 462 021-600-078-000 135.00

01 463 021-600-079-000 135.00

01 464 021-600-080-000 135.00

01 465 021-600-081-000 135.00

01 466 021-600-082-000 $135.00

01 467 021-600-083-000 135.00

01 468 021-600-084-000 135.00

01 469 021-600-085-000 135.00

01 470 021-600-086-000 135.00

01 471 021-600-087-000 $135.00

01 472 021-600-088-000 135.00

01 473 021-600-089-000 135.00

01 474 021-600-090-000 135.00
01 475 022-910-092-000 135.00

Total Assessment Zone 1 $81,060.10

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

33



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

02 1 021-580-001-000 $135.00

02 2 021-580-002-000 135.00

02 3 021-580-003-000 135.00

02 4 021-580-004-000 135.00

02 5 021-580-005-000 135.00

02 6 021-580-006-000 $135.00

02 7 021-580-007-000 135.00

02 8 021-580-008-000 135.00

02 9 021-580-009-000 135.00

02 10 021-580-010-000 135.00

02 11 021-580-011-000 $135.00

02 12 021-580-012-000 135.00

02 13 021-580-013-000 135.00

02 14 021-580-014-000 135.00

02 15 021-580-015-000 135.00

02 16 021-580-016-000 $135.00

02 17 021-580-017-000 135.00

02 18 021-580-018-000 135.00

02 19 021-580-019-000 135.00

02 20 021-580-062-000 135.00

02 21 021-580-063-000 $135.00

02 22 021-580-022-000 135.00

02 23 021-580-023-000 135.00

02 24 021-580-024-000 135.00

02 25 021-580-025-000 135.00

02 26 021-580-026-000 $135.00

02 27 021-580-045-000 135.00

02 28 021-580-046-000 135.00

02 29 021-580-047-000 135.00

02 30 021-580-050-000 135.00

02 31 021-580-051-000 $135.00

02 32 021-580-052-000 135.00

02 33 021-580-056-000 135.00

02 34 021-580-057-000 135.00

02 35 021-580-058-000 135.00

02 36 021-580-059-000 $135.00

02 37 021-580-060-000 135.00

02 38 021-580-061-000 135.00

02 39 021-610-001-000 135.00

02 40 021-610-002-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

34



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

02 41 021-610-003-000 $135.00

02 42 021-610-004-000 135.00

02 43 021-610-005-000 135.00

02 44 021-610-006-000 135.00

02 45 021-610-007-000 135.00

02 46 021-610-008-000 $135.00

02 47 021-610-009-000 135.00

02 48 021-610-010-000 135.00

02 49 021-610-011-000 135.00

02 50 021-610-012-000 135.00

02 51 021-610-013-000 $135.00

02 52 021-610-014-000 135.00

02 53 021-610-016-000 135.00

02 54 021-610-017-000 135.00

02 55 021-610-018-000 135.00

02 56 021-610-019-000 $135.00

02 57 021-610-020-000 135.00

02 58 021-610-021-000 135.00

02 59 021-610-022-000 135.00

02 60 021-610-023-000 135.00

02 61 021-610-024-000 $135.00

02 62 021-610-025-000 135.00

02 63 021-610-026-000 135.00

02 64 021-610-027-000 135.00

02 65 021-610-028-000 135.00

02 66 021-610-029-000 $135.00

02 67 021-610-030-000 135.00

02 68 021-610-031-000 135.00

02 69 021-610-032-000 135.00

02 70 021-610-033-000 135.00

02 71 021-610-034-000 $135.00

02 72 021-610-035-000 135.00

02 73 021-610-037-000 135.00

02 74 021-610-038-000 135.00

02 75 021-610-039-000 135.00

02 76 021-610-040-000 $135.00

02 77 021-610-041-000 135.00

02 78 021-610-042-000 135.00

02 79 021-610-043-000 135.00

02 80 021-610-044-000 135.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

35



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

02 81 021-610-045-000 $135.00

02 82 021-610-046-000 135.00

02 83 021-610-047-000 135.00

02 84 021-610-048-000 135.00

02 85 021-610-049-000 135.00

02 86 021-610-050-000 $135.00

02 87 021-610-051-000 135.00

02 88 021-610-052-000 135.00

02 89 021-610-053-000 135.00
02 90 021-610-054-000 135.00

Total Assessment Zone 2 $12,150.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

36



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 1 023-330-001-000 $55.42

03 2 023-330-002-000 55.42

03 3 023-330-003-000 55.42

03 4 023-330-004-000 55.42

03 5 023-330-005-000 55.42

03 6 023-330-006-000 $55.42

03 7 023-330-007-000 55.42

03 8 023-330-008-000 55.42

03 9 023-330-009-000 55.42

03 10 023-330-010-000 55.42

03 11 023-330-011-000 $55.42

03 12 023-330-012-000 55.42

03 13 023-330-013-000 55.42

03 14 023-330-014-000 55.42

03 15 023-330-015-000 55.42

03 16 023-330-016-000 $55.42

03 17 023-330-017-000 55.42

03 18 023-330-018-000 55.42

03 19 023-330-019-000 55.42

03 20 023-330-020-000 55.42

03 21 023-330-021-000 $55.42

03 22 023-330-022-000 55.42

03 23 023-330-023-000 55.42

03 24 023-330-024-000 55.42

03 25 023-330-025-000 55.42

03 26 023-330-026-000 $55.42

03 27 023-330-027-000 55.42

03 28 023-330-028-000 55.42

03 29 023-330-029-000 55.42

03 30 023-330-030-000 55.42

03 31 023-330-031-000 $55.42

03 32 023-330-032-000 55.42

03 33 023-330-033-000 55.42

03 34 023-330-034-000 55.42

03 35 023-330-035-000 55.42

03 36 023-330-036-000 $55.42

03 37 023-330-037-000 55.42

03 38 023-330-038-000 55.42

03 39 023-330-039-000 55.42

03 40 023-330-040-000 55.42

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

37



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 41 023-330-041-000 $55.42

03 42 023-330-042-000 55.42

03 43 023-330-043-000 55.42

03 44 023-330-044-000 55.42

03 45 023-330-045-000 55.42

03 46 023-330-046-000 $55.42

03 47 023-330-047-000 55.42

03 48 023-330-048-000 55.42

03 49 023-330-049-000 55.42

03 50 023-330-050-000 55.42

03 51 023-330-051-000 $55.42

03 52 023-330-052-000 55.42

03 53 023-330-053-000 55.42

03 54 023-330-054-000 55.42

03 55 023-330-055-000 55.42

03 56 023-330-056-000 $55.42

03 57 023-330-057-000 55.42

03 58 023-330-058-000 55.42

03 59 023-330-059-000 55.42

03 60 023-330-060-000 55.42

03 61 023-330-061-000 $55.42

03 62 023-330-062-000 55.42

03 63 023-330-063-000 55.42

03 64 023-330-064-000 55.42

03 65 023-330-065-000 55.42

03 66 023-330-066-000 $55.42

03 67 023-330-067-000 55.42

03 68 023-330-068-000 55.42

03 69 023-330-069-000 55.42

03 70 023-330-070-000 55.42

03 71 023-330-071-000 $55.42

03 72 023-330-072-000 55.42

03 73 023-330-073-000 55.42

03 74 023-330-074-000 55.42

03 75 023-330-075-000 55.42

03 76 023-330-076-000 $55.42

03 77 023-330-077-000 55.42

03 78 023-330-078-000 55.42

03 79 023-330-079-000 55.42

03 80 023-330-080-000 55.42

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

38



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 81 023-330-081-000 $55.42

03 82 023-330-082-000 55.42

03 83 023-330-083-000 55.42

03 84 023-330-084-000 55.42

03 85 023-330-085-000 55.42

03 86 023-330-086-000 $55.42

03 87 023-330-087-000 55.42

03 88 023-330-088-000 55.42

03 89 023-330-089-000 55.42

03 90 023-330-090-000 55.42

03 91 023-330-091-000 $55.42

03 92 023-330-092-000 55.42

03 93 023-330-093-000 55.42

03 94 023-330-094-000 55.42

03 95 023-330-095-000 55.42

03 96 023-340-003-000 $55.42

03 97 023-340-004-000 55.42

03 98 023-340-005-000 55.42

03 99 023-340-006-000 55.42

03 100 023-340-007-000 55.42

03 101 023-340-008-000 $55.42

03 102 023-340-009-000 55.42

03 103 023-340-010-000 55.42

03 104 023-340-011-000 55.42

03 105 023-340-012-000 55.42

03 106 023-340-013-000 $55.42

03 107 023-340-014-000 55.42

03 108 023-340-015-000 55.42

03 109 023-340-016-000 55.42

03 110 023-340-017-000 55.42

03 111 023-340-018-000 $55.42

03 112 023-340-019-000 55.42

03 113 023-340-020-000 55.42

03 114 023-340-021-000 55.42

03 115 023-340-022-000 55.42

03 116 023-340-023-000 $55.42

03 117 023-340-024-000 55.42

03 118 023-350-003-000 55.42

03 119 023-350-004-000 55.42

03 120 023-350-005-000 55.42

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

39



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 121 023-350-006-000 $55.42

03 122 023-350-007-000 55.42

03 123 023-350-008-000 55.42

03 124 023-350-009-000 55.42

03 125 023-350-010-000 55.42

03 126 023-350-011-000 $55.42

03 127 023-350-012-000 55.42

03 128 023-350-013-000 55.42

03 129 023-350-014-000 55.42

03 130 023-350-015-000 55.42

03 131 023-350-016-000 $55.42

03 132 023-350-017-000 55.42

03 133 023-350-018-000 55.42

03 134 023-350-019-000 55.42

03 135 023-350-020-000 55.42

03 136 023-350-021-000 $55.42

03 137 023-350-022-000 55.42

03 138 023-350-023-000 55.42

03 139 023-350-028-000 55.42

03 140 023-350-029-000 55.42

03 141 023-350-030-000 $55.42

03 142 023-350-031-000 55.42

03 143 023-350-032-000 55.42

03 144 023-350-033-000 55.42

03 145 023-350-034-000 55.42

03 146 023-350-035-000 $55.42

03 147 023-350-036-000 55.42

03 148 023-350-037-000 55.42

03 149 023-350-038-000 55.42

03 150 023-350-039-000 55.42

03 151 023-350-040-000 $55.42

03 152 023-350-041-000 55.42

03 153 023-350-042-000 55.42

03 154 023-350-043-000 55.42

03 155 023-350-046-000 55.42

03 156 023-350-047-000 $55.42

03 157 023-350-048-000 55.42

03 158 023-350-049-000 55.42

03 159 023-350-050-000 55.42

03 160 023-350-051-000 55.42

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

40



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 161 023-350-052-000 $55.42

03 162 023-350-053-000 55.42

03 163 023-350-054-000 55.42

03 164 023-350-055-000 55.42

03 165 023-350-056-000 55.42

03 166 023-350-057-000 $55.42

03 167 023-350-058-000 55.42

03 168 023-350-059-000 55.42

03 169 023-350-060-000 55.42

03 170 023-350-061-000 55.42

03 171 023-350-062-000 $55.42

03 172 023-350-063-000 55.42

03 173 023-350-064-000 55.42

03 174 023-350-065-000 55.42

03 175 023-350-066-000 55.42

03 176 023-350-067-000 $55.42

03 177 023-350-068-000 55.42

03 178 023-350-069-000 55.42

03 179 023-350-070-000 55.42

03 180 023-350-071-000 55.42

03 181 023-350-072-000 $55.42

03 182 023-350-077-000 55.42

03 183 023-530-001-000 55.42

03 184 023-530-002-000 55.42

03 185 023-530-003-000 55.42

03 186 023-530-004-000 $55.42

03 187 023-530-005-000 55.42

03 188 023-530-006-000 55.42

03 189 023-530-007-000 55.42

03 190 023-530-008-000 55.42

03 191 023-530-009-000 $55.42

03 192 023-530-010-000 55.42

03 193 023-530-011-000 55.42

03 194 023-530-012-000 55.42

03 195 023-530-013-000 55.42

03 196 023-530-014-000 $55.42

03 197 023-530-015-000 55.42

03 198 023-530-016-000 55.42

03 199 023-530-017-000 55.42

03 200 023-530-018-000 55.42

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

41



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 201 023-530-019-000 $55.42

03 202 023-530-020-000 55.42

03 203 023-530-021-000 55.42

03 204 023-530-022-000 55.42

03 205 023-530-023-000 55.42

03 206 023-530-024-000 $55.42

03 207 023-530-025-000 55.42

03 208 023-530-026-000 55.42

03 209 023-570-001-000 55.42

03 210 023-570-002-000 55.42

03 211 023-570-003-000 $55.42

03 212 023-570-004-000 55.42

03 213 023-570-005-000 55.42

03 214 023-570-006-000 55.42

03 215 023-570-007-000 55.42

03 216 023-570-008-000 $55.42

03 217 023-570-009-000 55.42

03 218 023-570-010-000 55.42

03 219 023-580-001-000 55.42

03 220 023-580-002-000 55.42

03 221 023-580-003-000 $55.42

03 222 023-580-004-000 55.42

03 223 023-580-005-000 55.42

03 224 023-580-006-000 55.42

03 225 023-580-007-000 55.42

03 226 023-580-008-000 $55.42

03 227 023-580-009-000 55.42

03 228 023-580-010-000 55.42

03 229 023-580-011-000 55.42

03 230 023-580-012-000 55.42

03 231 023-580-013-000 $55.42

03 232 023-580-014-000 55.42

03 233 023-580-015-000 55.42

03 234 023-580-016-000 55.42

03 235 023-580-017-000 55.42

03 236 023-580-018-000 $55.42

03 237 023-580-019-000 55.42

03 238 023-580-020-000 55.42

03 239 023-580-021-000 55.42

03 240 023-580-022-000 55.42

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

42



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 241 023-580-023-000 $55.42

03 242 023-580-024-000 55.42

03 243 023-580-025-000 55.42

03 244 023-580-026-000 55.42

03 245 023-580-027-000 55.42

03 246 023-580-028-000 $55.42

03 247 023-580-029-000 55.42

03 248 023-580-030-000 55.42

03 249 023-580-031-000 55.42

03 250 023-580-032-000 55.42

03 251 023-580-033-000 $55.42

03 252 023-580-034-000 55.42

03 253 023-580-035-000 55.42

03 254 023-580-036-000 55.42

03 255 023-580-037-000 55.42

03 256 023-580-038-000 $55.42

03 257 023-580-039-000 55.42

03 258 023-580-040-000 55.42

03 259 023-580-041-000 55.42

03 260 023-580-042-000 55.42

03 261 023-580-043-000 $55.42

03 262 023-580-044-000 55.42

03 263 023-580-045-000 55.42

03 264 023-580-046-000 55.42

03 265 023-580-047-000 55.42

03 266 023-580-048-000 $55.42

03 267 023-580-049-000 55.42

03 268 023-580-050-000 55.42

03 269 023-580-051-000 55.42

03 270 023-580-052-000 55.42

03 271 023-590-003-000 $55.42

03 272 023-590-004-000 55.42

03 273 023-590-005-000 55.42

03 274 023-590-006-000 55.42

03 275 023-590-007-000 55.42

03 276 023-590-008-000 $55.42

03 277 023-590-009-000 55.42

03 278 023-590-010-000 55.42

03 279 023-590-011-000 55.42

03 280 023-590-012-000 55.42

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

43



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

03 281 023-590-013-000 $55.42

03 282 023-590-014-000 55.42

03 283 023-590-015-000 55.42

03 284 023-590-016-000 55.42

03 285 023-590-017-000 55.42

03 286 023-590-018-000 $55.42

03 287 023-590-019-000 55.42

03 288 023-590-020-000 55.42

03 289 023-590-021-000 55.42

03 290 023-360-040-000 55.42

03 291 023-360-041-000 $55.42
03 292 023-360-042-000 55.42

Total Assessment Zone 3 $16,182.64

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

44



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

05 1 021-360-019-000 $62.32

05 2 021-360-020-000 62.32

05 3 021-360-021-000 62.32

05 4 021-360-022-000 62.32

05 5 021-360-023-000 62.32

05 6 021-360-024-000 $62.32

05 7 021-360-027-000 62.32

05 8 021-360-028-000 62.32

05 9 021-360-029-000 62.32

05 10 021-360-030-000 62.32

05 11 021-360-031-000 $62.32

05 12 021-360-032-000 62.32

05 13 021-360-033-000 62.32

05 14 021-360-034-000 62.32

05 15 021-360-035-000 62.32

05 16 021-360-036-000 $62.32

05 17 021-360-037-000 62.32

05 18 021-360-038-000 62.32

05 19 021-360-039-000 62.32

05 20 021-360-040-000 62.32

05 21 021-360-041-000 $62.32

05 22 021-360-043-000 62.32

05 23 021-360-044-000 62.32

05 24 021-360-045-000 62.32

05 25 021-360-046-000 62.32

05 26 021-360-047-000 $62.32

05 27 021-360-048-000 62.32

05 28 021-360-049-000 62.32
05 29 021-360-050-000 62.32

Total Assessment Zone 5 $1,807.28

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

45



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

06 1 023-050-002-000 $15.78

06 2 023-050-003-000 15.78

06 3 023-050-004-000 15.78

06 4 023-050-005-000 15.78

06 5 023-050-006-000 15.78

06 6 023-050-007-000 $15.78

06 7 023-050-008-000 15.78

06 8 023-050-009-000 15.78

06 9 023-050-010-000 15.78

06 10 023-050-011-000 15.78

06 11 023-050-012-000 $15.78

06 12 023-050-013-000 15.78

06 13 023-050-014-000 15.78

06 14 023-050-015-000 15.78

06 15 023-050-016-000 15.78

06 16 023-050-017-000 $15.78

06 17 023-050-018-000 15.78

06 18 023-050-019-000 15.78

06 19 023-050-020-000 15.78

06 20 023-050-021-000 15.78

06 21 023-050-022-000 $15.78

06 22 023-050-023-000 15.78

06 23 023-050-024-000 15.78

06 24 023-050-025-000 15.78

06 25 023-050-026-000 15.78

06 26 023-050-027-000 $15.78

06 27 023-050-028-000 15.78

06 28 023-050-029-000 15.78

06 29 023-050-030-000 15.78

06 30 023-060-001-000 15.78

06 31 023-060-002-000 $15.78

06 32 023-060-003-000 15.78

06 33 023-060-004-000 15.78

06 34 023-060-005-000 15.78

06 35 023-060-006-000 15.78

06 36 023-060-007-000 $15.78

06 37 023-060-008-000 15.78

06 38 023-060-009-000 15.78

06 39 023-060-010-000 15.78

06 40 023-060-011-000 15.78

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

46



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

06 41 023-060-012-000 $15.78

06 42 023-060-013-000 15.78

06 43 023-060-014-000 15.78

06 44 023-060-015-000 15.78

06 45 023-060-016-000 15.78

06 46 023-060-017-000 $15.78

06 47 023-060-018-000 15.78

06 48 023-060-019-000 15.78

06 49 023-060-020-000 15.78

06 50 023-060-021-000 15.78

06 51 023-060-022-000 $15.78

06 52 023-060-023-000 15.78

06 53 023-060-024-000 15.78

06 54 023-060-025-000 15.78

06 55 023-060-026-000 15.78

06 56 023-060-027-000 $15.78

06 57 023-060-028-000 15.78

06 58 023-060-029-000 15.78

06 59 023-060-030-000 15.78

06 60 023-060-031-000 15.78

06 61 023-060-032-000 $15.78

06 62 023-060-033-000 15.78

06 63 023-060-034-000 15.78

06 64 023-060-035-000 15.78

06 65 023-060-036-000 15.78

06 66 023-060-037-000 $15.78

06 67 023-060-038-000 15.78

06 68 023-060-039-000 15.78

06 69 023-060-040-000 15.78

06 70 023-060-041-000 15.78

06 71 023-060-042-000 $15.78

06 72 023-060-043-000 15.78

06 73 023-060-044-000 15.78

06 74 023-060-045-000 15.78

06 75 023-060-046-000 15.78

06 76 023-070-002-000 $15.78

06 77 023-070-003-000 15.78

06 78 023-070-004-000 15.78

06 79 023-070-005-000 15.78

06 80 023-070-006-000 15.78

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

47



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

06 81 023-070-007-000 $15.78

06 82 023-070-008-000 15.78

06 83 023-070-009-000 15.78

06 84 023-070-010-000 15.78

06 85 023-070-011-000 15.78

06 86 023-070-012-000 $15.78

06 87 023-070-013-000 15.78

06 88 023-070-014-000 15.78

06 89 023-070-015-000 15.78

06 90 023-070-016-000 15.78

06 91 023-070-017-000 $15.78

06 92 023-070-018-000 15.78

06 93 023-070-019-000 15.78

06 94 023-070-020-000 15.78

06 95 023-070-021-000 15.78

06 96 023-070-022-000 $15.78

06 97 023-070-023-000 15.78

06 98 023-070-024-000 15.78

06 99 023-070-025-000 15.78

06 100 023-070-026-000 15.78

06 101 023-070-027-000 $15.78

06 102 023-070-028-000 15.78

06 103 023-070-029-000 15.78

06 104 023-070-030-000 15.78

06 105 023-070-031-000 15.78

06 106 023-070-032-000 $15.78

06 107 023-070-033-000 15.78

06 108 023-070-034-000 15.78

06 109 023-070-035-000 15.78

06 110 023-070-036-000 15.78

06 111 023-070-037-000 $15.78

06 112 023-070-038-000 15.78

06 113 023-070-039-000 15.78

06 114 023-070-040-000 15.78

06 115 023-070-041-000 15.78

06 116 023-070-042-000 $15.78

06 117 023-070-043-000 15.78

06 118 023-070-044-000 15.78

06 119 023-070-045-000 15.78

06 120 023-070-046-000 15.78

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

48



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

06 121 023-070-047-000 $15.78

06 122 023-070-048-000 15.78

06 123 023-070-049-000 15.78

06 124 023-070-050-000 15.78

06 125 023-070-051-000 15.78
06 126 023-070-052-000 $15.78

Total Assessment Zone 6 $1,988.28

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

49



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

07 1 023-370-002-000 $78.22

07 2 023-370-003-000 78.22

07 3 023-370-004-000 78.22

07 4 023-370-005-000 78.22

07 5 023-370-006-000 78.22

07 6 023-370-007-000 $78.22

07 7 023-370-008-000 78.22

07 8 023-370-009-000 78.22

07 9 023-370-010-000 78.22

07 10 023-370-011-000 78.22

07 11 023-370-012-000 $78.22

07 12 023-370-013-000 78.22

07 13 023-370-014-000 78.22

07 14 023-370-015-000 78.22

07 15 023-370-016-000 78.22

07 16 023-370-017-000 $78.22

07 17 023-370-018-000 78.22

07 18 023-370-019-000 78.22

07 19 023-370-020-000 78.22

07 20 023-370-021-000 78.22

07 21 023-370-023-000 $78.22

07 22 023-370-024-000 78.22

07 23 023-370-025-000 78.22

07 24 023-370-026-000 78.22

07 25 023-370-027-000 78.22

07 26 023-370-028-000 $78.22

07 27 023-370-029-000 78.22

07 28 023-370-030-000 78.22

07 29 023-370-031-000 78.22

07 30 023-370-032-000 78.22

07 31 023-370-033-000 $78.22

07 32 023-370-034-000 78.22

07 33 023-370-035-000 78.22

07 34 023-370-036-000 78.22

07 35 023-370-037-000 78.22

07 36 023-370-038-000 $78.22

07 37 023-370-039-000 78.22

07 38 023-370-040-000 78.22

07 39 023-370-041-000 78.22

07 40 023-370-042-000 78.22

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

50



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

07 41 023-370-043-000 $78.22

07 42 023-370-044-000 78.22

07 43 023-370-045-000 78.22

07 44 023-370-046-000 78.22

07 45 023-370-047-000 78.22

07 46 023-370-048-000 $78.22

07 47 023-370-049-000 78.22

07 48 023-370-050-000 78.22

07 49 023-370-051-000 78.22

07 50 023-370-052-000 78.22

07 51 023-370-053-000 $78.22

07 52 023-370-054-000 78.22
07 53 023-370-055-000 78.22

Total Assessment Zone 7 $4,145.66

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

51



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

08 1 024-340-001-000 $139.94

08 2 024-340-002-000 139.94

08 3 024-340-003-000 139.94

08 4 024-340-004-000 139.94

08 5 024-340-005-000 139.94

08 6 024-340-006-000 $139.94

08 7 024-340-007-000 139.94

08 8 024-340-008-000 139.94

08 9 024-340-009-000 139.94

08 10 024-340-010-000 139.94

08 11 024-340-011-000 $139.94

08 12 024-340-012-000 139.94

08 13 024-340-013-000 139.94

08 14 024-340-014-000 139.94

08 15 024-340-015-000 139.94

08 16 024-340-016-000 $139.94

08 17 024-340-017-000 139.94

08 18 024-340-018-000 139.94

08 19 024-340-019-000 139.94

08 20 024-340-020-000 139.94

08 21 024-340-021-000 $139.94

08 22 024-340-022-000 139.94

08 23 024-340-023-000 139.94

08 24 024-340-024-000 139.94

08 25 024-340-025-000 139.94

08 26 024-340-026-000 $139.94

08 27 024-340-027-000 139.94

08 28 024-340-028-000 139.94

08 29 024-340-029-000 139.94

08 30 024-340-030-000 139.94

08 31 024-340-031-000 $139.94

08 32 024-340-032-000 139.94

08 33 024-340-033-000 139.94

08 34 024-340-034-000 139.94

08 35 024-340-035-000 139.94

08 36 024-340-036-000 $139.94

08 37 024-340-037-000 139.94

08 38 024-340-038-000 139.94

08 39 024-340-039-000 139.94

08 40 024-340-040-000 139.94

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

52



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

08 41 024-340-041-000 $139.94

08 42 024-340-042-000 139.94

08 43 024-340-043-000 139.94

08 44 024-340-044-000 139.94

08 45 024-340-045-000 139.94

08 46 024-340-046-000 $139.94

08 47 024-340-047-000 139.94

08 48 024-340-048-000 139.94

08 49 024-340-049-000 139.94

08 50 024-350-001-000 139.94

08 51 024-350-002-000 $139.94

08 52 024-350-003-000 139.94

08 53 024-350-004-000 139.94

08 54 024-350-005-000 139.94

08 55 024-350-006-000 139.94

08 56 024-350-007-000 $139.94

08 57 024-350-008-000 139.94

08 58 024-350-009-000 139.94

08 59 024-350-010-000 139.94

08 60 024-350-011-000 139.94

08 61 024-350-012-000 $139.94

08 62 024-350-013-000 139.94

08 63 024-350-014-000 139.94

08 64 024-350-015-000 139.94

08 65 024-350-016-000 139.94

08 66 024-350-017-000 $139.94

08 67 024-350-018-000 139.94

08 68 024-350-019-000 139.94

08 69 024-350-020-000 139.94

08 70 024-350-021-000 139.94

08 71 024-350-022-000 $139.94

08 72 024-350-023-000 139.94

08 73 024-350-024-000 139.94

08 74 024-350-025-000 139.94

08 75 024-350-026-000 139.94

08 76 024-350-027-000 $139.94

08 77 024-350-028-000 139.94

08 78 024-350-029-000 139.94

08 79 024-350-030-000 139.94

08 80 024-350-031-000 139.94

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

53



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

08 81 024-350-032-000 $139.94

08 82 024-350-033-000 139.94

08 83 024-360-001-000 139.94

08 84 024-360-002-000 139.94

08 85 024-360-003-000 139.94

08 86 024-360-004-000 $139.94

08 87 024-360-005-000 139.94

08 88 024-360-006-000 139.94

08 89 024-360-007-000 139.94

08 90 024-360-008-000 139.94

08 91 024-360-009-000 $139.94

08 92 024-360-010-000 139.94

08 93 024-360-011-000 139.94

08 94 024-360-012-000 139.94

08 95 024-360-013-000 139.94

08 96 024-360-014-000 $139.94

08 97 024-360-015-000 139.94

08 98 024-360-016-000 139.94

08 99 024-360-017-000 139.94

08 100 024-360-018-000 139.94

08 101 024-360-019-000 $139.94

08 102 024-360-020-000 139.94

08 103 024-360-021-000 139.94

08 104 024-360-022-000 139.94

08 105 024-360-024-000 139.94

08 106 024-360-025-000 $139.94

08 107 024-360-026-000 139.94

08 108 024-360-027-000 139.94

08 109 024-360-028-000 139.94

08 110 024-360-029-000 139.94

08 111 024-360-030-000 $139.94

08 112 024-360-031-000 139.94

08 113 024-360-032-000 139.94

08 114 024-360-033-000 139.94

08 115 024-360-034-000 139.94

08 116 024-370-002-000 $139.94

08 117 024-370-003-000 139.94

08 118 024-370-004-000 139.94

08 119 024-370-005-000 139.94

08 120 024-370-006-000 139.94

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

54



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

08 121 024-370-007-000 $139.94

08 122 024-370-008-000 139.94

08 123 024-370-009-000 139.94

08 124 024-370-010-000 139.94

08 125 024-370-011-000 139.94

08 126 024-370-012-000 $139.94

08 127 024-370-013-000 139.94

08 128 024-370-014-000 139.94

08 129 024-370-015-000 139.94

08 130 024-370-016-000 139.94

08 131 024-370-018-000 $139.94

08 132 024-370-019-000 139.94

08 133 024-370-020-000 139.94

08 134 024-370-021-000 139.94

08 135 024-370-022-000 139.94

08 136 024-370-023-000 $139.94

08 137 024-370-024-000 139.94

08 138 024-370-025-000 139.94

08 139 024-370-026-000 139.94

08 140 024-370-027-000 139.94

08 141 024-370-028-000 $139.94

08 142 024-370-029-000 139.94

08 143 024-370-031-000 139.94

08 144 024-370-032-000 139.94

08 145 024-370-033-000 139.94

08 146 024-370-034-000 $139.94

08 147 024-370-035-000 139.94

08 148 024-370-036-000 139.94

08 149 024-370-037-000 139.94

08 150 024-370-038-000 139.94

08 151 024-370-039-000 $139.94

08 152 024-370-040-000 139.94
08 153 024-370-041-000 139.94

Total Assessment Zone 8 $21,410.82

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

55



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

8A 1 024-380-002-000 $139.94

8A 2 024-380-003-000 139.94

8A 3 024-380-004-000 139.94

8A 4 024-380-005-000 139.94

8A 5 024-380-006-000 139.94

8A 6 024-380-007-000 $139.94

8A 7 024-380-008-000 139.94

8A 8 024-380-009-000 139.94

8A 9 024-380-010-000 139.94

8A 10 024-380-011-000 139.94

8A 11 024-380-012-000 $139.94

8A 12 024-380-013-000 139.94

8A 13 024-380-014-000 139.94

8A 14 024-380-015-000 139.94

8A 15 024-380-016-000 139.94

8A 16 024-380-017-000 $139.94

8A 17 024-380-018-000 139.94

8A 18 024-380-019-000 139.94

8A 19 024-380-020-000 139.94

8A 20 024-380-021-000 139.94

8A 21 024-380-022-000 $139.94

8A 22 024-380-023-000 139.94

8A 23 024-380-024-000 139.94

8A 24 024-380-025-000 139.94

8A 25 024-380-026-000 139.94

8A 26 024-380-027-000 $139.94

8A 27 024-380-028-000 139.94

8A 28 024-380-030-000 139.94

8A 29 024-380-031-000 139.94

8A 30 024-380-032-000 139.94

8A 31 024-380-033-000 $139.94

8A 32 024-380-034-000 139.94

8A 33 024-380-035-000 139.94

8A 34 024-380-036-000 139.94

8A 35 024-380-037-000 139.94

8A 36 024-380-038-000 $139.94

8A 37 024-380-039-000 139.94

8A 38 024-380-040-000 139.94

8A 39 024-380-041-000 139.94

8A 40 024-380-042-000 139.94

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

56



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

8A 41 024-380-043-000 $139.94

8A 42 024-380-044-000 139.94

8A 43 024-380-045-000 139.94

8A 44 024-380-046-000 139.94
8A 45 024-380-047-000 139.94

Total Assessment Zone 8A $6,297.30

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

57



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

09 1 021-170-001-000 $46.62

09 2 021-170-002-000 46.62

09 3 021-170-003-000 46.62

09 4 021-170-004-000 46.62

09 5 021-170-005-000 46.62

09 6 021-170-006-000 $46.62

09 7 021-170-007-000 46.62

09 8 021-170-008-000 46.62

09 9 021-170-009-000 46.62

09 10 021-170-010-000 46.62

09 11 021-170-011-000 $46.62

09 12 021-170-012-000 46.62

09 13 021-170-013-000 46.62

09 14 021-170-014-000 46.62

09 15 021-170-015-000 46.62

09 16 021-170-034-000 $46.62

09 17 021-170-035-000 46.62

09 18 021-170-036-000 46.62

09 19 021-170-037-000 46.62

09 20 021-170-038-000 46.62

09 21 021-170-039-000 $46.62

09 22 021-170-040-000 46.62

09 23 021-170-041-000 46.62

09 24 021-170-042-000 46.62

09 25 021-170-043-000 46.62

09 26 021-170-044-000 $46.62

09 27 021-170-045-000 46.62

09 28 021-170-046-000 46.62

09 29 021-170-047-000 46.62

09 30 021-170-048-000 46.62

09 31 021-170-049-000 $46.62

09 32 021-170-050-000 46.62

09 33 021-680-001-000 46.62

09 34 021-680-002-000 46.62

09 35 021-680-003-000 46.62

09 36 021-680-004-000 $46.62

09 37 021-680-006-000 46.62

09 38 021-680-007-000 46.62

09 39 021-680-008-000 46.62

09 40 021-680-009-000 46.62

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

58



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

09 41 021-680-010-000 $46.62

09 42 021-680-011-000 46.62

09 43 021-680-012-000 46.62

09 44 021-680-013-000 46.62

09 45 021-680-014-000 46.62

09 46 021-680-015-000 $46.62

09 47 021-680-016-000 46.62

09 48 021-680-017-000 46.62

09 49 021-680-018-000 46.62

09 50 021-680-019-000 46.62

09 51 021-680-020-000 $46.62

09 52 021-680-021-000 46.62

09 53 021-680-022-000 46.62

09 54 021-680-023-000 46.62

09 55 021-680-024-000 46.62

09 56 021-680-025-000 $46.62

09 57 021-680-026-000 46.62

09 58 021-680-027-000 46.62

09 59 021-680-028-000 46.62

09 60 021-680-029-000 46.62

09 61 021-680-030-000 $46.62

09 62 021-680-031-000 46.62

09 63 021-680-032-000 46.62

09 64 021-680-033-000 46.62

09 65 021-680-035-000 46.62

09 66 021-680-036-000 $46.62

09 67 021-680-037-000 46.62

09 68 021-680-038-000 46.62

09 69 021-680-039-000 46.62

09 70 021-680-040-000 46.62

09 71 021-680-041-000 $46.62

09 72 021-680-042-000 46.62

09 73 021-680-043-000 46.62

09 74 021-680-044-000 46.62

09 75 021-680-045-000 46.62

09 76 021-680-046-000 $46.62

09 77 021-680-047-000 46.62

09 78 021-680-048-000 46.62

09 79 021-680-049-000 46.62

09 80 021-680-050-000 46.62

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

59



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

09 81 021-680-051-000 $46.62

09 82 021-680-052-000 46.62

09 83 021-680-053-000 46.62

09 84 021-680-054-000 46.62

09 85 021-680-055-000 46.62

09 86 021-680-056-000 $46.62

09 87 021-680-057-000 46.62

09 88 021-680-058-000 46.62

09 89 021-680-059-000 46.62

09 90 021-680-060-000 46.62

09 91 021-680-061-000 $46.62

09 92 021-680-062-000 46.62

09 93 021-680-063-000 46.62

09 94 021-680-064-000 46.62

09 95 021-680-065-000 46.62

09 96 021-080-053-000 $46.62

09 97 021-080-054-000 46.62

09 98 021-080-055-000 46.62

09 99 021-080-056-000 46.62

09 100 021-080-057-000 46.62

09 101 021-080-058-000 $46.62

09 102 021-080-059-000 46.62

09 103 021-080-060-000 46.62

09 104 021-080-061-000 46.62

09 105 021-080-062-000 46.62

09 106 021-080-063-000 $46.62

09 107 021-080-064-000 46.62

09 108 021-080-065-000 46.62

09 109 021-080-066-000 46.62

09 110 021-080-067-000 46.62

09 111 021-080-068-000 $46.62

09 112 021-080-069-000 46.62

09 113 021-080-071-000 46.62

09 114 021-080-072-000 46.62

09 115 021-080-073-000 46.62

09 116 021-080-074-000 $46.62

09 117 021-080-075-000 46.62

09 118 021-080-076-000 46.62

09 119 021-080-077-000 46.62

09 120 021-080-078-000 46.62

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

60



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

09 121 021-080-079-000 $46.62

09 122 021-080-080-000 46.62

09 123 021-080-081-000 46.62

09 124 021-080-082-000 46.62

09 125 021-080-083-000 46.62

09 126 021-080-084-000 $46.62

09 127 021-080-085-000 46.62

09 128 021-080-086-000 46.62

09 129 021-080-087-000 46.62

09 130 021-080-088-000 46.62

09 131 021-080-089-000 $46.62

09 132 021-080-090-000 46.62

09 133 021-080-091-000 46.62
09 134 021-080-092-000 46.62

Total Assessment Zone 9 $6,247.08

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

61



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

10 1 023-550-001-000 $125.76

10 2 023-550-002-000 125.76

10 3 023-550-003-000 125.76

10 4 023-550-004-000 125.76

10 5 023-550-005-000 125.76

10 6 023-550-006-000 $125.76

10 7 023-550-007-000 125.76

10 8 023-550-008-000 125.76

10 9 023-550-009-000 125.76

10 10 023-550-010-000 125.76

10 11 023-550-011-000 $125.76

10 12 023-550-012-000 125.76

10 13 023-550-013-000 125.76

10 14 023-550-014-000 125.76

10 15 023-550-015-000 125.76

10 16 023-550-016-000 $125.76

10 17 023-550-017-000 125.76

10 18 023-550-018-000 125.76

10 19 023-550-019-000 125.76

10 20 023-550-020-000 125.76

10 21 023-550-021-000 $125.76

10 22 023-550-022-000 125.76

10 23 023-550-023-000 125.76

10 24 023-550-024-000 125.76

10 25 023-550-025-000 125.76

10 26 023-550-026-000 $125.76

10 27 023-550-027-000 125.76

10 28 023-550-028-000 125.76

10 29 023-550-029-000 125.76

10 30 023-550-030-000 125.76

10 31 023-550-031-000 $125.76

10 32 023-550-032-000 125.76

10 33 023-550-033-000 125.76

10 34 023-550-035-000 125.76

10 35 023-550-036-000 125.76

10 36 023-550-037-000 $125.76

10 37 023-550-038-000 125.76

10 38 023-550-039-000 125.76

10 39 023-550-040-000 125.76

10 40 023-550-041-000 125.76

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

62



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

10 41 023-550-042-000 $125.76

10 42 023-550-043-000 125.76

10 43 023-550-044-000 125.76

10 44 023-550-045-000 125.76

10 45 023-550-046-000 125.76

10 46 023-550-047-000 $125.76

10 47 023-550-048-000 125.76

10 48 023-550-049-000 125.76

10 49 023-550-050-000 125.76

10 50 023-550-051-000 125.76

10 51 023-550-052-000 $125.76

10 52 023-550-053-000 125.76

10 53 023-550-054-000 125.76

10 54 023-550-055-000 125.76

10 55 023-550-056-000 125.76

10 56 023-550-057-000 $125.76

10 57 023-550-058-000 125.76

10 58 023-550-059-000 125.76

10 59 023-550-060-000 125.76

10 60 023-550-061-000 125.76

10 61 023-550-062-000 $125.76

10 62 023-440-001-000 125.76

10 63 023-440-002-000 125.76

10 64 023-440-003-000 125.76

10 65 023-440-004-000 125.76

10 66 023-440-005-000 $125.76

10 67 023-440-006-000 125.76

10 68 023-440-007-000 125.76

10 69 023-440-008-000 125.76

10 70 023-440-009-000 125.76

10 71 023-440-010-000 $125.76

10 72 023-440-011-000 125.76

10 73 023-440-012-000 125.76

10 74 023-440-013-000 125.76

10 75 023-440-014-000 125.76

10 76 023-440-015-000 $125.76

10 77 023-440-016-000 125.76

10 78 023-440-017-000 125.76

10 79 023-440-018-000 125.76

10 80 023-440-019-000 125.76

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

63



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

10 81 023-440-020-000 $125.76

10 82 023-440-021-000 125.76

10 83 023-440-022-000 125.76

10 84 023-440-023-000 125.76

10 85 023-440-024-000 125.76

10 86 023-440-025-000 $125.76

10 87 023-440-026-000 125.76

10 88 023-440-027-000 125.76

10 89 023-440-028-000 125.76

10 90 023-440-029-000 125.76

10 91 023-440-030-000 $125.76

10 92 023-440-031-000 125.76

10 93 023-440-032-000 125.76

10 94 023-440-033-000 125.76

10 95 023-440-034-000 125.76

10 96 023-440-035-000 $125.76

10 97 023-440-036-000 125.76

10 98 023-440-037-000 125.76

10 99 023-440-038-000 125.76

10 100 023-440-039-000 125.76

10 101 023-440-040-000 $125.76

10 102 023-440-041-000 125.76

10 103 023-440-042-000 125.76

10 104 023-440-043-000 125.76

10 105 023-440-045-000 125.76

10 106 023-440-046-000 $125.76

10 107 023-440-047-000 125.76

10 108 023-440-048-000 125.76

10 109 023-440-049-000 125.76

10 110 023-440-050-000 125.76

10 111 023-440-051-000 $125.76

10 112 023-440-052-000 125.76

10 113 023-440-053-000 125.76

10 114 023-440-054-000 125.76

10 115 023-440-055-000 125.76

10 116 023-560-001-000 $125.76

10 117 023-560-002-000 125.76

10 118 023-560-003-000 125.76

10 119 023-560-004-000 125.76

10 120 023-560-007-000 125.76

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

64



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

10 121 023-560-008-000 $125.76

10 122 023-560-009-000 125.76

10 123 023-560-010-000 125.76

10 124 023-560-011-000 125.76

10 125 023-560-012-000 125.76

10 126 023-560-013-000 $125.76

10 127 023-560-014-000 125.76

10 128 023-560-015-000 125.76

10 129 023-560-016-000 125.76

10 130 023-560-017-000 125.76

10 131 023-560-018-000 $125.76

10 132 023-560-019-000 125.76

10 133 023-560-020-000 125.76

10 134 023-560-021-000 125.76

10 135 023-560-022-000 125.76

10 136 023-560-025-000 $125.76

10 137 023-560-026-000 125.76

10 138 023-560-027-000 125.76

10 139 023-560-028-000 125.76

10 140 023-560-029-000 125.76

10 141 023-560-030-000 $125.76

10 142 023-560-031-000 125.76

10 143 023-560-032-000 125.76

10 144 023-560-033-000 125.76

10 145 023-560-034-000 125.76

10 146 023-560-035-000 $125.76

10 147 023-560-036-000 125.76

10 148 023-560-037-000 125.76

10 149 023-560-038-000 125.76

10 150 023-560-039-000 125.76
10 151 023-560-040-000 $125.76

Total Assessment Zone 10 $18,989.76

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

65



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

11 1 023-160-001-000 $53.32

11 2 023-160-002-000 53.32

11 3 023-160-003-000 53.32

11 4 023-160-004-000 53.32

11 5 023-160-005-000 53.32

11 6 023-160-006-000 $53.32

11 7 023-160-007-000 53.32

11 8 023-160-008-000 53.32

11 9 023-160-009-000 53.32

11 10 023-160-010-000 53.32

11 11 023-160-012-000 $53.32

11 12 023-160-013-000 53.32

11 13 023-160-014-000 53.32

11 14 023-160-016-000 53.32

11 15 023-160-017-000 53.32

11 16 023-160-018-000 $53.32

11 17 023-160-019-000 53.32

11 18 023-160-020-000 53.32

11 19 023-160-021-000 53.32

11 20 023-160-022-000 53.32

11 21 023-160-023-000 $53.32

11 22 023-160-024-000 53.32

11 23 023-160-025-000 53.32

11 24 023-160-026-000 53.32

11 25 023-160-027-000 53.32

11 26 023-160-028-000 $53.32

11 27 023-160-029-000 53.32

11 28 023-160-030-000 53.32

11 29 023-160-031-000 53.32

11 30 023-160-032-000 53.32

11 31 023-160-033-000 $53.32

11 32 023-160-034-000 53.32

11 33 023-160-035-000 53.32

11 34 023-160-036-000 53.32

11 35 023-160-037-000 53.32
11 36 023-160-038-000 $53.32

Total Assessment Zone 11 $1,919.52

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

66



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 1 021-690-002-000 $145.00

12 2 021-690-003-000 145.00

12 3 021-690-004-000 145.00

12 4 021-690-005-000 145.00

12 5 021-690-006-000 145.00

12 6 021-690-007-000 $145.00

12 7 021-690-008-000 145.00

12 8 021-690-009-000 145.00

12 9 021-690-010-000 145.00

12 10 021-690-011-000 145.00

12 11 021-690-012-000 $145.00

12 12 021-690-013-000 145.00

12 13 021-690-014-000 145.00

12 14 021-690-015-000 145.00

12 15 021-690-016-000 145.00

12 16 021-690-017-000 $145.00

12 17 021-690-018-000 145.00

12 18 021-690-019-000 145.00

12 19 021-690-020-000 145.00

12 20 021-690-021-000 145.00

12 21 021-690-022-000 $145.00

12 22 021-690-023-000 145.00

12 23 021-690-024-000 145.00

12 24 021-690-025-000 145.00

12 25 021-690-026-000 145.00

12 26 021-690-029-000 $145.00

12 27 021-690-030-000 145.00

12 28 021-690-031-000 145.00

12 29 021-690-032-000 145.00

12 30 021-690-033-000 145.00

12 31 021-690-034-000 $145.00

12 32 021-690-035-000 145.00

12 33 021-690-036-000 145.00

12 34 021-690-037-000 145.00

12 35 021-690-038-000 145.00

12 36 021-690-039-000 $145.00

12 37 021-690-040-000 145.00

12 38 021-690-041-000 145.00

12 39 021-690-042-000 145.00

12 40 021-690-043-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

67



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 41 021-690-044-000 $145.00

12 42 021-690-045-000 145.00

12 43 021-690-046-000 145.00

12 44 021-690-047-000 145.00

12 45 021-690-048-000 145.00

12 46 021-690-049-000 $145.00

12 47 021-690-050-000 145.00

12 48 021-690-051-000 145.00

12 49 021-690-052-000 145.00

12 50 021-690-053-000 145.00

12 51 021-700-001-000 $145.00

12 52 021-700-002-000 145.00

12 53 021-700-003-000 145.00

12 54 021-700-004-000 145.00

12 55 021-700-005-000 145.00

12 56 021-700-006-000 $145.00

12 57 021-700-007-000 145.00

12 58 021-700-008-000 145.00

12 59 021-700-009-000 145.00

12 60 021-700-010-000 145.00

12 61 021-700-011-000 $145.00

12 62 021-700-012-000 145.00

12 63 021-700-013-000 145.00

12 64 021-700-014-000 145.00

12 65 021-700-015-000 145.00

12 66 021-700-016-000 $145.00

12 67 021-700-017-000 145.00

12 68 021-700-018-000 145.00

12 69 021-700-019-000 145.00

12 70 021-700-020-000 145.00

12 71 021-700-021-000 $145.00

12 72 021-700-022-000 145.00

12 73 021-700-023-000 145.00

12 74 021-700-024-000 145.00

12 75 021-700-025-000 145.00

12 76 021-700-026-000 $145.00

12 77 021-700-027-000 145.00

12 78 021-700-028-000 145.00

12 79 021-700-029-000 145.00

12 80 021-700-030-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

68



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 81 021-700-031-000 $145.00

12 82 021-700-032-000 145.00

12 83 021-700-033-000 145.00

12 84 021-700-034-000 145.00

12 85 021-700-035-000 145.00

12 86 021-700-036-000 $145.00

12 87 021-700-037-000 145.00

12 88 021-700-038-000 145.00

12 89 021-700-039-000 145.00

12 90 021-700-040-000 145.00

12 91 021-700-041-000 $145.00

12 92 021-700-042-000 145.00

12 93 021-700-043-000 145.00

12 94 021-700-044-000 145.00

12 95 021-700-045-000 145.00

12 96 021-700-046-000 $145.00

12 97 021-700-047-000 145.00

12 98 021-700-048-000 145.00

12 99 021-700-049-000 145.00

12 100 021-700-050-000 145.00

12 101 021-700-051-000 $145.00

12 102 021-710-001-000 145.00

12 103 021-710-002-000 145.00

12 104 021-710-003-000 145.00

12 105 021-710-004-000 145.00

12 106 021-710-005-000 $145.00

12 107 021-710-006-000 145.00

12 108 021-710-007-000 145.00

12 109 021-710-008-000 145.00

12 110 021-710-009-000 145.00

12 111 021-710-010-000 $145.00

12 112 021-710-011-000 145.00

12 113 021-710-012-000 145.00

12 114 021-710-013-000 145.00

12 115 021-710-014-000 145.00

12 116 021-710-015-000 $145.00

12 117 021-710-016-000 145.00

12 118 021-710-017-000 145.00

12 119 021-710-018-000 145.00

12 120 021-710-019-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

69



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 121 021-710-020-000 $145.00

12 122 021-710-021-000 145.00

12 123 021-710-022-000 145.00

12 124 021-710-023-000 145.00

12 125 021-710-024-000 145.00

12 126 021-710-025-000 $145.00

12 127 021-710-026-000 145.00

12 128 021-710-027-000 145.00

12 129 021-710-028-000 145.00

12 130 021-710-029-000 145.00

12 131 021-710-030-000 $145.00

12 132 021-710-031-000 145.00

12 133 021-710-032-000 145.00

12 134 021-710-033-000 145.00

12 135 021-710-034-000 145.00

12 136 021-710-035-000 $145.00

12 137 021-710-036-000 145.00

12 138 021-710-037-000 145.00

12 139 021-710-038-000 145.00

12 140 021-710-039-000 145.00

12 141 021-710-040-000 $145.00

12 142 021-710-041-000 145.00

12 143 021-710-042-000 145.00

12 144 021-720-001-000 145.00

12 145 021-720-002-000 145.00

12 146 021-720-003-000 $145.00

12 147 021-720-004-000 145.00

12 148 021-720-005-000 145.00

12 149 021-720-006-000 145.00

12 150 021-720-007-000 145.00

12 151 021-720-008-000 $145.00

12 152 021-720-009-000 145.00

12 153 021-720-010-000 145.00

12 154 021-720-011-000 145.00

12 155 021-720-012-000 145.00

12 156 021-720-013-000 $145.00

12 157 021-720-014-000 145.00

12 158 021-720-015-000 145.00

12 159 021-720-016-000 145.00

12 160 021-720-017-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

70



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 161 021-720-018-000 $145.00

12 162 021-720-019-000 145.00

12 163 021-720-020-000 145.00

12 164 021-730-001-000 145.00

12 165 021-730-002-000 145.00

12 166 021-730-003-000 $145.00

12 167 021-730-004-000 145.00

12 168 021-730-005-000 145.00

12 169 021-730-006-000 145.00

12 170 021-730-007-000 145.00

12 171 021-730-008-000 $145.00

12 172 021-730-009-000 145.00

12 173 021-730-010-000 145.00

12 174 021-730-011-000 145.00

12 175 021-730-012-000 145.00

12 176 021-730-013-000 $145.00

12 177 021-730-014-000 145.00

12 178 021-730-015-000 145.00

12 179 021-730-016-000 145.00

12 180 021-730-017-000 145.00

12 181 021-730-018-000 $145.00

12 182 021-730-019-000 145.00

12 183 021-730-020-000 145.00

12 184 021-730-021-000 145.00

12 185 021-730-022-000 145.00

12 186 021-730-023-000 $145.00

12 187 021-730-024-000 145.00

12 188 021-730-025-000 145.00

12 189 021-730-026-000 145.00

12 190 021-730-027-000 145.00

12 191 021-730-028-000 $145.00

12 192 021-730-029-000 145.00

12 193 021-730-030-000 145.00

12 194 021-730-031-000 145.00

12 195 021-730-032-000 145.00

12 196 021-730-033-000 $145.00

12 197 021-730-034-000 145.00

12 198 021-730-035-000 145.00

12 199 021-730-036-000 145.00

12 200 021-730-037-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

71



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 201 021-730-038-000 $145.00

12 202 021-730-039-000 145.00

12 203 021-730-040-000 145.00

12 204 021-730-041-000 145.00

12 205 021-730-042-000 145.00

12 206 021-730-043-000 $145.00

12 207 021-730-044-000 145.00

12 208 021-730-045-000 145.00

12 209 021-730-046-000 145.00

12 210 021-730-047-000 145.00

12 211 021-730-048-000 $145.00

12 212 021-740-001-000 145.00

12 213 021-740-002-000 145.00

12 214 021-740-003-000 145.00

12 215 021-740-004-000 145.00

12 216 021-740-005-000 $145.00

12 217 021-740-006-000 145.00

12 218 021-740-007-000 145.00

12 219 021-740-008-000 145.00

12 220 021-740-009-000 145.00

12 221 021-740-010-000 $145.00

12 222 021-740-011-000 145.00

12 223 021-740-012-000 145.00

12 224 021-740-013-000 145.00

12 225 021-740-014-000 145.00

12 226 021-740-015-000 $145.00

12 227 021-740-016-000 145.00

12 228 021-740-017-000 145.00

12 229 021-740-018-000 145.00

12 230 021-740-019-000 145.00

12 231 021-740-020-000 $145.00

12 232 021-740-021-000 145.00

12 233 021-740-022-000 145.00

12 234 021-740-023-000 145.00

12 235 021-740-024-000 145.00

12 236 021-740-025-000 $145.00

12 237 021-740-026-000 145.00

12 238 021-740-027-000 145.00

12 239 021-740-028-000 145.00

12 240 021-740-029-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

72



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 241 021-740-030-000 $145.00

12 242 021-740-031-000 145.00

12 243 021-740-032-000 145.00

12 244 021-740-033-000 145.00

12 245 021-740-034-000 145.00

12 246 021-740-035-000 $145.00

12 247 021-740-036-000 145.00

12 248 021-740-037-000 145.00

12 249 021-740-038-000 145.00

12 250 021-740-039-000 145.00

12 251 021-740-040-000 $145.00

12 252 021-740-041-000 145.00

12 253 021-740-042-000 145.00

12 254 021-740-043-000 145.00

12 255 021-740-044-000 145.00

12 256 021-740-045-000 $145.00

12 257 021-740-046-000 145.00

12 258 021-740-047-000 145.00

12 259 021-740-048-000 145.00

12 260 021-740-049-000 145.00

12 261 021-740-050-000 $145.00

12 262 021-740-051-000 145.00

12 263 021-740-052-000 145.00

12 264 021-750-002-000 145.00

12 265 021-750-003-000 145.00

12 266 021-750-004-000 $145.00

12 267 021-750-005-000 145.00

12 268 021-750-006-000 145.00

12 269 021-750-007-000 145.00

12 270 021-750-008-000 145.00

12 271 021-750-009-000 $145.00

12 272 021-750-010-000 145.00

12 273 021-750-011-000 145.00

12 274 021-750-012-000 145.00

12 275 021-750-013-000 145.00

12 276 021-750-014-000 $145.00

12 277 021-750-015-000 145.00

12 278 021-750-016-000 145.00

12 279 021-750-017-000 145.00

12 280 021-750-018-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

73



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 281 021-750-019-000 $145.00

12 282 021-750-020-000 145.00

12 283 021-750-021-000 145.00

12 284 021-760-001-000 145.00

12 285 021-760-002-000 145.00

12 286 021-760-003-000 $145.00

12 287 021-760-004-000 145.00

12 288 021-760-005-000 145.00

12 289 021-760-006-000 145.00

12 290 021-760-007-000 145.00

12 291 021-760-008-000 $145.00

12 292 021-760-009-000 145.00

12 293 021-760-010-000 145.00

12 294 021-760-011-000 145.00

12 295 021-760-012-000 145.00

12 296 021-760-013-000 $145.00

12 297 021-760-014-000 145.00

12 298 021-760-015-000 145.00

12 299 021-760-016-000 145.00

12 300 021-760-017-000 145.00

12 301 021-760-018-000 $145.00

12 302 021-760-019-000 145.00

12 303 021-760-020-000 145.00

12 304 021-760-021-000 145.00

12 305 021-760-022-000 145.00

12 306 021-760-023-000 $145.00

12 307 021-760-024-000 145.00

12 308 021-760-025-000 145.00

12 309 021-760-026-000 145.00

12 310 021-760-027-000 145.00

12 311 021-760-028-000 $145.00

12 312 021-760-029-000 145.00

12 313 021-760-030-000 145.00

12 314 021-760-031-000 145.00

12 315 021-760-032-000 145.00

12 316 021-760-033-000 $145.00

12 317 021-760-034-000 145.00

12 318 021-760-035-000 145.00

12 319 021-760-036-000 145.00

12 320 021-760-037-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

74



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 321 021-760-038-000 $145.00

12 322 021-760-039-000 145.00

12 323 021-760-040-000 145.00

12 324 021-760-041-000 145.00

12 325 021-760-042-000 145.00

12 326 021-760-043-000 $145.00

12 327 021-760-044-000 145.00

12 328 021-760-045-000 145.00

12 329 021-760-046-000 145.00

12 330 021-760-047-000 145.00

12 331 021-760-048-000 $145.00

12 332 021-760-049-000 145.00

12 333 021-760-050-000 145.00

12 334 021-760-051-000 145.00

12 335 021-770-001-000 145.00

12 336 021-770-002-000 $145.00

12 337 021-770-003-000 145.00

12 338 021-770-004-000 145.00

12 339 021-770-005-000 145.00

12 340 021-770-006-000 145.00

12 341 021-770-007-000 $145.00

12 342 021-770-008-000 145.00

12 343 021-770-009-000 145.00

12 344 021-770-010-000 145.00

12 345 021-770-011-000 145.00

12 346 021-770-012-000 $145.00

12 347 021-770-013-000 145.00

12 348 021-770-014-000 145.00

12 349 021-770-015-000 145.00

12 350 021-770-016-000 145.00

12 351 021-770-017-000 $145.00

12 352 021-770-018-000 145.00

12 353 021-770-019-000 145.00

12 354 021-770-020-000 145.00

12 355 021-770-021-000 145.00

12 356 021-770-022-000 $145.00

12 357 021-770-023-000 145.00

12 358 021-770-024-000 145.00

12 359 021-770-025-000 145.00

12 360 021-770-026-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

75



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 361 021-770-027-000 $145.00

12 362 021-770-028-000 145.00

12 363 021-770-029-000 145.00

12 364 021-770-030-000 145.00

12 365 021-770-031-000 145.00

12 366 021-770-032-000 $145.00

12 367 021-770-033-000 145.00

12 368 021-770-034-000 145.00

12 369 021-770-035-000 145.00

12 370 021-770-036-000 145.00

12 371 021-770-037-000 $145.00

12 372 021-770-038-000 145.00

12 373 021-770-039-000 145.00

12 374 021-770-040-000 145.00

12 375 021-770-041-000 145.00

12 376 021-770-042-000 $145.00

12 377 021-770-043-000 145.00

12 378 021-770-044-000 145.00

12 379 021-770-045-000 145.00

12 380 021-770-046-000 145.00

12 381 021-770-047-000 $145.00

12 382 021-770-048-000 145.00

12 383 021-770-049-000 145.00

12 384 021-770-050-000 145.00

12 385 021-770-051-000 145.00

12 386 021-770-052-000 $145.00

12 387 021-770-053-000 145.00

12 388 021-770-054-000 145.00

12 389 021-770-055-000 145.00

12 390 021-770-056-000 145.00

12 391 021-770-057-000 $145.00

12 392 021-770-058-000 145.00

12 393 021-770-059-000 145.00

12 394 023-540-001-000 145.00

12 395 023-540-002-000 145.00

12 396 023-540-003-000 $145.00

12 397 023-540-004-000 145.00

12 398 023-540-005-000 145.00

12 399 023-540-006-000 145.00

12 400 023-540-007-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

76



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 401 023-540-008-000 $145.00

12 402 023-540-009-000 145.00

12 403 023-540-010-000 145.00

12 404 023-540-011-000 145.00

12 405 023-540-012-000 145.00

12 406 023-540-015-000 $145.00

12 407 023-540-016-000 145.00

12 408 023-540-017-000 145.00

12 409 023-540-018-000 145.00

12 410 023-540-019-000 145.00

12 411 023-540-020-000 $145.00

12 412 023-540-021-000 145.00

12 413 023-540-022-000 145.00

12 414 023-540-023-000 145.00

12 415 023-540-024-000 145.00

12 416 023-540-025-000 $145.00

12 417 023-540-026-000 145.00

12 418 023-540-027-000 145.00

12 419 023-540-031-000 145.00

12 420 023-540-032-000 145.00

12 421 023-540-033-000 $145.00

12 422 023-540-034-000 145.00

12 423 023-540-035-000 145.00

12 424 023-540-036-000 145.00

12 425 023-540-037-000 145.00

12 426 023-540-038-000 $145.00

12 427 023-540-039-000 145.00

12 428 023-540-040-000 145.00

12 429 023-540-041-000 145.00

12 430 023-540-042-000 145.00

12 431 023-540-043-000 $145.00

12 432 023-540-044-000 145.00

12 433 023-540-045-000 145.00

12 434 023-540-046-000 145.00

12 435 023-540-047-000 145.00

12 436 023-540-048-000 $145.00

12 437 023-540-049-000 145.00

12 438 023-540-050-000 145.00

12 439 023-540-051-000 145.00

12 440 023-540-052-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

77



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12 441 023-540-053-000 $145.00

12 442 023-540-054-000 145.00

12 443 023-540-055-000 145.00

12 444 023-540-056-000 145.00

12 445 023-540-057-000 145.00

12 446 023-540-058-000 $145.00

12 447 023-540-059-000 145.00

12 448 023-540-060-000 145.00

12 449 023-540-061-000 145.00

12 450 023-540-062-000 145.00

12 451 023-540-063-000 $145.00

12 452 023-540-064-000 145.00

12 453 023-540-065-000 145.00

12 454 023-540-066-000 145.00

12 455 023-540-067-000 145.00

12 456 023-540-068-000 $145.00
12 457 023-540-069-000 145.00

Total Assessment Zone 12 $66,265.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

78



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12A 1 023-540-070-000 $145.00

12A 2 023-540-071-000 145.00

12A 3 023-540-072-000 145.00

12A 4 023-540-073-000 145.00

12A 5 023-540-074-000 145.00

12A 6 023-540-075-000 $145.00

12A 7 023-540-076-000 145.00

12A 8 023-540-077-000 145.00

12A 9 023-540-078-000 145.00

12A 10 023-540-079-000 145.00

12A 11 023-540-080-000 $145.00

12A 12 023-540-081-000 145.00

12A 13 023-540-082-000 145.00

12A 14 023-540-083-000 145.00

12A 15 023-540-084-000 145.00

12A 16 023-540-085-000 $145.00

12A 17 023-540-086-000 145.00

12A 18 023-540-087-000 145.00

12A 19 023-540-088-000 145.00

12A 20 023-540-089-000 145.00

12A 21 023-540-090-000 $145.00

12A 22 023-540-091-000 145.00

12A 23 023-540-092-000 145.00

12A 24 023-540-093-000 145.00

12A 25 023-540-094-000 145.00

12A 26 023-540-095-000 $145.00

12A 27 023-540-096-000 145.00

12A 28 023-540-097-000 145.00

12A 29 023-540-098-000 145.00

12A 30 023-540-099-000 145.00

12A 31 023-540-100-000 $145.00

12A 32 023-540-101-000 145.00

12A 33 023-540-102-000 145.00

12A 34 023-540-103-000 145.00

12A 35 023-540-104-000 145.00

12A 36 021-750-024-000 $145.00

12A 37 021-750-025-000 145.00

12A 38 021-750-026-000 145.00

12A 39 021-750-027-000 145.00

12A 40 021-750-028-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

79



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12A 41 021-750-029-000 $145.00

12A 42 021-750-030-000 145.00

12A 43 021-750-031-000 145.00

12A 44 021-750-032-000 145.00

12A 45 021-750-033-000 145.00

12A 46 021-750-034-000 $145.00

12A 47 021-750-035-000 145.00

12A 48 021-750-036-000 145.00

12A 49 021-750-037-000 145.00

12A 50 021-750-038-000 145.00

12A 51 021-750-039-000 $145.00

12A 52 021-750-040-000 145.00

12A 53 021-750-041-000 145.00

12A 54 021-750-042-000 145.00

12A 55 021-750-043-000 145.00

12A 56 021-750-044-000 $145.00

12A 57 021-750-045-000 145.00

12A 58 021-750-046-000 145.00

12A 59 021-750-047-000 145.00

12A 60 021-750-048-000 145.00

12A 61 021-750-049-000 $145.00

12A 62 021-750-050-000 145.00

12A 63 021-750-051-000 145.00

12A 64 021-750-052-000 145.00

12A 65 021-750-053-000 145.00

12A 66 021-750-054-000 $145.00

12A 67 021-750-055-000 145.00

12A 68 021-750-056-000 145.00

12A 69 021-750-057-000 145.00

12A 70 021-750-058-000 145.00

12A 71 021-750-059-000 $145.00

12A 72 021-750-060-000 145.00

12A 73 021-750-061-000 145.00

12A 74 021-750-062-000 145.00

12A 75 021-750-063-000 145.00

12A 76 021-750-064-000 $145.00

12A 77 021-750-065-000 145.00

12A 78 021-750-066-000 145.00

12A 79 021-750-067-000 145.00

12A 80 021-750-068-000 145.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

80



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

12A 81 021-750-069-000 $145.00

12A 82 021-750-070-000 145.00

12A 83 021-750-071-000 145.00

12A 84 021-750-072-000 145.00

12A 85 021-750-073-000 145.00

12A 86 021-750-074-000 $145.00

12A 87 021-750-075-000 145.00

12A 88 021-750-076-000 145.00

12A 89 021-750-077-000 145.00

12A 90 021-750-078-000 145.00

12A 91 021-750-079-000 $145.00

12A 92 021-750-080-000 145.00

12A 93 021-750-081-000 145.00

12A 94 021-750-082-000 145.00

12A 95 021-750-083-000 145.00
12A 96 021-750-084-000 $145.00

Total Assessment Zone 12A $13,920.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

81



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE
LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, ZONES 1-13

  ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

ZONE ID PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

13 1 021-630-003-000 $150.00

13 2 021-630-004-000 150.00

13 3 021-630-005-000 150.00

13 4 021-630-006-000 150.00

13 5 021-630-007-000 150.00

13 6 021-630-008-000 $150.00

13 7 021-630-009-000 150.00

13 8 021-630-010-000 150.00

13 9 021-630-011-000 150.00

13 10 021-630-012-000 150.00

13 11 021-630-013-000 $150.00

13 12 021-630-014-000 150.00

13 13 021-630-015-000 150.00

13 14 021-630-016-000 150.00

13 15 021-630-017-000 150.00

13 16 021-630-018-000 $150.00

13 17 021-630-019-000 150.00

13 18 021-630-020-000 150.00

13 19 021-630-021-000 150.00

13 20 021-630-022-000 150.00

13 21 021-630-023-000 $150.00

13 22 021-630-024-000 150.00

13 23 021-630-025-000 150.00

13 24 021-630-026-000 150.00

13 25 021-630-027-000 150.00

13 26 021-630-028-000 $150.00

13 27 021-630-029-000 150.00

13 28 021-630-030-000 150.00

13 29 021-630-031-000 150.00

13 30 021-630-032-000 150.00

13 31 021-630-033-000 $150.00

13 32 021-630-034-000 150.00
13 33 021-630-035-000 150.00

Total Assessment Zone 13 $4,950.00

City of Lemoore

LLMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 13

May 2013

82



EXHIBIT E 
 

Assessment District and Zone Location 
Assessment Diagram 

 



P.O. BOX 3699
VISALIA CA 93278
TEL: (559) 733-0440
FAX: (559) 733-7821

5110 W. CYPRESS AVENUE































































































Learn more about the Quad Knopf Effect {QKe} by visiting www.quadknopf.com 

 

 
 
 

5110 West Cypress Avenue 
Visalia, California  93277 

(559) 733-0440 
 
 

6051 North Fresno Street, Suite 200 
Fresno, California  93710 

(559) 449-2400 
 
 

735 Sunrise Avenue, Suite 100 
Roseville, California  95661 

(916) 784-7823 
 

5080 California Avenue, Suite 220 
Bakersfield, California  93309 

(661) 616-2600 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 -1- 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2013-11 
 

A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO LEVY AND COLLECT ANNUAL 
ASSESSMENTS WITHIN LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING MAINTENANCE 

DISTRICT NO. 1 (LLMD) ZONES 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10 11, 12, 12A and 13 OF THE 
CITY OF LEMOORE 

 
At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on May 21, 2013, 
at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council Member   , seconded by Council Member 
   and carried that the following Resolution be adopted:  
 

1. It is the intention of the Council to order the levy and collection of assessments under the 
Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972, Part Two of Division 15 of the Streets and Highways 
Code (beginning with Section 22500 and herein the “Act”), within Landscaping and 
Lighting Maintenance District No. 1, (“LLMD”), Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7,  8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 
12, 12A and 13, of the City of Lemoore for fiscal year 2013-14. The assessments for these 
Zones are not proposed to increase from the previous fiscal year.  

  
2. The territories of LLMD Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A and 13, are 

comprised of various territories generally located on the attached vicinity map which is the 
real property particularly, distinctly and specially benefited and to be assessed for the 
maintenance and operation of the landscaping, street lighting and appurtenant facilities of 
LLMD Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A and 13, generally described in 
Exhibit “A” attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. 

 
3. By Resolution No. 2007-37, adopted September 18, 2007, the Council ordered that Zone  4 

of the LLMD be dissolved.  The boundaries of the LLMD shall no longer include the 
territory that was included within Zone 4, and, commencing with fiscal year 2008-09, the 
lots and parcels within such territory shall no longer be subject to assessments under the 
LLMD or the Act.  

 
4. The City Engineer has prepared and filed with the Clerk of the City of Lemoore a report 

labeled Engineer’s Report of the City of Lemoore Landscaping and Lighting Maintenance 
District  No. 1, Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A and 13, dated May, 2013, to 
which reference is hereby made for a description of the existing improvements, the 
boundaries of the assessment district and the referenced zones therein, including the 
general nature, location  and extent of the improvements, and the proposed assessment 
upon assessable lots and parcels of land within LLMD Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 10, 
11, 12, 12A and 13. No substantial changes are proposed to be made in the existing 
improvements, and no new improvements are proposed to LLMD Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 
8A, 9, 10, 11, 12, 12A and 13.  The City Council intends to give final approval to the 
Engineer's Report at the conclusion of the public hearing described in paragraph 5, subject 
to changes, if any, ordered by the City Council during or upon the conclusion of the 
hearing. 

 
5.   Notice is hereby given that the 16th day of July, 2013 at the hour of 7:30 p.m., or as soon 

thereafter as possible, in the regular meeting place of the City Council, Council    



 
 -2- 

Chambers, 429 C Street, Lemoore, California, is hereby fixed as the time and place for        
 public hearing when and where all interested persons may be heard regarding the question 
 of levy and collection of the proposed assessments in LLMD Zones 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 8A, 9, 
10, 11, 12, 12A and 13 for fiscal year 2013-14.  At the hearing, any interested person shall 
be permitted to present written or oral testimony.  

 
6. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to give notice of the public hearing by 

publication of this Resolution in accordance with subdivision (a) of Section 22626 of the 
Act. 

 
7.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

 
 *   *   *   *   * 

Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore 
held on the 21st day of May, 2013 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTAINING:  
       APPROVED: 
 
             
       William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
       
ATTEST: 
 
     
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE ) 
 
 I, Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore do hereby certify the foregoing 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was duly passed and adopted at a 
Regular Meeting held on May 21, 2013. 
 
DATED:  May ___, 2013 
 
            
       Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
        



 
 -3- 

 

 



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

               City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Clerk 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

         ITEM # 3F 
           
           
To: Lemoore City Council 

From: Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 

Date: May 16, 2013 

Subject:           Resolution 2013-12 – Intention to Levy and Collect the Annual Assessments within 
Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1, (PFMD) Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 of the 
City of Lemoore 

 
Discussion: 
The resolution before the Council begins the Proposition 218 process of levying and collecting the 
Annual Assessments for the PFMD Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5.  The City Engineer has prepared and filed 
with the City Clerk a report entitled “Engineer’s Report and Assessment of the City of Lemoore Public 
Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 for Zones 1 - 5”.  Said report contains a description of the existing 
improvements and facilities, the boundaries of Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 of the PFMD, the amount of the 
assessments, and other information required by law.   
 
Listed are the current assessments for Fiscal Year 2012-2013 and the proposed assessments for 
Fiscal Year 2013-2014 on the properties located in District No. 1 for Zones 1 – 5.  The PFMD Zones 
have a cost escalator included in the assessment which is tied to the Employment Cost Index which 
increased 2.2% from December 2011 to December 2012.   
         

2012/2013  2013/2014 
Zone 1 The Landing, Phases 1, 2, 3          $724.56     $736.24 
Zone 2 Liberty, Phases 1 and 2    $1,025.98         $1,043.34 

 Zone 3 Silva Estates 10             $963.18     $979.48 
 Zone 4 Parkview Estates                     $514.50     $522.64 
 Zone 5 East Village Park                          $1,273.80                   $1,247.62 
    
No new improvements are proposed for these Zones. 
 
A public hearing will be set for Tuesday, July 16, 2013 for any interested parties to present testimony. 
 
Budget Impact: 
The increased assessments would go into the PFMD account to cover the cost of maintaining the 
zone which includes the cost of publishing the resolution, estimated at approximately $800.00. 
 
Recommendation: 
Council, by motion, approve Resolution 2013-12 - Intention to Levy and Collect the Annual 
Assessments for Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1, (PFMD) Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 of the 
City of Lemoore.      
 
 
 
 



Engineer’s Report and Assessment 
For Zones 1 - 5 

 

 
 
 

PUBLIC FACILITIES 
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 

 

 
 
 
 

City of Lemoore 
 

Kings County, California 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Quad Knopf, Inc. 
P.O. Box 3699 
Visalia, California 93278 
 

May 2013 Submitted to: 
 
City Council 
City of Lemoore 
Park and Recreation Department 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, California 93245 

 



 

© Copyright by Quad Knopf, Inc. 
 Unauthorized use prohibited. 
L090138 

 
 

ENGINEER’S REPORT AND ASSESSMENT 
 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
PUBLIC FACILITES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, 

ZONES 1 - 5 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

Mayor – William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem – Lois Wynne 

 
 

Council Members 
 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 
 

THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

Quad Knopf, Inc. 
P.O. Box 3699 

Visalia, CA  93278 
Tel. No:  (559) 733-0440 
Fax No:  (559) 627-2336 

harryt@quadknopf.com 
 
 
 

May 2013 
 

mailto:harryt@quadknopf.com






 i 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

Engineer's Report 
 Certificates of Filing ...............................................................................................................1 

 Introduction .............................................................................................................................2 

 Engineer of Work Statement ...................................................................................................4 

 

Exhibit A 
 Description of Improvements .................................................................................................5 

 

Exhibit B 
 Engineer's Estimate .................................................................................................................9 

 

Exhibit C 
 Method of Apportionment ....................................................................................................16 

 

Exhibit D 
 Assessment Roll ....................................................................................................................18 

 

Exhibit E 
 Assessment District and Zone Location; Assessment Diagram  ..........................................33 

 

 

 



ENGINEER'S REPORT 





City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  2 

INTRODUCTION 
 

 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore adopted its General Plan with various elements to provide guidelines 

for orderly development within the community.  The City Council further adopted ordinances and regulations 

governing the development of land providing for the installation and construction of certain lighting, 

landscaping, street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities to enhance the quality of life and to benefit the 

value of property. 

 

The requirement for the installation of lighting, landscaping, streets and appurtenant facilities is a condition of 

development provided for in the City's Subdivision Ordinance and is a requirement for issuance of a permit for 

construction of commercial, residential, and planned unit development.  Lighting, landscaping, streets and 

appurtenant facilities generally includes street lights, trees, shrubs, plants, turf, irrigation systems, local street 

paving, parks and necessary appurtenances including curbs, hardscape, monumentation, fencing located in 

public rights-of-ways, medians, parkways, and/or easements adjacent to public rights-of-ways, in and along 

major thoroughfares, primary and secondary arterials, and local streets as defined in the General Plan's 

Circulation Element. 

 

The installation of street lights, landscaping and appurtenant facilities is the responsibility of the subdivider or 

other development/applicant, triggered by the approval of a tentative subdivision map or other development 

application.  When on any given street of the approved system, a majority of the required landscaping has been 

provided, and it has been determined that landscaping in front of, or adjacent to certain already developed 

properties is required to bridge missing gaps, and/or where the future development or redevelopment of 

existing property is not likely to occur in the foreseeable future, the City Council may deem it appropriate to 

retrofit or fill such gaps. 

 

After installation, it is City policy that the servicing, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the 

lighting, landscaping, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities in turn become the financial 

responsibility of the properties that specially benefit from the facilities. 

 

The City's lighting, landscape, local street paving and parks maintenance and replacement program is 

administered according to the provisions of Proposition 218 (Article XIIID of the California Constitution), 

Chapter 10 of Title 7 of the Municipal Code, which was added by Ordinance No. 2006-01 of the City of 

Lemoore, the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act (Government Code Sections 53750 through 

53754) and, to the extent applicable, the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (Streets and Highways Code 

Part 2, Division 15). 

 

The City cannot feasibly fund by any other method the maintenance and required periodic replacement of such 

facilities which must be installed with new development.  Therefore, the City has determined that such 

maintenance, operation, repair and replacement should be funded through usage of the assessments on 

properties within the boundaries of Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1.  The property owners in each 

Zone of said District enjoy a special benefit from these facilities within the applicable Zone, over and above the 

general benefits received by these property owners and the public generally, and the assessments levied under 

this District fund such benefit. 

 

Payment of the assessments will be made in the same manner and at the same time in as the ad valorem 

property tax for each lot and parcel. 

 

The annual assessment proceedings will be conducted under Ordinance No. 2006-01, Proposition 218, the 

Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act and, to the extent applicable, the Landscaping and Lighting 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  3 

Act of 1972, Sections 22500 through 22679, Part 2, Division 15, of the Streets and Highways Code of the 

State of California. 

 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore will set the time and place for a public hearing in the Resolution of 

Intention. 

 

Notice of the public hearing will be given by publishing the Resolution of Intention once, at least 10 days 

before the date set for the public hearing. 

 

After reviewing testimony, as well as the projected year's costs for the servicing, maintenance, repair and 

replacement of the facilities in the District as herein described, the City Council will set and levy the 

assessments for Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 of the District for fiscal year 2013-2014, which runs between July 1 and 

June 30. 

 

This report contains the necessary data required to conduct the proceedings and is submitted to the Clerk of the 

City for filing. 

 





EXHIBIT A 
 

Description of Improvements 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  5 

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 
 

(Pursuant to City of Lemoore Ordinance No. 2006-01) 

 

 

Location of Landscaping, Lighting, Streets and Appurtenant Facilities 

 

The locations of lighting, landscaping, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities in the benefit Zones 

within the Assessment District are depicted on the Assessment Diagram as shown in Exhibit "E" herein which 

Diagram includes the following subdivisions, lots and/or parcels: 

 

Zone 1 

 

Boundaries of Zone 1 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 817, The Landing, Phases 1 and 2, recorded in Volume 23 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 

60, Kings County Records.  

 

Tract No. 817, The Landing, Phase 3, recorded in Volume 23 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 92, 

Kings County Records.  

 

Zone 2 

 

Boundaries of Zone 2 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 821, Liberty, Phase 1, recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 78, Kings 

County Records.  

 

Tract No. 821, Liberty, Phase 2, recorded in volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 87, 

Kings County Records. 

 

Zone 3 

 

Boundaries of Zone 3 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 838, Silva Estates, Phase 10, recorded in Volume 23 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 36, 

Kings County Records.  

 

Zone 4 

 

Boundaries of Zone 4 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 797, Parkview Estates, recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 26, Kings 

County Records.  

 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  6 

Zone 5 

 

Boundaries of Zone 5 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 791, East Village Park, recorded in Volume 21 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 71, Kings 

County Records.  

 

Plans and Specifications 

 

The plans and specifications (the “Plans”) for the improvements to be maintained, operated, repaired and 

periodically replaced benefiting Zone 1 of the District by the Parks and Recreation Department and by the 

Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore, dated September 7, 2004 are incorporated herein by 

reference.  Said plans are a part of the improvement plans required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of 

approval of the tentative map of Tract 817 by Council Resolution No. 2004-47, September 7, 2004, approving 

the development as a Planned Unit Development, a Conditional Use Permit, and a vesting tentative subdivision 

map, Tentative Map No. 2004-03.  

  

The plans and specifications (the “Plans”) for the improvements to be maintained, operated, repaired and 

periodically replaced benefiting Zone 2 of the District by the Parks and Recreation Department and by the 

Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore, dated June 6, 2006, are incorporated herein by reference.  

Said plans are a part of the improvement plans required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of approval of 

the tentative map of Tract 821 by Council Resolution No. 2005-08, February 15, 2005, approving the 

development as a Planned Unit Development, a Conditional Use Permit, and a vesting tentative subdivision 

map, Tentative Map No. 2004-05.  

 

The plans and specifications (the “Plans”) for the improvements to be maintained, operated, repaired and 

periodically replaced benefiting Zone 3 of the District by the Parks and Recreation Department and by the 

Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore, dated February 27, 2006, are incorporated herein by 

reference.  The Plans are a part of the improvement plans required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of 

approval of the tentative map of Tract 838 by Council Resolution No. 2005-11, March 15, 2005, approving the 

development as a Planned Unit Development, a Conditional Use Permit, and a vesting tentative subdivision 

map, Tentative Map No. 2004-07. 

 

The plans and specifications (the “Plans”) for the improvements to be maintained, operated, repaired and 

periodically replaced benefiting Zone 4 of the District by the Parks and Recreation Department and by the 

Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore, dated November 6, 2005, are incorporated herein by 

reference.  The Plans are a part of the improvement plans required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of 

approval of the tentative map of Tract 797 by Council Resolution No. 2004-06, February 17, 2004, approving 

the development as a Planned Unit Development, a Conditional Use Permit, and a vesting tentative subdivision 

map, Tentative Map No. 2003-03. 

 

The plans and specifications (the “Plans”) for the improvements to be maintained, operated, repaired and 

periodically replaced benefiting Zone 5 of the District by the Parks and Recreation Department and by the 

Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore, dated May 17, 2006, are incorporated herein by reference.  

The Plans are a part of the improvement plans required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of approval of 

the tentative map of Tract 791 by Council Resolution No. 2011-34, August 16, 2011, approving the 

development as a Planned Unit Development, a Conditional Use Permit, and a vesting tentative subdivision 

map, Tentative Map No. 2011-02. 

 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  7 

Detailed plans for each Zone have been prepared by the project developer and are on file with the City Clerk of 

the City of Lemoore.   

 

Description of Work  

 

The work includes maintaining, operating, repairing and periodically replacing landscaping, street lights, local 

street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities described as follows: 

 

Plants, shrubbery, trees, turf, irrigation systems, entry monuments, local street maintenance, parks, hardscapes, 

walls, fencing,  street lights and appurtenant facilities in public rights-of-way and easements within or 

appurtenant to the boundaries of the applicable benefit Zone of said District. 

 

The locations of such facilities, as previously described, are within the boundaries of the District, and within or 

appurtenant to the boundaries of Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 as shown on the Assessment Diagram, Exhibit "E" 

herein.  Approved plans for landscaping, lighting, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities 

benefiting Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 are filed with the City Clerk and incorporated herein by reference. 

 

Maintenance means the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and usual maintenance, operation 

and servicing of the lighting, landscaping, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities. Maintenance for 

landscaping means, but is not limited to, the repair, removal or replacement of landscaping and walls providing 

for the life, growth, health and beauty of landscaping, including cultivation, irrigation, trimming, spraying, 

fertilizing and treating for disease or injury and the removal of trimmings, rubbish, debris and other solid 

waste.  Maintenance for street lights means but is not limited to the furnishing of services and materials for the 

ordinary and usual maintenance and repair of street lights including poles, lens and bulb replacement.  

Maintenance for local street paving means but is not limited to the scheduled sealing, capping, and 

remixing/resurfacing of such paving.  Maintenance for trees means, but is not limited to, the trimming and 

required replacement of trees in development–adjacent or development-contained arterial or collector streets, 

medians or parkways, but not street trees on local streets fronting residences.  Maintenance for parks interior to, 

or determined by the Council to provide special benefit to property in, the applicable benefit Zone includes, but 

is not limited to the continuing maintenance and required and required replacement of park facilities, including 

tot lot and playground equipment, trees, park furniture, turf, landscaping and restrooms.  Maintenance of 

sidewalks, curb and gutter includes the required replacement of such improvements only in or fronting parks or 

tot lots or in arterial or collector street parkways or medians adjacent to or contained in the development. 

 

Operating for landscaping improvements means but is not limited to the furnishing of water and electricity for 

irrigation of the landscaping and the maintenance of any of the appurtenant facilities.  For lighting facilities, 

operating means but is not limited to furnishing the utility power necessary for energizing of electroliers. 

 

The improvements described herein for which maintenance, operating, repair and periodic replacement for, and 

for which assessments are required to fund such maintenance, servicing and periodic replacement, are those 

required as conditions of approval of the vesting tentative maps of Tract 817, Tract 821, Tract 838, Tract 797, 

and Tract 791: 

 

 The final map of Phase 1 of Tract 817 (39 single-family lots), Phase 2 (32 single-family lots), and 

Phase 3 (41 single-family lots) of which constitute Zone 1 hereunder, were approved by the City 

Council on September 6, 2005, June 27, 2007, and July 19, 2011, respectively. 

 The final map of Phases 1 and 2 of Tract 821, the 242 single-family lots of which constitute Zone 2 

hereunder, was approved by the City Council on June 6, 2006. 

 The final map of Phase 10 of Tract 838, the 74 single-family lots and 5 multi-family lots of which 

constitute Zone 3 hereunder, was approved by the City Council on August 10, 2006. 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  8 

 The final map of Tract 797, the 39 single-family lots of which constitute Zone 4 hereunder, was 

approved by the City Council on January 17, 2006. 

 The final map of Tract 791, the 81 single-family lots of which constitute Zone 5 hereunder, was 

approved by the City Council on July 29, 2011. 



EXHIBIT B 
 

Engineer's Estimate 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  9 

EXHIBIT B 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE 
 

 

Actual costs of maintenance and required periodic replacement of improvements have been determined by the 

Engineer of Work in consultation with the City staff. Such costs are reflected to the extent currently feasible in 

the assessments for Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5.  It should be noted that, based on these unit cost assessments and 

the improvements to be maintained, serviced and operated in these Zones, the actual costs during the past fiscal 

year and projected for this fiscal year may be greater than the proposed assessments.   

 

Table 1 details unit costs for maintenance and replacement for each Zone. Table 2 shows the total costs to be 

assessed to each Zone.  Table 3 estimates the incidental costs required to process the assessments. 

 

TABLE 1A 

UNIT COST ESTIMATES - ZONE 1 
 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE – Zone 1, Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 

1. Maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs, Annual, Tract 817 (112 lots) 

Item Unit O & M Replacement Annual Cost Total 

Street Lights 36 EA $51.88 $27.27 $2,849 

Trees 50 EA $149.46 $6.54 $7,800 

Turf 13,000 S. F. $1.215 $.053 $16,484 

Planter 825 S. F. $1.215 $.065 $1,056 

Dump Fee 13,825 S. F. $.0231 0 $319 

Block Wall 770 L. F. 0 $.654 $504 

Water/Electricity 13,825 S. F. $.273 $.0651 $4,674 

Park & Tot Lot 

Tot Lot  1 EA $1,243 $1,048 $2,291 

Turf/Planter 8,832 S. F. $1.215 $.053 $11,199 

Block Wall 215 L. F. 0 $.654 $141 

Sidewalk 2,340 S. F. 0 $.0538 $126 

Trees 16 EA $149.46 $6.54 $2,496 

Local Street Paving Maintenance (30-Yr Cycle) 

Reclamite 210,000 S. F. $.0063 0 $1,323 

Crack Filling 210,000 S. F. $.0079 0 $1,659 

1½” Overlay 210,000 S. F. $.0428 0 $8,988 

Remix 210,000 S. F. $.0858 0 $18,018 

SW/Cross Gutter 26,760 S. F. $.0538 0 $1,440 

C & G 405 L. F. $.3766 0 $153 

   Total $81,520 

     

Cost of Total Required Assessment on Zone 1 $81,520 

 

Note:  The above costs are based on an Employment Cost Index for total compensation for State and local 

government workers of 119.9 (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, December, 2012).* 

 

 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  10 

TABLE 1B 

UNIT COST ESTIMATES - ZONE 2 
 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE – Zone 2, Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 

1. Maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs, Annual, Tract 821 (242 lots) 

Item Unit O & M Replacement Annual Cost Total 

Street Lights 91 EA $51.88 $27.27 $7,203 

Trees 281 EA $149.46 $6.54 $43,836 

Turf 26,360 S. F. $1.069 $.053 $29,576 

Planter 31,525 S. F. $1.069 $.065 $35,749 

Dump Fee 57,885 S. F. $.0231 0 $1,337 

Block Wall 5,525 L. F. 0 $.654 $3,613 

Water/Electricity 57,885 S. F. $.273 $.0651 $19,571 

Park & Tot Lot 

Tot Lot  1 EA $1,243 $1,048 $2,291 

Turf/Planter 52,475 S. F. $.810 $.0362 $44,404 

Block Wall 410 L. F. 0 $.654 $268 

Sidewalk 6,000 S. F. 0 $.0538 $323 

Trees 32 EA $149.46 $6.54 $4,992 

Local Street Paving Maintenance (40-Yr Cycle) 

Reclamite 446,325 S. F. $.0049 0 $2,187 

Crack Filling 446,325 S. F. $.0060 0 $2,678 

1½” Overlay 446,325 S. F. $.0323 0 $14,416 

Remix 446,325 S. F. $.0647 0 $28,877 

SW/Cross Gutter 56,990 S. F. $.0404 0 $2,302 

C & G 24,170 L. F. $.2829 0 $6,838 

   Total $250,461 

     

Cost of Total Required Assessment on Zone 2 $250,461 

 

Note:  The above costs are based on an Employment Cost Index for total compensation for State and local 

government workers of 119.9 (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, December 2012).* 

 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  11 

TABLE 1C 

UNIT COST ESTIMATES - ZONE 3 
 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE – Zone 3, Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 

1.  Maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs, Annual, Tract 838 (74 lots) 

Item Unit O & M Replacement Annual Cost Total 

Street Lights 31 EA $51.88 $27.27 $2,454 

Trees 70 EA $149.46 $6.54 $10,920 

Turf 8,590 S. F. $1.215 $.053 $10,892 

Planter 17,935 S. F. $1.215 $.065 $22,957 

Dump Fee 26,525 S. F. $.0231 0 $613 

Block Wall 1,825 L. F. 0 $.654 $1,194 

Water/Electricity 26,525 S. F. $.273 $.0651 $8,968 

Local Street Paving Maintenance (40-Yr Cycle) 

Reclamite 115,870 S. F. $.0049 0 $568 

Crack Filling 115,870 S. F. $.0060 0 $695 

1½” Overlay 115,870 S. F. $.0323 0 $3,743 

Remix 115,870 S. F. $.0647 0 $7,497 

SW/Cross Gutter 14,415 S. F. $.0404 0 $582 

C & G 2,750 L. F. $.2829 0 $778 

   Total $71,861 

     

Cost of Total Required Assessment on Zone 3 $71,861 
Number of parcels (single-family lots) in Phase 10 of Tract 838: 74 

Number of parcels (multi-family lots) in Phase 10 of Tract 838: 5 

 

Note:  The above costs are based on an Employment Cost Index for Total Compensation for State and 

Local Government workers of 119.9 (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, December 2012).* 

 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  12 

TABLE 1D 

UNIT COST ESTIMATES - ZONE 4 
 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE – Zone 4, Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 

1.  Maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs, Annual, Tract 797 (39 lots) 

Item Unit O & M Replacement Annual Cost Total 

Street Lights 9 EA $30.97 $27.27 $524 

Trees 31 EA $149.46 $6.54 $4,836 

Turf 1,350 S. F. $1.215 $.053 $1,727 

Planter 3,360 S. F. $1.215 $.065 $4,301 

Dump Fee 4,710 S. F. $.0231 0 $109 

Block Wall 375 L. F. 0 $.654 $245 

Water/Electricity 4,710 S. F. $.273 $.0651 $1,592 

Local Street Paving Maintenance (40-Yr Cycle) 

Reclamite 59,370 S. F. $.0049 0 $291 

Crack Filling 59,370 S. F. $.0060 0 $356 

1½” Overlay 59,370 S. F. $.0323 0 $1,918 

Remix 59,370 S. F. $.0647 0 $3,841 

SW/Cross Gutter 3,860 S. F. $.0404 0 $156 

C & G 565 L. F. $.2829 0 $160 

   Total $20,056 

     

Cost of Total Required Assessment on Zone 4 $20,056 

 

Note:  The above costs are based on an Employment Cost Index for Total Compensation for State and 

Local Government workers of 119.9 (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, December 2012).* 

 

 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  13 

TABLE 1E 

UNIT COST ESTIMATES - ZONE 5 
 

EXHIBIT B 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE – Zone 5, Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 

1.  Maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs, Annual, Tract 791 (81 lots) 

 

Item 

 

Unit 

 

O & M 

 

Replacement 

Annual Cost 

Total 

Street Lights 27 EA $51.88 $27.27 $2,137 

Trees 33 EA $149.46 $6.54 $5,148 

Planter 14,775 S. F. $1.215 $.065 $18,912 

Dump Fee 14,775 S. F. $.0231 0 $341 

Block Wall 1,090 L. F. 0 $.654 $713 

Water/Electricity 14,775 S. F. $.273 $.0651 $4,995 

Park & Tot Lot 

Tot Lot  1 EA $1,243 $1,048 $2,291 

Water Feature 1 EA $408 $306 $714 

Turf/Planter 38,070 S.F. $.810 $.0362 $32,215 

Block Wall 525 L. F. 0 $.654 $343 

Sidewalk/Hardscape 6,285 S. F. 0 $.0538 $338 

Trees 38 EA $149.46 $6.54 $5,928 

Dump Fee 38,070 S.F. $.0231 0 $879 

Water/Electricity 

For Turf 

38,070 S.F. $.273 $.0651 $12,871 

Water For Water 

Feature 

1 EA $1,834 0 $1,834 

Local Street Paving Maintenance (40-Yr Cycle) 

Reclamite 93,680 S. F. $.0049 0 $459 

Crack Filling 93,680 S. F. $.0060 0 $562 

1½” Overlay 93,680 S. F. $.0323 0 $3,026 

Remix 93,680 S. F. $.0647 0 $6,061 

Arterial/Collector Streets 

SW/Cross Gutter 5,465 S. F. $.0404 0 $221 

C & G 1,380 L. F. $.2829 0 $390 

   Total $100,378 

     

Cost of Total Required Assessment on Zone 5 $100,378 

 

Note:  The above costs are based on an Employment Cost Index for Total Compensation for State and 

Local Government workers of 119.9 (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, December 2012). * 
 

                                                                 
* The 12-month change in the index from December 2011 to December 2012 was +1.9% 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  14 

TABLE 2 

ESTIMATED COSTS TO ASSESSMENT 

2013-2014 
             

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $81,520.00   

1 112 112 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 714.88   

   3. Noticing 112.00   

   4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per Lot) 112.00   
        

   Total Costs to Assessment  $82,458.88  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 1   $82,458.88  
        

             

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $250,461   

2 242 242 2. Incidental Costs( See Table 3) 1,543.28   

   3. Noticing 242.00   

   4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per Lot) 242.00   
        

   Total Costs to Assessment  $252,488.28  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 2   $252,488.28  
        

                

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $71,861.00    

3 74 74 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 472.52  

   3. Noticing 74.00   

   4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per Lot) 74.00   
        

   Total Costs to Assessment  $72,481.52  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 3   $72,481.52 
        

             

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $20,056.00   

4 39 39 2. Incidental Costs( See Table 3) 248.96  

   3. Noticing 39.00   

   4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per Lot) 39.00   
        

   Total Costs to Assessment  $20,382.96  
        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 4   $20,382.96 
        

        

Zone EDU Lots 1. Landscape Maintenance Costs $100,378.00  

5 81 81 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 517.22  

   3. Noticing 81.00  

   4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per Lot) 81.00  
                

   Total Costs to Assessment  $101,057.22 
        

   2013-14 Assessment – Zone 5  $101,057.22 
        

        

TOTAL EDU Lots      

  548 548      

 

 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  15 

TABLE 3 

ESTIMATED INCIDENTAL COSTS TO ASSESSMENT 

APRIL 2013 THROUGH MARCH 2014 
 

 Estimated Cost 
Engineering Fees, Legal Fees, and 

City Administrative Costs 
$3,500.00 

  
 



EXHIBIT C 
 

Method of Apportionment 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  16 

EXHIBIT C 

RATE AND METHOD OF ASSESSMENT 
 

 

General Discussion 

 

The improvements described in Exhibit “A” are provided for the particular, distinct special benefit directly 

received by each lot or parcel in each benefit Zone of the District, above the benefit received by these lots and 

parcels or the public generally.  Each lot or parcel has been determined to directly and specially benefit 

proportionally by Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU).   

 

City noticing and County administrative expenses will be apportioned to each lot or parcel as one unit of 

assessment for each lot/parcel. 

 

The annual maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs of the facilities and improvements 

benefiting Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 of the District described in Exhibit “A” of this Report, are estimated in 

Exhibit “B.” 

 

The City is unable to provide funds for such maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the 

described facilities and improvements.  The facilities and improvements and their maintenance, operation, 

repair and periodic replacement provide equally for each lot and parcel in the District essential safety, lighting, 

property access, security and aesthetically-pleasing public right-of-way landscaping not available to the general 

community.  The value, accessibility, appearance, safety and use of each lot and parcel in the District are 

significantly and directly enhanced by regular maintenance and periodic replacement of these facilities and 

improvements.  These are special benefits distinct and particular to the lots and parcels in this District and not 

realized by the general community.  Therefore, annual maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement 

of the described facilities and improvements, and the funding thereof, provide direct special benefits to the lots 

and parcels in each Zone of the District, over and above general benefits conferred on real property in the Zone 

or to the public at large. 

 

Moreover, the Engineer has determined that each individual lot and parcel in each Zone in the District 

established by a recorded final subdivision is benefited equally by such annual maintenance and periodic 

replacement.  Each assessed lot and parcel contains, or will contain in accord with the City’s development 

approvals, a single dwelling unit.  Each lot and parcel, within a particular Zone, therefore derives the same 

proportionate special benefit from the assessed facilities and improvements and their regular maintenance and 

periodic replacement. 

 

Accordingly, the individual annual assessment for each lot and parcel in each Zone in the District (the 

“Maximum Annual Assessment”) is determined by dividing the total estimated costs of annual maintenance 

and replacement and related notice and processing fees (for fiscal year 2013-14, set forth in Exhibit “B”) by the 

total number of lots and parcels in the Zone.  The costs of such maintenance and periodic replacement will 

increase each year.  In order to assure continued adequacy of the financing of such costs and, therefore, the 

continued special benefits to the lots and parcels in the District, the Maximum Annual Assessment shall be 

comparably and automatically increased each fiscal year to cover the maintenance and replacement cost 

increases.  The annual increase in the Maximum Annual Assessment shall be in accordance with increases in 

the Employment Cost Index for total compensation for State and Local Government Workers (the “Index”), 

published quarterly by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics.  Increases in the Index will track comparably to 

increases in the costs of annual maintenance and periodic replacement of the described facilities and 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5  17 

improvements, since the majority of the maintenance and replacement work is and will be done by City 

employees. 

 

Therefore, the annual assessment each fiscal year on each lot and parcel in the District shall be determined and 

levied according to the above rate and methodology up to, but not more than, the Maximum Annual 

Assessment as increased for that fiscal year by the Index.  The actual annual assessments may be less than or 

up to the Maximum Annual Assessment, as so increased, but cannot exceed the Maximum Annual 

Assessment, as so increased, without approval in a property owner ballot proceeding under Proposition 218 

and the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act.  This methodology for determining Maximum Annual 

Assessments, including annual increases according to the Index, was approved by a majority of property 

owners at a duly noticed and conducted property owner ballot proceeding in 2006 for Zone 1, in 2007 for 

Zone 2, in 2008 for Zones 3 and 4, and 2012 for Zone 5.  Therefore, no additional property ballot proceeding 

will be required to increase the annual assessments according to the Index, up to the Maximum Annual 

Assessment. 

 

The actual assessment and Maximum Annual Assessment on each lot and parcel in Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 of 

the District for fiscal year 2013-14 is set forth in Exhibit “D” of this Report.  The Maximum Annual 

Assessments proposed within Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 are proposed to increase from the previous fiscal year.  

 

Hearing Dates 

 

A hearing will be held at the regularly scheduled City Council meeting on July 16, 2013.  Individuals will be 

allowed to give testimony.  Final assessments will be levied on Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 at this meeting. The 

County shall be notified of the final assessment amounts. 

 



EXHIBIT D 
 

Assessment Roll 



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

1 023-600-001-000 $736.24

1 023-600-002-000 736.24

1 023-600-003-000 736.24

1 023-600-004-000 736.24

1 023-600-005-000 736.24

1 023-600-006-000 $736.24

1 023-600-007-000 736.24

1 023-600-008-000 736.24

1 023-600-009-000 736.24

1 023-600-012-000 736.24

1 023-600-013-000 $736.24

1 023-600-014-000 736.24

1 023-600-015-000 736.24

1 023-600-016-000 736.24

1 023-600-017-000 736.24

1 023-600-018-000 $736.24

1 023-600-019-000 736.24

1 023-600-020-000 736.24

1 023-600-021-000 736.24

1 023-600-022-000 736.24

1 023-600-023-000 $736.24

1 023-600-024-000 736.24

1 023-600-025-000 736.24

1 023-600-026-000 736.24

1 023-600-027-000 736.24

1 023-600-028-000 $736.24

1 023-600-029-000 736.24

1 023-600-030-000 736.24

1 023-600-031-000 736.24

1 023-600-032-000 736.24

1 023-600-033-000 $736.24

1 023-600-034-000 736.24

1 023-600-035-000 736.24

1 023-600-036-000 736.24

1 023-600-037-000 736.24

1 023-600-038-000 $736.24

1 023-600-039-000 736.24

1 023-600-040-000 736.24

1 023-600-041-000 736.24

1 023-600-043-000 736.24

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

18



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

1 023-600-044-000 $736.24

1 023-600-045-000 736.24

1 023-600-046-000 736.24

1 023-600-047-000 736.24

1 023-600-048-000 736.24

1 023-600-049-000 $736.24

1 023-600-050-000 736.24

1 023-600-051-000 736.24

1 023-600-052-000 736.24

1 023-600-053-000 736.24

1 023-600-054-000 $736.24

1 023-600-055-000 736.24

1 023-600-056-000 736.24

1 023-600-057-000 736.24

1 023-600-058-000 736.24

1 023-600-059-000 $736.24

1 023-600-060-000 736.24

1 023-600-061-000 736.24

1 023-600-062-000 736.24

1 023-600-063-000 736.24

1 023-600-064-000 $736.24

1 023-600-065-000 736.24

1 023-600-066-000 736.24

1 023-600-067-000 736.24

1 023-600-068-000 736.24

1 023-600-069-000 $736.24

1 023-600-070-000 736.24

1 023-600-071-000 736.24

1 023-600-072-000 736.24

1 023-600-073-000 736.24

1 023-600-074-000 $736.24

1 023-620-001-000 736.24

1 023-620-002-000 736.24

1 023-620-003-000 736.24

1 023-620-004-000 736.24

1 023-620-005-000 $736.24

1 023-620-006-000 736.24

1 023-620-007-000 736.24

1 023-620-008-000 736.24

1 023-620-009-000 736.24

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

19



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

1 023-620-010-000 $736.24

1 023-620-011-000 736.24

1 023-620-012-000 736.24

1 023-620-013-000 736.24

1 023-620-014-000 736.24

1 023-620-015-000 $736.24

1 023-620-016-000 736.24

1 023-620-017-000 736.24

1 023-620-019-000 736.24

1 023-620-020-000 736.24

1 023-620-021-000 $736.24

1 023-620-022-000 736.24

1 023-620-023-000 736.24

1 023-620-024-000 736.24

1 023-620-025-000 736.24

1 023-620-026-000 $736.24

1 023-620-027-000 736.24

1 023-620-028-000 736.24

1 023-620-029-000 736.24

1 023-620-030-000 736.24

1 023-620-031-000 $736.24

1 023-620-032-000 736.24

1 023-620-033-000 736.24

1 023-620-034-000 736.24

1 023-620-035-000 736.24

1 023-620-036-000 $736.24

1 023-620-037-000 736.24

1 023-620-038-000 736.24

1 023-620-039-000 736.24

1 023-620-040-000 736.24

1 023-620-041-000 $736.24

1 023-620-042-000 736.24

Total Assessment Zone 1 $82,458.88

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

20



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

2 021-780-001-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-002-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-003-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-004-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-005-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-006-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-007-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-008-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-009-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-010-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-011-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-012-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-013-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-014-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-015-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-016-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-018-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-019-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-020-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-021-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-022-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-023-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-024-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-025-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-026-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-027-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-028-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-029-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-030-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-031-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-032-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-033-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-035-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-036-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-037-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-038-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-039-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-040-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-041-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-042-000 1,043.34

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

21



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

2 021-780-043-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-044-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-045-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-046-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-047-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-048-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-049-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-050-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-051-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-052-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-054-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-055-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-056-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-057-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-058-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-059-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-060-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-061-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-062-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-063-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-064-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-065-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-066-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-068-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-069-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-070-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-071-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-072-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-073-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-074-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-075-000 $1,043.34

2 021-780-076-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-077-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-078-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-079-000 1,043.34

2 021-780-080-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-001-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-002-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-003-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-004-000 1,043.34

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

22



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

2 021-790-005-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-006-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-007-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-008-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-009-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-010-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-011-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-012-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-013-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-014-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-015-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-016-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-017-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-018-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-019-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-021-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-022-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-023-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-024-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-025-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-026-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-027-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-028-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-029-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-030-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-031-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-032-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-035-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-036-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-037-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-038-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-039-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-040-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-041-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-042-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-043-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-044-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-045-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-046-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-047-000 1,043.34

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

23



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

2 021-790-048-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-049-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-050-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-051-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-052-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-053-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-054-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-055-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-056-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-057-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-058-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-059-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-060-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-061-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-062-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-064-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-065-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-066-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-067-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-068-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-069-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-070-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-071-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-072-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-073-000 1,043.34

2 021-790-074-000 $1,043.34

2 021-790-075-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-001-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-002-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-003-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-004-000 $1,043.34

2 021-800-005-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-006-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-007-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-008-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-009-000 $1,043.34

2 021-800-010-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-011-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-012-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-013-000 1,043.34

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

24



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

2 021-800-014-000 $1,043.34

2 021-800-015-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-016-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-017-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-018-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-019-000 $1,043.34

2 021-800-020-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-021-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-022-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-023-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-024-000 $1,043.34

2 021-800-025-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-026-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-027-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-028-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-029-000 $1,043.34

2 021-800-030-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-031-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-032-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-033-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-034-000 $1,043.34

2 021-800-035-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-036-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-037-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-038-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-039-000 $1,043.34

2 021-800-040-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-041-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-042-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-043-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-044-000 $1,043.34

2 021-800-045-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-046-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-047-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-048-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-049-000 $1,043.34

2 021-800-050-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-051-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-052-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-053-000 1,043.34

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

25



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

2 021-800-054-000 $1,043.34

2 021-800-055-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-056-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-057-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-058-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-059-000 $1,043.34

2 021-800-060-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-061-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-062-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-063-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-064-000 $1,043.34

2 021-800-065-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-066-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-067-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-068-000 1,043.34

2 021-800-069-000 $1,043.34

2 021-800-070-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-001-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-002-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-003-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-004-000 $1,043.34

2 021-810-005-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-007-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-008-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-009-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-010-000 $1,043.34

2 021-810-011-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-012-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-013-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-014-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-016-000 $1,043.34

2 021-810-017-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-018-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-019-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-020-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-021-000 $1,043.34

2 021-810-022-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-023-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-024-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-025-000 1,043.34

2 021-810-026-000 $1,043.34

2 021-810-027-000 1,043.34

Total Assessment Zone 2 $252,488.28

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

26



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

3 023-360-008-000 $979.48

3 023-360-009-000 979.48

3 023-360-010-000 979.48

3 023-360-011-000 979.48

3 023-360-012-000 979.48

3 023-360-013-000 $979.48

3 023-360-014-000 979.48

3 023-360-015-000 979.48

3 023-360-016-000 979.48

3 023-360-017-000 979.48

3 023-360-018-000 $979.48

3 023-360-019-000 979.48

3 023-360-020-000 979.48

3 023-360-021-000 979.48

3 023-360-022-000 979.48

3 023-360-023-000 $979.48

3 023-360-024-000 979.48

3 023-360-025-000 979.48

3 023-360-026-000 979.48

3 023-360-027-000 979.48

3 023-360-028-000 $979.48

3 023-360-029-000 979.48

3 023-360-030-000 979.48

3 023-360-031-000 979.48

3 023-360-032-000 979.48

3 023-360-033-000 $979.48

3 023-360-034-000 979.48

3 023-360-035-000 979.48

3 023-360-036-000 979.48

3 023-360-037-000 979.48

3 023-360-043-000 $979.48

3 023-360-044-000 979.48

3 023-360-045-000 979.48

3 023-360-046-000 979.48

3 023-360-047-000 979.48

3 023-360-048-000 $979.48

3 023-360-049-000 979.48

3 023-360-050-000 979.48

3 023-360-051-000 979.48

3 023-360-052-000 979.48

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

27



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

3 023-360-053-000 $979.48

3 023-360-054-000 979.48

3 023-360-055-000 979.48

3 023-360-056-000 979.48

3 023-360-057-000 979.48

3 023-360-058-000 $979.48

3 023-360-059-000 979.48

3 023-360-060-000 979.48

3 023-360-061-000 979.48

3 023-360-062-000 979.48

3 023-360-063-000 $979.48

3 023-360-064-000 979.48

3 023-360-065-000 979.48

3 023-360-066-000 979.48

3 023-360-067-000 979.48

3 023-360-068-000 $979.48

3 023-360-069-000 979.48

3 023-360-070-000 979.48

3 023-360-071-000 979.48

3 023-360-072-000 979.48

3 023-360-073-000 $979.48

3 023-360-074-000 979.48

3 023-360-075-000 979.48

3 023-360-076-000 979.48

3 023-360-077-000 979.48

3 023-360-078-000 $979.48

3 023-360-079-000 979.48

3 023-360-080-000 979.48

3 023-360-081-000 979.48

3 023-360-082-000 979.48

3 023-360-083-000 $979.48

3 023-360-084-000 979.48

3 023-360-085-000 979.48

3 023-360-086-000 979.48

Total Assessment Zone 3 $72,481.52

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

28



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

4 021-260-004-000 $522.64

4 021-260-005-000 522.64

4 021-260-006-000 522.64

4 021-260-007-000 522.64

4 021-260-008-000 522.64

4 021-260-009-000 $522.64

4 021-260-010-000 522.64

4 021-260-011-000 522.64

4 021-260-012-000 522.64

4 021-260-013-000 522.64

4 021-260-014-000 $522.64

4 021-260-015-000 522.64

4 021-260-016-000 522.64

4 021-260-017-000 522.64

4 021-260-018-000 522.64

4 021-260-019-000 $522.64

4 021-260-020-000 522.64

4 021-260-021-000 522.64

4 021-260-022-000 522.64

4 021-260-023-000 522.64

4 021-260-024-000 $522.64

4 021-260-025-000 522.64

4 021-260-026-000 522.64

4 021-260-027-000 522.64

4 021-260-028-000 522.64

4 021-260-029-000 $522.64

4 021-260-030-000 522.64

4 021-260-031-000 522.64

4 021-260-032-000 522.64

4 021-260-033-000 522.64

4 021-260-034-000 $522.64

4 021-260-035-000 522.64

4 021-260-036-000 522.64

4 021-260-037-000 522.64

4 021-260-038-000 522.64

4 021-260-039-000 $522.64

4 021-260-040-000 522.64

4 021-041-041-000 522.64

4 021-260-042-000 522.64

Total Assessment Zone 4 $20,382.96

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

29



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

5 023-610-001-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-002-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-003-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-004-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-005-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-006-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-007-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-008-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-009-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-010-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-011-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-012-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-013-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-014-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-015-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-016-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-017-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-018-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-019-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-020-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-021-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-022-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-023-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-024-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-025-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-026-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-029-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-030-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-031-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-032-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-033-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-034-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-035-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-036-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-037-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-038-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-039-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-040-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-041-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-042-000 1,247.62

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

30



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

5 023-610-043-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-044-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-045-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-046-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-047-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-048-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-049-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-050-000 1,247.62

5 023-061-051-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-052-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-053-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-054-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-055-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-056-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-057-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-058-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-059-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-060-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-061-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-062-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-063-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-065-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-066-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-067-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-068-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-069-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-070-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-071-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-072-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-073-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-074-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-075-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-076-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-077-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-078-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-079-000 $1,247.62

5 023-610-080-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-081-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-082-000 1,247.62

5 023-610-083-000 1,247.62

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

31



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

5 023-610-084-000 $1,247.62

Total Assessment Zone 5 $101,057.22

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zones 1 - 5

May 2013

32



EXHIBIT E 
 

Assessment District and Zone Location 
Assessment Diagram 

 



P.O. BOX 3699
VISALIA CA 93278
TEL: (559) 733-0440
FAX: (559) 733-7821

5110 W. CYPRESS AVENUE

















Z
o
n

e 
5

 

 



Learn more about the Quad Knopf Effect {QKe} by visiting www.quadknopf.com 

 

 
 
 

5110 West Cypress Avenue 
Visalia, California  93277 

(559) 733-0440 
 
 

6051 North Fresno Street, Suite 200 
Fresno, California  93710 

(559) 449-2400 
 
 

735 Sunrise Avenue, Suite 100 
Roseville, California  95661 

(916) 784-7823 
 

5080 California Avenue, Suite 220 
Bakersfield, California  93309 

(661) 616-2600 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 -1- 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2013-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO LEVY AND COLLECT ANNUAL 
ASSESSMENTS WITHIN PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 

(PFMD), ZONES 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
 

At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore duly called and held on May 
21, 2013, at 7:30 p.m. on said day, it was moved by Council Member   , seconded by Council 
Member   and carried that the following Resolution be adopted:  
 

1. It is the intention of the Council to order the levy and collection of assessments within 
Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 (“PFMD”), Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 of the City of 
Lemoore for fiscal year 2013-14, under the authority of  Chapter 10 of Title 7 of the 
Lemoore Municipal Code, as enacted by Ordinance No. 2006-01 (the "Ordinance"), and 
according the procedures set forth in the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act 
(Government Code Sections 53750--53753.5, inclusive) (the "Implementation Act"), Article 
XIIID of the California Constitution ("Proposition 218") and, to the extent not inconsistent 
with the Ordinance, the procedures specified in the State Landscaping and Lighting Act of 
1972 (Chapter 2 of Part 2 of Division 15 of the California Streets & Highways Code) (the 
"Landscaping & Lighting Act"). The assessments within PFMD Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 are 
proposed to change from the previous fiscal year, but by no more than the increase in the 
Employment Cost Index for total compensation for State and Local Government Workers 
(the “Employee Cost Index”) during the previous fiscal year, which methodology for 
determining annual increases has been approved by a majority of property owners in 
PFMD Zones 1, 2, 3, 4 at duly noticed and conducted property owner ballot proceedings in 
2006, 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, and 2012  and Zone 5 in 2012 respectively. 

 
2. The territories of PFMD Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 are comprised of various territories 

generally located on the attached vicinity map which is the real property particularly, 
distinctly and specially benefited and to be assessed for the maintenance, repair, operation 
and periodic replacement of the facilities and improvements generally described in Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. 

 
3. The City Engineer has prepared and filed with the Clerk of the City of Lemoore a report 

labeled Engineer’s Report of the City of Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District 
No. 1, Zones 1 – 5, dated May, 2013, to which reference is hereby made for a description of 
the existing facilities and improvements, the boundaries of the assessment district and the 
referenced zones therein, including the general nature, location and extent of the facilities 
and improvements, and the proposed assessment upon assessable lots and parcels of land 
within PFMD Zone 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5.  No substantial changes are proposed to be made in the 
existing facilities and improvements, and no new facilities or improvements are proposed.  
The City Council intends to give final approval to the Engineer's Report at the conclusion 
of the public hearing described in paragraph 4, subject to changes, if any, ordered by the 
City Council during or upon the conclusion of the hearing. 

 
4.   Notice is hereby given that the 16h day of July, 2013, at the hour of 7:30 p.m. or as soon  

thereafter as possible, in the regular meeting place of the City Council, Council    
Chambers, 429 C Street, Lemoore, California, is hereby fixed as the time and place for        
 public hearing when and where all interested persons may be heard regarding the question 



 
 -2- 

 of levy and collection of the proposed assessments in PFMD Zones 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5  for 
fiscal year 2013-14, including the proposed change in the assessments for PFMD Zones 1, 2, 
3, 4, and 5 according to the corresponding increase in the Employee Cost Index.  At the 
hearing, any interested person shall be permitted to present written or oral testimony.   

 
 5. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to give notice of the public hearing by 

publication of this Resolution in accordance with subdivision (a) of Section 22626 of the 
Landscaping & Lighting Act. 

 

6.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 

 *   *   *   *   *  
Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore 

held on the 21st day of May, 2013 by the following vote: 
 

AYES:   
NOES:     
ABSENT:   
ABSTAINING:   
       APPROVED: 
 
             
       William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
       
ATTEST: 
 
     
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE ) 
 
 I, Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore do hereby certify the foregoing 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was duly passed and adopted at a 
Regular Meeting held on May 21, 2013. 
 
DATED:  May 21, 2013 
 
            
       Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 



P.O. BOX 3699
VISALIA CA 93278
TEL: (559) 733-0440
FAX: (559) 733-7821

5110 W. CYPRESS AVENUE



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

               City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Clerk 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
Staff Report 

         ITEM # 3G  
           
           
To: Lemoore City Council 

From: Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 

Date: May 16, 2013 

Subject: Resolution 2013-14 - Intention to Annex and Include Zone 6 of Public Facilities 
Maintenance District No. 1 in the City of Lemoore and Levy and Collect Annual 
Assessments in such Annexed Territories for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 and 
Thereafter. 

 
Discussion: 
The City of Lemoore formed the Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 (PFMD) on August 15, 
2006 by adoption of Resolution 2006-37.  The resolution before Council is to begin the process to 
annex Tract 872 (Heritage Acres) and create Zone 6 of the PFMD District No. 1.  The City Engineer 
has prepared and filed with the City Clerk a report entitled “Engineer’s Report and Assessment for 
Zone 6, Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1, dated May 2013”.  The report contains a 
description of the existing facilities and improvements, the boundaries of the PFMD and any zones 
therein, including the boundaries of the Territories proposed to be annexed to the PFMD in these 
proceedings, the facilities and improvements proposed for Zone 6, and the general location and 
proposed assessments on the assessable lots and parcels of land within the Added Territories of 
PFMD No. 1. 
 
The proposed assessment per lot is $646.36 per year or $53.86 per month. 
 
The attached Resolution of Intention will preliminarily approve the Engineer's Report and set the 
required public hearing on the proposed annexation and assessment of the Added Territories for 
Tuesday, July 16, 2013.  Notice of the public hearing will be published 10 days before the hearing and 
sent by mail, at least 45 days before the hearing, to the owners of lots and parcels in the Added 
Territories, along with a ballot for them to vote “for” or “against” the Annexation and Assessment. 
 
In order for the annexation to be approved and the assessments levied on the lots in the Added 
Territories, the majority of the ballots submitted by property owners within the boundary of the Added 
Territories must consent to the annexation and levy of the assessment.  Votes will be tabulated after 
close of the public hearing on July 16, 2013. 
 
Budget Impact: 
The proposed total assessment for Zone 6 is $52,214.00 for 2013-2014 Tax Year.  Payments are 
made through the County Assessor property tax roll; first installment would be in December                   
2013 with the second installment paid in April 2014. 



“In God We Trust” 

 
Recommendation: 
Council, by motion, adopt Resolution 2013-14 declaring the Intention to (i) Annex and Include 
Additional Territories in Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 in the City of Lemoore, and (ii) 
Levy and Collect Annual Assessments in such Annexed Territories for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 and 
Thereafter. 
 
 



Engineer’s Report and Assessment 
For Zone 6 

 

 
 
 

PUBLIC FACILITIES 
MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 

 

 
 
 
 

City of Lemoore 
 

Kings County, California 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Submitted by: 
 
Quad Knopf, Inc. 
P.O. Box 3699 
Visalia, California 93278 
 

May 2013 Submitted to: 
 
City Council 
City of Lemoore 
Park and Recreation Department 
119 Fox Street 
Lemoore, California 93245 

 



 

© Copyright by Quad Knopf, Inc. 
 Unauthorized use prohibited. 
L090138 

 
 

ENGINEER’S REPORT AND ASSESSMENT 
 
 

CITY OF LEMOORE 
PUBLIC FACILITES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1, 

ZONE 6 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

Mayor – William Siegel 
Mayor Pro Tem – Lois Wynne 

 
 

Council Members 
 

John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 
 
 
 

Prepared for: 
 

THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

Quad Knopf, Inc. 
P.O. Box 3699 

Visalia, CA  93278 
Tel. No:  (559) 733-0440 
Fax No:  (559) 627-2336 

harryt@quadknopf.com 
 
 
 

May 2013 
 

mailto:harryt@quadknopf.com




 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

 

 

Engineer's Report 
 Certificates of Filing  ..............................................................................................................1 

 Introduction .............................................................................................................................2 

 Engineer of Work Statement  ..................................................................................................4 

 

Exhibit A 
 Description of Improvements .................................................................................................5 

 

Exhibit B 
 Engineer's Estimate  ................................................................................................................7 

 

Exhibit C 
 Method of Apportionment  .....................................................................................................9 

 

Exhibit D 
 Assessment Roll ....................................................................................................................11 

 

Exhibit E 
 Assessment District and Zone Location; Assessment Diagram  ..........................................12 

 

 

 



ENGINEER'S REPORT 





 

City of Lemoore May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6 2 

INTRODUCTION 

 

 
The City Council of the City of Lemoore adopted its General Plan with various elements to provide guidelines 

for orderly development within the community.  The City Council further adopted ordinances and regulations 

governing the development of land providing for the installation and construction of certain lighting, 

landscaping, street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities to enhance the quality of life and to benefit the 

value of property. 

 

The requirement for the installation of lighting, landscaping, streets and appurtenant facilities is a condition of 

development provided for in the City's Subdivision Ordinance and is a requirement of issuance of a permit for 

construction of commercial, residential, and planned unit development.  Lighting, landscaping, streets and 

appurtenant facilities generally includes street lights, trees, shrubs, plants, turf, irrigation systems, local street 

paving, parks and necessary appurtenances including curbs, hardscape, monumentation, fencing located in 

public rights-of-way, medians, parkways, and/or easements adjacent to public rights-of-ways, in and along 

major thoroughfares, primary and secondary arterials, and local streets as defined in the General Plan's 

Circulation Element. 

 

The installation of street lights, landscaping and appurtenant facilities is the responsibility of the subdivider or 

other development/applicant, triggered by the approval of a tentative subdivision map or other development 

application.  When on any given street of the approved system, a majority of the required landscaping has been 

provided, and it has been determined that landscaping in front of, or adjacent to certain already developed 

properties is required to bridge missing gaps, and/or where the future development or redevelopment of 

existing property is not likely to occur in the foreseeable future, the City Council may deem it appropriate to 

retrofit or fill such gaps. 

 

After installation, it is City policy that the servicing, operation, maintenance, repair and replacement of the 

lighting, landscaping, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities in turn become the financial 

responsibility of the properties that specially benefit from the facilities. 

 

The City's lighting, landscape, local street paving and parks maintenance and replacement program is 

administered according to the provisions of Proposition 218 (Article XIIID of the California Constitution), 

Chapter 10 of Title 7 of the Municipal Code, which was added by Ordinance No. 2006-01 of the City of 

Lemoore, the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act (Government Code Sections 53750 through 

53754) and, to the extent applicable, the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (Streets and Highways Code 

Part 2, Division 15). 

 

The City cannot feasibly fund by any other method the maintenance and required periodic replacement of such 

facilities which must be installed with new development.  Therefore, the City has determined that such 

maintenance, operation, repair and replacement should be funded through usage of the assessments on 

properties within the boundaries of Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1.  The property owners in each 

Zone of said District enjoy a special benefit from these facilities within the applicable Zone, over and above the 

general benefits received by these property owners and the public generally, and the assessments levied under 

this District fund such benefit. 

 

Payment for the assessment will be made in the same manner and at the same time in conjunction with the ad 

valorem property tax for each assessed lot or parcel in the District. 

 

After approval of the final map for Tract 872, Heritage Acres, the owner requested that the properties be 

annexed into the City of Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1, Zone 6. The location of the 



 

City of Lemoore May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6 3 

annexed properties is within the boundaries of the District and is shown on the Assessment Diagram, Exhibit 

“E” herein. 

 

The proceedings for annexation and assessment of Zone 6 will be conducted under Ordinance No. 2006-01, 

Proposition 218, the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act and, to the extent applicable, the 

Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Sections 22500 through 22679, Part 2, Division 15, of the Streets and 

Highways Code of the State of California. 

 

The City Council of the City of Lemoore will set the time and place for a public hearing in the Resolution of 

Intention. 

 

Each property owner of a lot or parcel in the Zone that will have an assessment as a result of these proceedings 

will be notified by First Class mail a minimum of 45 days before the public hearing.  The notice will include a 

description of the property owner's parcel by proposed Assessor's parcel number or subdivision map and will 

indicate the total assessments to be charged the entire Zone 6, the proposed assessment for the lot or parcel, the 

duration of assessment payments, the reason for the assessment, the basis for calculating the assessment, a 

summary of the process for completing, returning and tabulating assessment ballots and other information 

required by Proposition 218 and the Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act.  Each notice will also have 

an assessment ballot in the form required by the Implementation Act, instructions for completing and returning 

the ballot and a return envelope.  Notices will be addressed to each property owner within Zone 6, as listed in 

the last equalized assessment roll in the office of the Assessor of the County of Kings, as available at the time 

the notices are given, the latest State Board of Equalization assessment roll, or as may be otherwise known to 

the City. 

 

If properties have changed ownership and/or forwarding mailing addresses are no longer maintained at the 

original post office location, notice may not reach the most current property owner. Notification to the property 

owner of record as listed on the last equalized assessment roll or as otherwise known by the City satisfies the 

provisions of the law. 

 

After reviewing testimony, as well as the projected year's costs for the servicing, maintenance, repair and 

replacement of the facilities in Zone 6 as herein described, and if there is not a majority of assessment ballots 

submitted against the annexation and assessment, the City Council will order annexation of the Added 

Territories to the District as Zone 6 and set the assessment for the 2013-14 fiscal year, which runs between July 

1 and June 30.   

 

This report contains the necessary data required to conduct the proceedings and is submitted to the Clerk of the 

City for filing. 
 





EXHIBIT A 
 

Description of Improvements 



 

City of Lemoore May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6 5 

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF IMPROVEMENTS 
 

(Pursuant to City of Lemoore Ordinance No. 2006-01) 
 

 

Location of Landscaping, Lighting, Streets and Appurtenant Facilities 

 

The locations of lighting, landscaping, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities in the benefit Zone 

within the Assessment District are depicted on the Assessment Diagram as shown in Exhibit "E" herein which 

Diagram includes the following subdivision, lots and/or parcels: 

 

Zone 6 

 

Boundaries of Zone 6 include the following properties: 

 

Tract No. 872, Heritage Acres, Phase 1, recorded in Volume 22 of Licensed Surveyors’ Plats, at Page 96, 

Kings County Records.  

 

Plans and Specifications 

 

The plans and specifications (the “Plans”) for the improvements to be maintained, operated, repaired and 

periodically replaced benefiting Zone 6 of the District by the Parks and Recreation Department and by the 

Public Works Department of the City of Lemoore, dated August 31, 2007, are incorporated herein by 

reference.  The Plans are a part of the improvement plans required by the City of Lemoore as a condition of 

approval of the tentative map of Tract 872 by Council Resolution No. 2006-15, May 2, 2006, approving the 

development as a Planned Unit Development, a Conditional Use Permit, and a vesting tentative subdivision 

map, Tentative Map No. 2006-02.  Such detailed Plans have been prepared by the project developer and are on 

file with the City Clerk of the City of Lemoore.   

 

Description of Work  

 

The work includes maintaining, operating, repairing and periodically replacing landscaping, street lights, local 

street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities described as follows: 

 

Plants, shrubbery, trees, turf, irrigation systems, entry monuments, local street maintenance, parks, hardscapes, 

walls, fencing,  street lights and appurtenant facilities in public rights-of-way and easements within or 

appurtenant to the boundaries of the applicable benefit Zone of said District. 

 

The location of such facilities, as previously described, are within the boundaries of the District , and within or 

appurtenant to the boundaries of Zone 6 as shown on the Assessment Diagram, Exhibit "E" herein.  Approved 

Plans for landscaping, lighting, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities benefiting Zone 6 are filed 

with the City Clerk and incorporated herein by reference. 

 

Maintenance means the furnishing of services and materials for the ordinary and usual maintenance, operation 

and servicing of the lighting, landscaping, local street paving, parks and appurtenant facilities. Maintenance for 

landscaping means, but is not limited to, the repair, removal or replacement of landscaping and walls, 

providing for the life, growth, health and beauty of landscaping, including cultivation, irrigation, trimming, 

spraying, fertilizing and treating for disease or injury and the removal of trimmings, rubbish, debris and other 

solid waste.  Maintenance for street lights means but is not limited to the furnishing of services and materials 



 

City of Lemoore May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6 6 

for the ordinary and usual maintenance and repair of street lights including, poles, lens and bulb replacement.  

Maintenance for local street paving means but is not limited to the scheduled sealing, capping, and 

remixing/resurfacing of such paving.  Maintenance for trees means, but is not limited to the trimming and 

required replacement of trees in development–adjacent or development-contained arterial or collector streets, 

medians or parkways, but not street trees on local streets fronting residences.  Maintenance for parks interior to, 

or determined by the Council to provide special benefit to property in, the applicable benefit Zone includes, but 

is not limited to the continuing maintenance and required replacement of park facilities, including tot lot and 

playground equipment, trees, park furniture, turf, landscaping and restrooms.  Maintenance of sidewalks, curb 

and gutter includes the required replacement of such improvements only in arterial or collector streets, 

parkways, or medians adjacent to or contained in the development. 

 

Operating for landscaping improvements means but is not limited to the furnishing of water and electricity for 

irrigation of the landscaping and the maintenance of any of the appurtenant facilities.  For lighting facilities, 

operating means but is not limited to furnishing the utility power necessary for energizing of electroliers. 

 

The improvements described herein for which maintenance, operating, repair and periodic replacement for, and 

for which assessments are required to fund such maintenance, servicing and periodic replacement, are those 

required as a condition of approval of the tentative map of Tract 872. The final map of Tract 872, the 97 

single-family lots of which constitute Zone 6 hereunder, was approved by the City Council on April 2008. 

 



EXHIBIT B 
 

Engineer's Estimate 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6 7 
 

EXHIBIT B 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE 
 

 

Actual costs of maintenance and required periodic replacement of improvements have been determined 

by the Engineer of Work in consultation with the City staff. Such costs are reflected to the extent 

currently feasible in the assessments for Zone 6.  It should be noted that, based on these unit cost 

assessments and the improvements to be maintained, serviced and operated in this Zone, the actual costs 

during the past fiscal year and projected for this fiscal year may be greater than the proposed assessments.   

 

Table 1 details unit costs for maintenance and replacement. Table 2 shows the total costs to be assessed to 

Zone 6.  Table 3 estimates the incidental costs required to process the assessments. 

 

TABLE 1 

UNIT COST ESTIMATE - ZONE 6 
 

EXHIBIT B 

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE – Zone 6, Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1 

1.  Maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs, Annual, Tract 872 (97 lots) 

 

Item 

 

Unit 

 

O & M 

 

Replacement 

Annual Cost 

Total 

Street Lights 31 EA $51.88 $27.27 $2,454 

Trees 38 EA $149.46 $6.54 $5,928 

Planter 11,138 S. F. $1.215 $.065 $14,257 

Dump Fee 11,138 S. F. $.0231 0 $257 

Water/Electricity 11,138 S. F. $.273 $.0651 $3,766 

Canal Interceptor 

Interceptor Trench 1,420 L. F. 0 $.10 $142 

Interceptor Lift Station 1 EA $160.00 $40.00 $200 

Local Street Paving Maintenance (40-Yr Cycle) 

Reclamite 228,869 S. F. $.0049 0 $1,121 

Crack Filling 228,869 S. F. $.0060 0 $1,373 

1½” Overlay 228,869 S. F. $.0323 0 $7,392 

Remix 228,869 S. F. $.0647 0 $14,808 

Fortune Street (south side) 

SW/Cross Gutter 4,748 S. F. $.0404 0 $192 

C & G 1,145 L. F. $.2829 0 $324 

   Total $52,214
(1) 

     

Cost of Total Required Assessment on Zone 6 $52,214
(1) 

(1)Number of parcels (single-family lots) in Phase 1 of Tract 872 (Zone 6): 33 

Total number of parcels(single-family lots) in Tract 872: 97 
Only 33 of the 97 lots have been constructed. 

Therefore, proportionate share of costs assessable to Zone 6 is (33/97) x $52,214 = $17,764.  These proportionate share costs are 

lessthan those which would appertain to Zone 6 if it were assessed for the required facilities within and appurtenant thereto if the 
balanceof Tract 872 is not constructed, because the total cost of the assessment would be allocated to the 33 built lots only. 



City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6 8 
 

Note:  The above costs are based on an Employment Cost Index for Total Compensation for State and 

Local Government workers of 119.9 (U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, December 2012). 

 
 

TABLE 2 

ESTIMATED COSTS TO ASSESSMENT 

2013-2014  

             

Zone  EDU Lots 1. Public Facilities Maintenance Costs $17,764.00   

6 33 33 2. Incidental Costs (See Table 3) 3,499.88   

   3. Noticing 33.00   

   

4. County Processing Fee ($1.00 per 

Assessment) 33.00   

        

   Total Costs to Assessment  $21,329.88  

        

   2013-14 Assessment - Zone 6   $21,329.88  

        
 
 

 

TABLE 3 

ESTIMATED INCIDENTAL COSTS TO ASSESSMENT 

APRIL 2013 THROUGH MARCH 2014 
 

 Estimated Cost 
Engineering Fees, Legal Fees, and 

City Administrative Costs 
$3,500.00 

  
 



EXHIBIT C 
 

Method of Apportionment 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6  9   

EXHIBIT C 

RATE AND METHOD OF ASSESSMENT 
 

  
General Discussion 

 

The improvements described in Exhibit “A” are provided for the particular, distinct special benefit directly 

received by each lot or parcel in each benefit Zone of the District, above the benefit received by these lots and 

parcels or the public generally.  Each lot or parcel has been determined to directly and specially benefit 

proportionally by Equivalent Dwelling Unit (EDU).   

 

City noticing and County administrative expenses will be apportioned to each lot or parcel as one unit of 

assessment for each lot/parcel. 

 

The annual maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement costs of the facilities and improvements 

benefiting Zone 6 of the District described in Exhibit A of this Report, are estimated in Exhibit “B.” 

 

The City is unable to provide funds for such maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the 

described facilities and improvements.  The facilities and improvements and their maintenance, operation, 

repair and periodic replacement provide equally for each lot and parcel in the Zone essential safety, lighting, 

property access, security and aesthetically-pleasing public right-of-way landscaping not available to the general 

community.  The value, accessibility, appearance, safety and use of each lot and parcel in the Zone are 

significantly and directly enhanced by regular maintenance and periodic replacement of these facilities and 

improvements.  These are benefits distinct and particular to the lots and parcels in this Zone and not realized by 

the general community.  Therefore, annual maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the 

described facilities and improvements, and the funding thereof, provide direct special benefits to the lots and 

parcels in the Zone, over and above general benefits conferred on real property in the Zone or to the public at 

large. 

 

Moreover, the Engineer has determined that each individual lot and parcel in the Zone established by a 

recorded final subdivision is benefited equally by such annual maintenance and periodic replacement.  Each 

assessed lot and parcel contains, or will contain in accord with the City’s development approvals, a single 

dwelling unit.  Each lot and parcel, within the Zone, therefore derives the same proportionate special benefit 

from the assessed facilities and improvements and their regular maintenance and periodic replacement. 

 

Accordingly, the individual annual assessment for each lot and parcel in the Zone (the “Maximum Annual 

Assessment”) is determined by dividing the total estimated costs of annual maintenance and replacement and 

related notice and processing fees (for fiscal year 2013-14, set forth in Exhibit “B”) by the total number of lots 

and parcels in the Zone.  The costs of such maintenance and periodic replacement will increase each year.  In 

order to assure continued adequacy of the financing of such costs and, therefore, the continued special benefits 

to the lots and parcels in the Zone, the Maximum Annual Assessment shall be comparably and automatically 

increased each fiscal year to cover the maintenance and replacement cost increases.  The annual increase in the 

Maximum Annual Assessment shall be in accordance with increases in the Employment Cost Index for total 

compensation for State and Local Government Workers (the “Index”), published quarterly by the U.S. Bureau 

of Labor Statistics.  Increases in the Index will track comparably to increases in the costs of annual 

maintenance and periodic replacement of the described facilities and improvements, since the majority of the 

maintenance and replacement work is and will be done by City employees. 

 

Therefore, the annual assessment each fiscal year on each lot and parcel in the Zone shall be determined and 



 

City of Lemoore  May 2013 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 6  10   

levied according to the above rate and methodology up to, but not more than, the Maximum Annual 

Assessment as increased for that fiscal year by the Index.  The actual annual assessments may be less than or 

up to the Maximum Annual Assessment, as so increased, but cannot exceed the Maximum Annual 

Assessment, as so increased, without approval in a landowner ballot proceeding under Proposition 218 and the 

Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act. 

 

The initial actual assessment and Maximum Annual Assessment on each lot and parcel in Zone 6 of the 

District for fiscal year 2013-14 is set forth in Exhibit “D” of this Report. 

 

Hearing Dates 

 

A public hearing will be held at the regularly scheduled City Council meeting on July 16, 2013.  Any protests 

received will be submitted to Council and individuals will be allowed to give testimony.  At this meeting, the 

assessment ballots will be tabulated and the Council will take action deemed necessary regarding the 

assessments.  If there is no majority protest, and if the Council elects to proceed with annexation of the Zone 

and levy of assessments, final assessments, commencing with the 2013-14 fiscal year, will be levied on Zone 6 

at this meeting and the County shall be notified of the final assessment amounts. 

 

Protesting the Assessments 

 

A ballot will be included with the written notices sent to the owner(s) of each lot or parcel in the Zone.  The 

ballot will be used to tabulate votes for and against the proposed annexation and assessment.  Ballots must be 

sealed in the sealing envelope included with the notice, and sealed ballots may be returned to the Parks and 

Recreation Department in the return envelope included with the notice by mail or personal delivery, or may be 

delivered at the public hearing.  In either case, to be counted, ballots must be returned before the public 

hearing is closed.  The returned ballots will remain sealed until the public hearing is closed, at which time the 

returned ballots will be unsealed and tabulated.  The tabulation shall be used to determine the percentage 

voting for and against the assessment.  If a majority of the ballots received, weighted according to the 

proportional financial obligation of the individual lot or parcel, are votes against the annexation and 

assessment, the Zone cannot be annexed and the assessment cannot be levied.   
 



EXHIBIT D 
 

Assessment Roll 



EXHIBIT D

ASSESSMENT ROLL

CITY OF LEMOORE

PUBLIC FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1

ZONE ASSESSOR'S 2013-14

PARCEL NO. ASSESSMENT

6 021-820-001-000 $646.36

6 021-820-002-000 646.36

6 021-820-003-000 646.36

6 021-820-004-000 646.36

6 021-820-005-000 646.36

6 021-820-006-000 $646.36

6 021-820-007-000 646.36

6 021-820-008-000 646.36

6 021-820-009-000 646.36

6 021-820-010-000 646.36

6 021-820-011-000 $646.36

6 021-820-012-000 646.36

6 021-820-013-000 646.36

6 021-820-014-000 646.36

6 021-820-015-000 646.36

6 021-820-016-000 $646.36

6 021-820-017-000 646.36

6 021-820-018-000 646.36

6 021-820-019-000 646.36

6 021-820-020-000 646.36

6 021-820-021-000 $646.36

6 021-820-022-000 646.36

6 021-820-023-000 646.36

6 021-820-024-000 646.36

6 021-820-025-000 646.36

6 021-820-026-000 $646.36

6 021-820-027-000 646.36

6 021-820-028-000 646.36

6 021-820-029-000 646.36

6 021-820-030-000 646.36

6 021-820-031-000 $646.36

6 021-820-032-000 646.36

6 021-820-033-000 646.36

Total Assessment Zone 6 $21,329.88

City of Lemoore 

PFMD No. 1, Zone 5

May 2012

11



EXHIBIT E 
 

Assessment District and Zone Location 
Assessment Diagram 

 



P.O. BOX 3699
VISALIA CA 93278
TEL: (559) 733-0440
FAX: (559) 733-7821

5110 W. CYPRESS AVENUE



Z
o
n

e 
6

 

 



Learn more about the Quad Knopf Effect {QKe} by visiting www.quadknopf.com 

 

 
 
 

5110 West Cypress Avenue 
Visalia, California  93277 

(559) 733-0440 
 
 

6051 North Fresno Street, Suite 200 
Fresno, California  93710 

(559) 449-2400 
 
 

735 Sunrise Avenue, Suite 100 
Roseville, California  95661 

(916) 784-7823 
 

5080 California Avenue, Suite 220 
Bakersfield, California  93309 

(661) 616-2600 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 -1- 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2013-13 
 
A RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO (i) ANNEX AND INCLUDE AN ADDITIONAL 
TERRITORIES IN PUBLIC FACILTIES MAINTENANCE DISTRICT NO. 1 IN THE CITY 
OF LEMOORE, AND (ii) LEVY AND COLLECT ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS IN SUCH 
ANNEXED TERRITORIES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 AND THEREAFTER 
 

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the City Council of the City of Lemoore to order 
annexation of Territories to City of Lemoore Public Facilities District No. 1 ("PFMD"), as Zone 6 
thereof, and to order levy and collection of annual assessments in such annexed Territories for fiscal 
year 2013-2014 and thereafter, under Chapter 10 of Title 7 of the Lemoore Municipal Code, as 
enacted by Ordinance No. 2006-01 (the "Ordinance"), and according the procedures set forth in the 
Proposition 218 Omnibus Implementation Act (Government Code Sections 53750--53753.5, 
inclusive) (the "Implementation Act"), Article XIIID of the California Constitution ("Proposition 
218") and, to the extent not inconsistent with the Ordinance, the procedures specified in the State 
Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (Chapter 2 of Part 2 of Division 15 of the California Streets 
& Highways Code) (the "LLMD Act"); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Territories to be annexed to the PFMD (the "Added Territories") is 
comprised of the real property to be benefited and to be assessed for the maintenance, operation, 
repair and periodic replacement of landscaping, street lights, local street paving, parks and 
appurtenant facilities described as follows: 

 
Plants, shrubbery, trees, turf, irrigation systems, entry monuments, local street maintenance, 
parks, hardscapes, walls, fencing, street lights and appurtenant facilities in public rights-of-
way and easements within or appurtenant to the boundaries of the applicable benefit Zone of 
said District;  

 
the Added Territories is generally described in the map(s), attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein; and 
 

WHEREAS,  the City Engineer has prepared and filed with the City Clerk a report entitled 
"Engineer's Report of the City of Lemoore Public Facilities Maintenance District No. 1, Zone  6" 
dated May, 2013 (the "Engineer's Report"), to which reference is hereby made, which Engineer's 
Report contains a description of the existing facilities and improvements, the boundaries of the 
PFMD and any zones therein, the boundaries of the Territories proposed to be annexed to the PFMD 
in these proceedings, the facilities and improvements proposed for the Added Territories, and the 
general location and proposed assessments on the assessable lots and parcels of land within the 
PFMD, including the Added Territories; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Engineer's Report is on file in the office of the City Clerk and is available 
for inspection during regular business hours;  
 

WHEREAS, the City Engineer also has prepared and filed with the City Clerk an amended 



 
 -2- 

map of the boundaries of the PFMD, incorporating the Added Territories within such boundaries as 
Zone 6,  as proposed in these proceedings; and    
 

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the annual assessments to be levied on the parcels within the 
PFMD, including the Added Territories, for fiscal year 2013-2014 and for each fiscal year thereafter 
will be used exclusively to finance the expenses for maintenance, operation, repair and periodic 
replacement of the improvements and facilities described in the Engineer’s Report for that fiscal 
year, which maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement will provide direct, particular 
and distinct special benefits to the various parcels assessed, over and above the benefits conferred on 
the public at large; and 
 

WHEREAS, the amount of the assessment to be levied on each parcel in the PFMD, 
including the Added Territories, for the 2013-2014 fiscal year, as proposed in the Engineer's Report, 
is proportional to and no greater than the special benefits conferred on such parcel from 
maintenance, operation, repair and periodic replacement of the improvements and facilities 
described in the Engineer's Report;  
 

THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Lemoore resolves, finds and determines as 
follows: 
 

1. The above recitals are true. 
 
2. The Engineer's Report of the City Engineer as filed with the City Clerk is 

preliminarily approved.  Reference is hereby made to the Engineer's Report for a full and detailed 
description of the improvements and facilities, the boundaries of the Added Territories, including the 
general location of the improvements and facilities, and the proposed assessment upon assessable 
lots and parcels of land within the Added Territories. 
 

3. The City Council declares its intention to annex and make part of the PFMD, as Zone 
6 thereof, all Territories within the Added Territories, whose boundaries are set forth in the 
Engineer's Report and the amended map of the boundaries of the PFMD on file with the City Clerk.  
The amended map of the boundaries of the PFMD, showing the proposed annexation of the Added 
Territories, is preliminarily approved. 
 

4. The City Council further declares its intention to levy and collect annual assessments 
within the Added Territories for fiscal year 2013-2014 and thereafter, as stated in the Engineer's 
Report, under the authority of and according to the procedures set forth in the Ordinance, including 
without limitation the procedures in the Implementation Act, Proposition 218 and, to the extent not 
inconsistent with the Ordinance, the procedures specified in the LLMD Act.   
 

5. The City Council incorporates into this Resolution by reference the general 
description of the facilities and improvements existing in or proposed for the Added Territories, all 
as detailed in the Engineer's Report.   
 



 
 -3- 

6. Notice is further hereby given that on the 16th day of July, 2013, at the hour of 7:30 
p.m. or as soon thereafter as possible, in the regular meeting place of the City Council, Council 
Chambers, 429 C Street, Lemoore, California, is hereby fixed as the time and place for public 
hearing when and where all interested persons may be heard regarding the question of annexation of 
the Added Territories to the PFMD and the levy and collection of the proposed assessments therein.  
At the hearing, any interested person shall be permitted to present written or oral testimony.  Also, 
prior to the conclusion of public testimony at the hearing, the record owner(s) of each lot or parcel in 
the Added Territories identified in the Engineer's Report as having special benefit conferred on it 
and on which an assessment is proposed to be imposed may submit, change or withdraw an 
assessment ballot as provided in Section 7 below, the Engineer's Report and the Implementation Act. 
 The hearing shall be conducted, and assessment ballots tabulated, as described in Section 7, the 
Engineer's Report and the Implementation Act. 
 

7. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to give notice of the public hearing 
in accord with Section 53753 of the Implementation Act.  The City Clerk shall mail notice to the 
record owner(s), as shown in the last equalized assessment roll of the County of Kings, the State 
Board of Equalization assessment roll or as known to the City Clerk, of each lot or parcel in the 
Added Territories and identified in the Engineer's Report as having special benefit conferred on it 
and on which an assessment is proposed to be imposed.  The notice shall be given by mail at least 45 
days before the hearing on the Engineer's Report, the proposed annexation of the Added Territories 
and the proposed levy and collection of assessments therein.  Each notice shall include (i) the name 
and address of the City, (ii) the reason for the assessment, (iii) the  total amount of the assessment 
chargeable to the entire Territories within the Added Territories boundaries and the maximum 
assessment, (iv) the amount of initial assessment chargeable to the record owner's lot or parcel and 
the maximum assessment chargeable to such lot or parcel, (v) the duration of the payments, (vi) the 
basis on which the amount of the proposed assessment was and will be calculated for each fiscal 
year, (vii) in a conspicuous place, a summary of the procedures for completion, return and tabulation 
of assessment ballots, including a statement that the assessment shall not be imposed if the ballots 
submitted in opposition to the assessment exceed the ballots submitted in favor of the assessment, 
with ballots weighted according to the proportional financial obligation of the affected lots or 
parcels, (viii) the date, time and place of the public hearing, and (ix) the name and telephone number 
of the person designated by the Council to answer inquiries regarding the protest and assessment 
ballot proceedings. 
 

Each notice also shall contain an assessment ballot that includes the City's address for receipt 
of the form and a place where the person returning the assessment ballot may indicate his or her 
name, a reasonable identification of the lot or parcel, and his or her support of or opposition to the 
proposed assessment.  An envelope for the return of the assessment ballot shall be included with 
each notice.  All assessment ballots shall be signed and returned by mail or otherwise delivered at 
the address indicated in the assessment ballot, or the site of the public hearing, prior to the date and 
hour set for the hearing.  An assessment ballot may be submitted, changed or withdrawn prior to the 
conclusion of the public testimony on the proposed assessment at the hearing. 
 
 At the time, date and place stated in the notice, the Council shall conduct a public hearing on 



 
 -4- 

the proposed assessment and, at the hearing, shall consider all objections and protests, if any, to the 
proposed assessment and shall consider the adoption of a resolution ordering annexation of the 
Added Territories to the PFMD as Zone 6 and the maintenance, operation, repair and periodic 
replacement of the specified improvements and facilities, finally approving the Engineer's Report, 
and confirming the diagram and assessment, either as originally proposed or as changed by the 
Council.  Any interested person shall be permitted to present written or oral testimony at the hearing. 
 The Council may continue the hearing from time to time.      
 

At the conclusion of the public hearing, an impartial person designated by the Council, who 
does not have a vested interest in the outcome of the proposed assessment and who may be the City 
Clerk, will tabulate the assessment ballots submitted and not withdrawn in support of or in 
opposition to the proposed assessment.  If the assessment ballots submitted and not withdrawn in 
opposition to the proposed assessment exceed the assessment ballots submitted and not withdrawn in 
favor of the proposed assessment (weighting the assessment ballots by the amount of the proposed 
assessment to be imposed on the lot or parcel for which each assessment ballot was submitted), a 
majority protest shall exist and the Council shall not impose the assessment.  If a majority protest 
(determined as described above) does not exist, the Council intends to proceed with annexation of 
the Added Territories to the PFMD and to levy and impose the assessments in the Added Territories 
in accordance with applicable law. 
 

8. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 
 *   *   *   *   * 
  

Passed and adopted at a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Lemoore held on 
the 21st day of May, 2013 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:  
ABSTAINING:  
       APPROVED: 
 
             
       William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
       
ATTEST: 
 
     
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
 

 
 
 



 
 -5- 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE ) 
 
 I, Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore do hereby certify the foregoing 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was duly passed and adopted at a Regular 
Meeting held on May 21, 2013. 
 
DATED:  May ___, 2013 
 
            
       Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



P.O. BOX 3699
VISALIA CA 93278
TEL: (559) 733-0440
FAX: (559) 733-7821

5110 W. CYPRESS AVENUE



“In God We Trust!” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

                               

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 
 

CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Clerk 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore CA  93245 
Phone(559)924-6700 
FAX(559)924-9003 

To: Lemoore City Council Item # 3H 

From: Kristie R. Baley  

Date: May 17, 2013  

Subject: Opposition of AB 667 (Hernandez) Land Use: Development  
         Project Review: Superstores 
 

Discussion: 
Council was contacted by Michelle Farley of the Dolphin Group who stated that she has worked 
on behalf of Walmart in Tulare County on efforts to open and expand new stores and that she is 
currently working with the California Retailers Association to build a coalition against AB667.  
Her comments are shown below. 
 
“The Chair of the Assembly Labor Committee, Assembly-Member Roger Hernandez (D-West 
Covina), has introduced AB 667, which creates another layer of bureaucracy for local 
governments by requiring large retail projects to obtain yet another economic impact and 
community impact report before receiving approval. These reports go above and beyond what is 
already required by state law, which currently provides for extensive public input and local 
decision-making.” 

“This bill is very similar to the measure introduced by Senator Juan Vargas in 2011 (SB469), 
which some Lemoore Council Members did oppose and joined a coalition. The 2011 version of 
this bill was strongly opposed by a broad-based coalition of leaders throughout California, 
including local officials, business groups, foods banks, tax organizations, and agricultural groups 
and we expect a similar coalition to activate to oppose this re-run. With the Lemoore City 
Council's help Governor Brown vetoed SB 469 and we are hoping we can call you on you again 
to do the same thing.” 

Ms. Farley has requested to list the Lemoore City Council as opposed to AB667.   

Budget Impact: 
None 
 
Recommendation: 
That the Council, by motion, approve the request to be listed as Opposed to AB667.  

 

 

 



	  

Paid	  for	  By	  Californians	  Against	  AB	  667,	  a	  project	  of	  the	  California	  Retailers	  Association.	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

Facts	  about	  AB	  667	  
AB	  667	  by	  Assemblymember	  Roger	  Hernandez	  (D	  –	  West	  Covina)	  creates	  another	  layer	  of	  bureaucracy	  for	  
local	  governments	  by	  requiring	  large-‐scale	  retail	  projects	  to	  obtain	  another	  economic	  impact	  and	  
community	  impact	  report	  before	  receiving	  approval.	  These	  reports	  go	  above	  and	  beyond	  what	  is	  already	  
required	  by	  state	  law,	  which	  currently	  provides	  for	  extensive	  public	  input	  and	  local	  decision-‐making.	  This	  
poorly	  crafted	  legislation	  has	  the	  potential	  to	  create	  significant	  delays	  in	  the	  local	  planning	  and	  approval	  
process,	  tying	  up	  local	  government	  resources	  and	  delaying	  job	  creation.	  What’s	  worse,	  the	  bill	  specifically	  
targets	  economic	  development	  areas	  such	  as	  enterprise	  and	  manufacturing	  zones	  –	  some	  of	  California’s	  
hardest	  hit	  communities	  that	  are	  already	  struggling	  to	  stay	  afloat.	  The	  state	  designated	  such	  zones	  to	  
encourage	  business	  expansion	  and	  create	  jobs	  in	  regions	  that	  need	  them	  most.	  
 
Governor	  Jerry	  Brown	  vetoed	  a	  similar	  bill	  in	  2011	  
A	  2011	  version	  of	  this	  bill	  was	  strongly	  opposed	  by	  a	  broad-‐based	  coalition	  of	  leaders	  throughout	  California,	  
including	  local	  officials,	  business	  organizations,	  foods	  banks,	  tax	  organizations,	  ethnic	  organizations,	  and	  
agricultural	  groups.	  Governor	  Jerry	  Brown	  vetoed	  the	  2011	  version	  of	  this	  bill	  noting	  that,	  “This	  bill	  would	  
add	  yet	  another	  layer	  of	  review	  to	  an	  already	  cumbersome	  process.”	  
	  
How	  AB	  667	  Impacts	  California:	  	  
• Creates	  unnecessary	  business	  regulation:	  AB	  667	  will	  only	  add	  to	  the	  already-‐burdensome	  regulatory	  

process,	  making	  it	  even	  more	  difficult	  to	  create	  jobs	  in	  California	  communities.	  
• Threatens	  local	  job	  creation	  and	  economic	  opportunity	  in	  California’s	  hardest-‐hit	  communities:	  The	  

bill	  has	  the	  potential	  to	  kill	  thousands	  of	  new	  retail	  and	  construction	  jobs	  in	  California,	  ultimately	  
stifling	  new	  growth	  by	  adding	  unnecessary	  red	  tape.	  	  Further	  the	  bill	  specifically	  impacts	  communities	  
that	  need	  the	  most	  help	  including	  economic	  development	  areas	  such	  as	  enterprise	  and	  manufacturing	  
zones.	  	  

• Harms	  underserved	  communities:	  California	  already	  has	  too	  many	  underserved	  communities	  that	  are	  
in	  desperate	  need	  of	  new	  job	  opportunities	  and	  have	  limited	  access	  to	  fresh	  and	  healthy	  foods.	  Local	  
consumers	  should	  make	  the	  decision	  about	  which	  stores	  they	  want	  in	  their	  communities,	  not	  state	  
politicians.	  

• Wastes	  local	  government	  resources:	  Local	  officials	  already	  have	  the	  ability	  to	  require	  additional	  
reports,	  if	  necessary.	  This	  bill	  has	  the	  potential	  to	  create	  significant	  delays	  in	  the	  local	  planning	  and	  
approval	  process,	  potentially	  tying	  up	  local	  government	  resources	  and	  delaying	  new	  store	  
opportunities.	  

 
Coalition	  Opposing	  AB	  667	  
Local	  leaders,	  community	  officials,	  business	  organizations,	  food	  banks,	  tax	  organizations,	  ethnic	  
organizations	  and	  agricultural	  groups	  are	  among	  those	  who	  oppose	  the	  bill	  (a	  
detailed	  list	  is	  attached).	  	  

“While	   I	   recognize	   that	   the	   merits	   of	   large-‐scale	   projects	   need	   to	   be	   carefully	   considered,	  
plenty	   of	   laws	   are	   already	   on	   the	   books	   that	   enable	   and	   in	   some	   cases	   require	   cities	   and	  
counties	  to	  carefully	  assess	  whether	  these	  projects	  are	  in	  a	  community’s	  best	  interests.	  This	  bill	  
would	  add	  yet	  another	  layer	  of	  review	  to	  an	  already	  cumbersome	  process.”	  

	  -‐	  Governor	  Jerry	  Brown	  stated	  when	  he	  vetoed	  the	  2011	  version	  of	  this	  bill,	  10/9/11	  



Oppose	  Assembly	  Bill	  667	  (Hernandez)	  
Protecting	  California	  Against	  Unnecessary	  Red	  Tape	  that	  Harms	  Jobs,	  Local	  Economies	  	  

and	  Underserved	  Communities	  

Paid	  for	  By	  Californians	  Against	  AB	  667,	  a	  project	  of	  the	  California	  Retailers	  Association.	  
Partial	  List	  of	  Supporters	  	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	   	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  



Oppose	  Assembly	  Bill	  667	  (Hernandez)	  
Protecting	  California	  Against	  Unnecessary	  Red	  Tape	  that	  Harms	  Jobs,	  Local	  Economies	  	  

and	  Underserved	  Communities	  

Paid	  for	  By	  Californians	  Against	  AB	  667,	  a	  project	  of	  the	  California	  Retailers	  Association.	  
Partial	  List	  of	  Supporters	  	  

Statewide	  Business	  Organizations	  
• California	  Business	  Properties	  Association	  
• California	  Chamber	  of	  Commerce	  
• California	  Grocers	  Association	  
• California	  Hispanic	  Chambers	  of	  Commerce	  
• California	  Association	  for	  Local	  Economic	  

Development	  
• California	  Grocers	  Association	  
• California	  Retailers	  Association	  
• International	  Council	  of	  Shopping	  Centers	  

(ICSC)	  
• Latin	  Business	  Association	  
• Industry	  Manufacturers	  Council	  
• NAIOP	  of	  California,	  the	  Commercial	  Real	  

Estate	  Development	  Association	  
• Nisei	  Farmers	  League	  
• Retail	  Industry	  Leaders	  Association	  

	  
Local	  Government	  

• League	  of	  California	  Cities	  
• Association	  of	  California	  Cities	  -‐	  Orange	  

County	  
• California	  Contract	  Cities	  Association	  
• Lori	  Acton,	  Council	  Member,	  City	  of	  

Ridgecrest	  
• John	  Benoit,	  Supervisor,	  Riverside	  County	  
• Rusty	  Bailey,	  Mayor,	  City	  of	  Riverside	  
• Joe	  Carchio,	  Councilmember,	  City	  of	  

Huntington	  Beach	  
• Kathleen	  DeRosa,	  Mayor,	  City	  of	  Cathedral	  

City	  
• Rose	  Espinoza,	  Mayor,	  City	  of	  La	  Habra	  
• Jack	  Feller,	  Councilmember,	  City	  of	  

Oceanside	  
• Marshall	  “Chip”	  Holloway,	  Vice	  Mayor,	  City	  

of	  Ridgecrest	  	  
• Steve	  Hwangbo,	  Mayor,	  City	  of	  La	  Palma	  

• Jerome	  M.	  Kern,	  Deputy	  Mayor,	  City	  of	  
Oceanside	  

• La	  Habra,	  City	  of	  
• Ron	  Morrison,	  Mayor,	  City	  of	  National	  
• Jason	  Patin,	  Mayor,	  City	  of	  Ridgecrest	  
• Riverside,	  City	  of	  
• Janice	  Rutherford,	  Supervisor,	  County	  of	  

San	  Bernardino	  
	  
Regional	  Organizations	  

• Asian	  Business	  Association	  -‐	  Los	  Angeles	  
• Asian	  Business	  Association,	  San	  Diego	  
• Black	  Chamber	  of	  Commerce	  of	  Orange	  

County	  
• Central	  City	  Association	  of	  Los	  Angeles	  
• Coachella-‐Imperial	  Valleys	  Strategies	  

Group/PAC	  
• Cochella	  Valley	  Economic	  Partnership	  	  
• Elk	  Grove	  Food	  Bank	  Services	  
• Escondido	  Chamber	  of	  Commerce	  
• Greater	  Desert	  Hot	  Springs	  Chamber	  of	  

Commerce	  
• Greater	  Fresno	  Area	  Chamber	  of	  

Commerce	  
• Inland	  Empire	  Economic	  Partnership	  
• Long	  Beach	  Area	  Chamber	  of	  Commerce	  
• Los	  Angeles	  Area	  Chamber	  of	  Commerce	  
• NAIOP	  Inland	  Empire	  Chapter	  
• NAIOP	  SoCal	  Chapter	  
• Nobell	  Energy	  Solutions	  
• Orange	  County	  Business	  Council	  
• Orange	  Chamber	  of	  Commerce	  
• Orange	  County	  Hispanic	  Chamber	  of	  

Commerce	  
• National	  Latina	  Business	  Women	  

Association	  -‐	  San	  
Diego	  



Oppose	  Assembly	  Bill	  667	  (Hernandez)	  
Protecting	  California	  Against	  Unnecessary	  Red	  Tape	  that	  Harms	  Jobs,	  Local	  Economies	  	  

and	  Underserved	  Communities	  

Paid	  for	  By	  Californians	  Against	  AB	  667,	  a	  project	  of	  the	  California	  Retailers	  Association.	  
Partial	  List	  of	  Supporters	  	  

• Rancho	  Santa	  Margarita	  Chamber	  of	  
Commerce	  

• Sacramento	  Metro	  Chamber	  
• Salinas	  Valley	  Chamber	  of	  Commerce	  
• San	  Diego	  Regional	  Chamber	  of	  Commerce	  
• San	  Diego	  Regional	  Economic	  Development	  

Corporation	  
• San	  Ysidro	  Chamber	  of	  Commerce	  
• San	  Ysidro	  Business	  Association	  
• Second	  Harvest	  Food	  Bank	  of	  San	  Joaquin	  
• Southwest	  California	  Legislative	  Council	  

(SWCLC)	  
• Temecula	  Valley	  Chamber	  of	  Commerce	  
• Valley	  Economic	  Alliance	  
• Valley	  Industry	  and	  Commerce	  Association	  

(VICA)	  
	  
Taxpayer	  Organizations	  

• Kern	  County	  Taxpayer	  Association	  
• Motherlode	  Taxpayer	  Association	  
• Orange	  County	  Taxpayers	  Association	  
• San	  Diego	  County	  Taxpayers	  Association	  
• San	  Diego	  Taxfighters	  

	  





“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

               City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-6700 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 
To: Lemoore City Council Item # 4 

From: JP Prichard, Administrative Analyst  

Date: May 14, 2013  

Subject:        Montrio Capital Partners Application for Impact 

                Fee Reduction 
 

 
Discussion: 
Resolution 2011-10, which set the current rate of development impact fees for the City (outside of 
special consideration given to in-fill project), states that: 
 

“Any person subject to a fee required by this Resolution may apply to the City Council for a 
reduction, adjustment, or waiver of that fee based on the absence of a reasonable relationship 
between the impact of that person’s commercial, industrial, or residential development 
project on demands on infrastructure types in the City of Lemoore” 

 
Montrio Capital Partners has a Multi-Family Residential development project located between State 
Highway 41 and 19 ½ Avenue, immediately north of the railroad tracks running through the City.  
Attached for Council review is a letter from the developer requesting a fee reduction on various 
grounds.  
 
Originally, this area was planned to be zoned Highway Commercial.  Consequently, it maintained a 
stronger nexus with West Side properties immediately surrounding the Highway 41/Bush Street 
Interchange.  However, a case can be made that, as a Multi-Family Residential project, it bears a 
stronger nexus with the infrastructure needs of East Side development.  Therefore, it would not be 
inappropriate to consider charging Montrio Capital Partners the East Side Development Impact Fees 
instead.    
 
According to the Public Works Director, the storm drainage facilities will require connecting to the 
City Storm Water System, as there is not sufficient capacity on the site to have an unconnected 
detention basin.  Delaying the collection the fees is ill-advised; it would be difficult to collect fees on a 
development cleared for occupancy, leaving the City little recourse if there were a failure to pay. 
 
The final request made by Montrio Partners is to waive the Community Recreation Facility Fee.  While 
the developers will be providing a number of amenities for their residents, they will not have the same 
variety that the City provides, nor are they likely to be open to non-residents.  Therefore, it is 
suggested that this fee be charged for this development. 
 
Budget Impact: 
Should the Council agree to allow the use of East Side Fees instead of West Side Fees; the City will 
collect $318,000 less revenue from development impact fees.  However, it is assumed that there would 
be a corresponding reduction in the need for City infrastructure from the project. 
 



“In God We Trust” 

Waiving the Community Recreation Facility Fee will result in a $124,000 less revenue without a 
corresponding reduction in infrastructure needs.   
 
As Montrio Capital Partners is only seeking to delay the payment for Stormwater facilities, it will have 
no impact on revenue, assuming that it is collected at some point in the future.  
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Council allow the project to be considered an East Side development for 
purposes of determining its development impact fees.  Staff further recommends that Council not 
waive the Community Recreation Facility Fee, nor delay the payment of the Stormwater facility fees. 
 













RESOLUTION NO. 2013-14 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEMOORE 
CONSIDERING REDUCTION, ADJUSTMENT OR WAIVER  OF IMPACT FEES FOR 

THE MONTRIO CAPITAL PARTNERS MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DEVELOPMENT PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2011-10 sets the current rate of development impact fees for the City 
(outside of special consideration given to in-fill project), and provides in part: 
 

“Any person subject to a fee required by this Resolution may apply to the City Council 
for a reduction, adjustment, or waiver of that fee based on the absence of a reasonable 
relationship between the impact of that person’s commercial, industrial, or residential 
development project on demands on infrastructure types in the City of Lemoore”; and 

 
WHEREAS, Montrio Capital Partners has a Multi-Family Residential development project 
located between State Highway 41 and 19 ½ Avenue, immediately north of the railroad tracks 
running through the City (the “Project”) and has applied to the City Council for reduction or 
waiver of certain fees according to the process set forth above; and  
 
WHEREAS, the burden is on the developer, Montrio Capital Partners, to demonstrate absence 
of a reasonable relationship between the impacts of the Project on demands on City 
infrastructure; and   
 
WHEREAS, the City Council does not intend to waive fees for actual impacts since doing so 
could trigger prevailing wage requirements for the entire Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, Montrio Capital Partners has requested (1) that the Project be charged according to 
East Side Development Fees rather than the original designation of West Side Development 
Fees; (2) that payment of the Storm Drainage Fees be delayed or waived; and (3) that the 
Community Recreation Fee be waived; and 
 
WHEREAS, the area on which the Project is situated was originally planned to be zoned 
Highway Commercial.  Consequently, it maintained a stronger nexus with West Side properties 
immediately surrounding the Highway 41/Bush Street Interchange; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has received a staff report May 14, 2013 and heard testimony that 
shows that as a Multi-Family Residential project, the Project bears a stronger nexus with the 
infrastructure needs of East Side development and it is therefore reasonable to charge fees 
according to the East Side development schedule; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered testimony from the public as well as City staff, 
including the Public Works Director, and has received a staff report dated May 14, 2013 which 
demonstrates that the storm drainage facilities will require connecting to the City Storm Water 
System, as there is not sufficient capacity on the site to have an unconnected detention basin; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has considered testimony and a staff report May 14, 2013 which 
shows that the developers will be providing a number of amenities for their residents, however, 
they will not have the same variety that the City provides, therefore, the Project will still have an 
impact on City recreation facilities, justifying payment of the impact fees. 



 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Lemoore, as 
follows: 
 

Section 1. The foregoing Findings are adopted as findings of the City Council as 
though set forth fully herein. 
 

Section 2. The Project shall be charged Development Impact Fees according to the 
East Side Impact Fee Schedule since the actual impacts of the Project align with that schedule.  

 
Section 3. The Storm Drainage Fees shall not be waived or reduced.   
 
Section 4. The Community Recreation Fees shall not be waived or reduced.  
 
Section 5. The City Manager or his designee is authorized to take all actions 

necessary to carry out the intent of this Resolution.  
 

 The foregoing Resolution was approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Lemoore held on the __ day of ______, 2013, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:   
ABSENT:   
ABSTAINING:  
       APPROVED: 
 
             
       William M. Siegel, Jr., Mayor 
       
ATTEST: 
 
     
Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
COUNTY OF KINGS )  ss. 
CITY OF LEMOORE ) 
 
 I, Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk of the City of Lemoore do hereby certify the foregoing 
Resolution of the City Council of the City of Lemoore was duly passed and adopted at a Regular 
Meeting held on May 21, 2013. 
 
DATED:  May ___, 2013 
 
            
       Kristie R. Baley, City Clerk 
        



“In God We Trust” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

              City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 

CALIFORNIA 
 

 

Maintenance &   
Fleet Division 

 

711 W. Cinnamon Drive 
Lemoore  CA  93245 

Phone  (559) 924-6739 
FAX  (559) 924-6708 

To: Lemoore City Council     Item # 5  

From: Joe Simonson, Parks and Recreation Director  

Date: April 25, 2013  

Subject: Authorization to Purchase CNG Refuse Truck(s)   

 
 

Discussion: 
 

City Council was presented information regarding the CNG usage and savings at the March 19, 2013 
meeting.  In reviewing this report, Staff noted there are several areas where the City will receive 
major cost savings with minimal expenditures.  See items below: 
 

 Fuel cost savings between CNG and diesel is just under $2.00 per gallon and provides an 
immediate impact to department budget expenditures. 

 The side loader units have the highest repair and fuel cost.  The three units in line to be 
replaced have increased repair charges, due to age, the number of stops (1250-1300 per day) 
and load capacity. 

  Current balance of funding available in the Grant is approximately $716,000. 
 
In preparation for department budgets and replacement of a side loader, the following chart notes 
statistics for the current side loader units.  The Refuse and Fleet Staff have requested demonstrations 
by several manufactures for multiple styles of equipment, spoke with multiple entities of CNG 
refuse trucks, conducted an analysis of current equipment/cost, had discussions with manufacturers 
for savings/bonus buying, and met together with Department heads to determine the specifications of 
the best manufacturer and the benefits of replacing two of these units now.    
 

Unit 
Peterbilts  

In Service Date 

Repair Cost 
01/01/2009 to 
3/18/2013 

Repair Cost 
01/01/12 to 
02/28/13 

Average Fuel 
Cost Monthly 

Average Fuel 
Cost Yearly 

110  1/26/2006   $   121,221.74    $   41,000.05    $    1,611.71    $ 24,791.58  

111   5/11/2006   $   154,841.45    $   46,368.49    $    1,485.31    $ 20,524.12  

113   2/28/2008   $   139,889.02    $   44,908.55    $    1,249.82    $ 23,803.54  
 
The fuel savings for two units would equal approximately $22,000 per year and additional savings 
would be realized in repair cost of approximately $50,000.  New units would be under warranty.  
Preventative maintenance and tire replacement cost would still be incurred.   
 
Staff is requesting authorization to go to bid for replacement of two units.  Purchasing two units will 
provide the following benefits: greater possibility of multiple purchase discounts; purchasing the 
second unit a year from now may have significant price increase; part inventory the same for the two 
units; and immediate department savings. 



“In God We Trust” 

 
 Budget Impact: 
 

If approved, a down payment for winning bidder would be expended upon request to order; CMAQ  
CML5115 funding would cover the purchase cost; and City savings would begin immediately upon 
putting trucks on route.   Staff expects there to be approximately $100,000 after purchase of units. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 

That the City Council, by motion, authorize staff to go to bid for purchase of two refuse side loader 
units and authorize staff to award bid, sign purchase paperwork and documents necessary for receipt 
of two refuse trucks. 
 



“In God We Trust” 
 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

                    City of 

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
CALIFORNIA 

 

Office of the 
City Manager 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore  CA  93245 
Phone  (559) 924-

6704 
FAX  (559) 924-9003 

 

 
 

ITEM #    6 
To: Lemoore City Council  

From: Judy Holwell, Project Manager 
Date: May 14, 2013  

Subject: Prohibiting the Placing, Blowing, Raking or Sweeping 
of Yard Debris onto a Public Right-of Way 
 

 
Discussion: 
During the March 19, 2013 City Council meeting, an ordinance prohibiting the blowing of 
yard debris onto public rights-of-way was presented.  Council was concerned that the 
language was too subjective and directed staff to come back with an ordinance that lists 
a measureable amount of debris.  In researching this item, staff spoke with Dale 
Bacigalupi, Attorney at Law for Lozano Smith.  He indicated that it would be very difficult 
to measure a “visible” amount of debris or to identify a measureable “quantity”.  
Additionally, the City would not be able to revoke a Business License for such an 
offense, as was suggested, because the License is only a revenue source for the City, 
not an enforcement measure.   
 
Mr. Bacigalupi came up with the following “indirect” alternative.  However, the 
enforcement of this option would require additional staff time. 
 

• Require commercial landscape maintenance companies to obtain a Mechanical 
Leaf Blower Encroachment Permit annually 
 

o The permit could state that leaves and debris need to be 
raked and discarded properly 

o It could limit the hours or areas that blowing would be 
permitted in order to more easily enforce (e.g. limit to certain 
times/days of the week and/or limit to certain days in each 
quadrants of the City)  

o An infraction amount could be listed of say $50 or more if 
caught blowing leaves/debris onto streets  

o If terms of the permit are violated more than X times per 
year, then it could be revoked for the remainder of the year  



“In God We Trust” 
 

o Revenues collected for the permits and infractions could be 
used to offset the cost to the City for the additional staff time 
and to clean up the debris  

Staff time would be required for the issuance of the permits, an enforcement officer 
would need to be present during the times/days that the mechanical leaf blowers are 
allowed in order to catch violators in the act, the number of violations per year would 
need to be tracked, and invoices would need to be sent for the cost of infractions and 
for the cost to clean up any remaining debris that is not disbursed by passing vehicles.  
 
For your convenience, the following links are for the March 19 staff report and draft 
ordinance, which was not approved: 
 
http://www.lemoore.com/agendas/2013/mar19/data/3_19_13_item_5_1.pdf 
http://www.lemoore.com/agendas/2013/mar19/data/3_19_13_item_5_2.pdf 
 
Budget Impact: 
None. 
 
Recommendation: 
Council direction. 
 



“In God We Trust!” 

Mayor 
William Siegel  

                               

LEMOORE 

Mayor Pro Tem 
Lois Wynne 

Council Members 
John Gordon 
Eddie Neal 

Willard Rodarmel 
 
 

CALIFORNIA 

Office of the 
City Clerk 

 
119 Fox Street 

Lemoore CA  93245 
Phone(559)924-6700 
FAX(559)924-9003 

To: Lemoore City Council Item # 7 

From: Kristie R. Baley  

Date: May 16, 2013  

Subject: League of California Cities  - Council Appointments -   
         Designation of Voting Delegates and Alternates 
 

Discussion: 
The League of California Cities, League Membership will consider and take action on 
resolutions that establish League Policy during the Annual Business Meeting at the 
League’s 2013 Annual Conference scheduled for September 18-20, 2013.  In order to 
vote at the Annual Business Meeting, City Council must designate a voting delegate 
and up to two alternates by resolution or Voting Delegate/Alternate form.   
 
Consistent with League bylaws, the voting delegate and two alternates must be 
designated by action of the City Council and cannot be accomplished by individual 
action of the Mayor or City Manager. 
 
Budget Impact: 
None 
 
Recommendation: 
Council, by motion, designate a voting delegate and up to two alternates and that the 
City Clerk be directed to sign the Voting Delegate/Alternate form affirming the names 
provided are those selected by the City Council. 
 










	Agenda 5-21-13.pdf
	SS Discussion - Review 13-14 Maintneance & Operations Budget.pdf
	Item 3A - Minutes 5-7-13.pdf
	Item 3B - Warrant Register May 17, 2013.pdf
	Item 3C-1 - Authorization to Bid - Slurry Seal Project 2013.pdf
	Item 3C-2 - Attached Maps - Slurry Seal Project.pdf
	Item 3D - Bid Awrd  - 2013 Miscellaneous Streets Resurfacing Project &  Reclamite Project.pdf
	Item 3E-1 - LLMD District No. 1 - Zones 1-13 - Intention to Levy and Collect Assessments.pdf
	Item 3E-2 - Engineers Report - LLMD District No. 1 -  Zones 1-13.pdf
	00 Cover_2013_ zones 1-13
	01 coverpage inside_2013_zones 1-13
	02 Memo to City Council
	03 Table of Contents
	03A Divider
	04 Certificates of Filing
	05 Introduction
	06 Work of Statement
	06A Divider
	07 Exhibit A
	07A Divider
	08 Exhibit B
	08A Divider
	09 Exhibit C
	09A Divider
	10 Final Assessment Roll 2013_nochanges
	10A Divider
	11 Maintainance District No.1
	12 APN Maps
	13 Cover Back new address

	Item 3E-3 - Resolution 2013-11 - LLMD Distrcit No. 1 - Zones 1-2-3-5-6-7-8-8A-9-11-12-12A-13.pdf
	Item 3F-1 - PFMD District No. 1 - Zones 1-5 - Intention to Levy and Collect Assessments.pdf
	Item 3F-2 - Engineers Report - PFMD District No. 1- Zones 1-5.pdf
	00 Cover_2013_ zones 1-5
	01 coverpage inside_2013_zones 1-5
	02 Memo To City Council
	03 Table of Contents
	03A Divider
	04 Certificates of Filing
	05 ER Introduction
	06 Work of Statement
	06A Divider
	07 Exhibit A - Description of Improvements
	07A Divider
	08 Exhibit B - Engineer's Estimate
	08A Divider
	09 Exhibit C - Method Of Assessment
	09A Divider
	10 Exhibit D - Public Facilities - Zones 1-5
	10A Divider
	11 PFMD 1 vicinity map
	12 Zone 1 Tract 817 APN Map
	13 Zone 2 Book 21, Pg 78
	14 Zone 2 Book 21, Pg 79
	15 Zone 2 Book 21, Pg 80
	16 Zone 2 Book 21, Pg 81
	17 Zone 3 Tract 838 APN Map
	18 Zone 4 Tract 797 APN Map
	19 Zone 5 Tract 791 APN Map
	20 Microsoft Word - Cover Back new address

	Item 3F-3 -  Resolution 2013-12 - PFMD District No. 1 - Zones 1-5.pdf
	Item 3F-4 - Resolution 2013-12 Vicinity Map - PFMD District No. 1 - Zones 1-5.pdf
	Item 3G-1 - PFMD District No. 1 - Zone 6 - Intention to Annex, Levy and Collect Assessments.pdf
	Item 3G-2 - PFMD District No. 1 - Zone 6.pdf
	00 Cover_2013_ zone 6
	01 coverpage inside_2013_zone 6
	02 Memo to City Council
	03 Table of Contents
	03A Divider
	04 Certificates of Filing
	05 Introduction
	06 Engineer of Work Statement
	06A Divider
	07 Exhibit A - Description of Improvements
	07A Divider
	08 Exhibit B - Engineer's Estimate Tr. 872
	08A Dividers
	09 Exhibit C - Method Of Assessment
	09A Dividers
	10 Exhibit D - County Assessors Roll-zone 6
	10A Divider
	11 PFMD Zone 6
	12 APN Map
	13 Cover Back new address

	Item 3G-3 Resolution 2013-13 PFMD District No. 1 - Zone 6.pdf
	Item 3G-4 - Resolution 2013-13 Vicinity Map - PFMD District No. 1 - Zone 6.pdf
	Item 3H-1 - Opposition of AB667 _Hernandez_ Land Use - Development Project Review - Superstores.pdf
	Item 3H-2 - Oppose AB 667 Fact Sheet.pdf
	Item 3H-3 - Oppose AB 667 Coalition Sheet.pdf
	Item 3H-4 - John Gordon City of Lemoore Council Member OPP SB469 September 5, 2011.pdf
	Item 4-1 - Montrio Capital Partners Application for Impact Fee Reduction.pdf
	Item 4-2 - Montrio Capital Partners - Letter of Request To Modify DIFs.pdf
	Item 4-3 - Montrio Capital Partners  - Fee Calculation Comparison.pdf
	Item 4-4 - Montrio Capital Partners - Site Plan.pdf
	Item 4-5 - Resolution 2013-14 - Considering Reduction, Adjustment or Waiver of Impact Fees.pdf
	Item 5 -  Authorization to Purchase CNG Refuse Truck _s_.pdf
	Item 6 - Prohibiting Blowing, Raking or Sweeping Yard Debris onto Public Rights of Way.pdf
	Item 7-1 - League of California Cities - Desigantion of Voting Delegates and Alternates.pdf
	Item 7-2 - Attachment - League of California Cities Letter and Designation Form.pdf
	Item 8 - Warrant Register - Successor Agency May 17, 2013.pdf



